

PROSPECTUS FEBRUARY 28, 2023

AXONIC ALTERNATIVE INCOME FUND

SHARES OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST
Ticker: AAIDX

The Axonic Alternative Income Fund (the "Fund") is a Delaware statutory trust that is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"), as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company.

Investment Objective. The Fund seeks total return.

Interval Fund. The Fund operates as an "interval fund" (defined below) pursuant to which the Fund, subject to applicable law, conducts quarterly repurchase offers (each, a "Repurchase Offer") for between 5% and 25% of the Fund's outstanding common shares of beneficial interest ("Shares") at net asset value ("NAV"). In connection with each Repurchase Offer, it is possible that the Fund may offer to repurchase only the minimum amount of 5% of its outstanding Shares. It is also possible that a Repurchase Offer may be oversubscribed, with the result that holders of the Fund's Shares (each, a "Shareholder") may only be able to have a portion of their Shares repurchased. The Fund does not currently intend to list its Shares for trading on any national securities exchange and, except for the Repurchase Offers, the Fund is not required to repurchase Shares at the option of Shareholder and Shares are not exchangeable for units, interests or shares of any investment of the Fund. The Shares are, therefore, not readily marketable. Even though the Fund makes quarterly Repurchase Offers to provide a measure of liquidity to Shareholders, investors should consider the Shares to be illiquid.

Principal Investment Strategies. In pursuing its investment objective, the Fund invests primarily in income-producing instruments. Such instruments may consist of: (i) mortgage-backed securities ("MBS"), including residential mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS") and commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS"); (ii) other asset-backed securities ("ABS") and structured credit instruments, including those backed by instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from, or financing of various assets (such as assets in the aviation industry and automobiles), collateralized debt obligations ("CDOs"), collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs") and collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs") and various commercial and consumer loans (and participations thereon) or receivables held in trust; (iii) whole loans and participations in whole loans, including commercial mortgage mezzanine loans and participations ("Mezzanine Loans") and whole residential and commercial mortgage loans and participations; and (iv) other income-producing investments, including corporate and bank-issued bonds, loans and participations, and instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from or financing of various assets (including assets in the aviation industry, automobiles and intellectual property royalties).

Instruments acquired by the Fund may be fixed, floating or inverse floating; interest-only or principal-only (*i.e.*, stripped securities); of any maturity or no maturity; senior or subordinate (including equity tranches of structured credit instruments); and/or secured or unsecured. In addition, loans acquired by the Fund may be directly or indirectly originated by the Fund or purchased from other originators. There is no limit on the amount of Fund assets that may be invested in the junior debt, residual or equity tranches of any of the structured finance vehicles in which the Fund may invest. The Fund's investments may be of any credit quality, including, without limitation, investments that are distressed or in default, unrated or rated below investment grade (commonly referred to as "high yield" or "junk" instruments). The Fund's investments may be issued by U.S. and non-U.S. issuers. There is no limit on the percentage of the Fund's assets that may be invested in the securities or loans of non-U.S. issuers or obligors, including, without limitation, securities of emerging markets issuers or obligors. Fund investments may include private placement debt securities. The Fund may be the sole buyer of securities designed by the issuer for purchase by the Fund. There is no limit as to the percentage of the Fund's portfolio that may be invested in any of the foregoing types of securities, and the securities purchased by the Fund may be illiquid investments for which there is currently no secondary market.

The Fund also may invest in real estate investment trust ("REIT") stocks and other equity securities and indices.

In addition, for speculative or hedging purposes, the Fund may use various cleared and uncleared over-the-counter and exchange-traded derivatives, including swaps (such as total return swaps), options, swaptions, structured notes, futures and forward agreements on financial instruments, equity securities and indices, debt instruments and indices, government securities, treasuries, currencies and commodities.

The Fund's portfolio will be deemed to be non-diversified under the 1940 Act, meaning it may invest a greater percentage of its assets in a single or limited number of issuers than a diversified fund. Under normal circumstances, the Fund will concentrate its investments (i.e., invest 25% or more of its total assets (measured at the time of purchase)) in mortgage-related assets issued by government agencies or other governmental entities or by private originators or issuers.

To the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, the Fund's positions may be leveraged, and may be financed by various sources of funding, including bank lines, margin trading, short positions, derivatives (including total return swaps and forward transactions), reverse repurchase arrangements and participations.

The Fund is an Unlisted Closed-End Fund. An investment in the Fund is subject to, among others, the following risks:

- There is not expected to be any secondary trading market in the Shares.
- Unlike an investor in most closed-end funds, Shareholders should not expect to be able to sell their Shares regardless of how the Fund performs. An investment in the Fund is considered illiquid. An investment in the Fund is not be suitable for investors who may need the money they invest in a specified timeframe.
- Unlike most closed-end funds, the Shares are not listed on any securities exchange. The Fund intends to provide liquidity through quarterly offers
 to repurchase a limited amount of the Fund's Shares (at least 5%).
- There is no assurance that monthly distributions paid by the Fund will be maintained at a certain level or that dividends will be paid at all.
- The Fund's distributions may be funded from unlimited amounts of offering proceeds or borrowings, which may constitute a return of capital and
 reduce the amount of capital available to the Fund for investment. Any capital returned to Shareholders through distributions will be distributed
 after payment of fees and expenses.
- A return of capital to Shareholders is a return of a portion of their original investment in the Fund, thereby reducing the tax basis of their investment. As a result from such reduction in tax basis, Shareholders may be subject to tax in connection with the sale of Fund Shares, even if such Shares are sold at a loss relative to the Shareholder's original investment.

Investing in Shares involves a high degree of risk. See "Types of Investments and Related Risks" of this Prospectus.

	Per Share ⁽¹⁾	Total ⁽¹⁾		
Public Offering Price	\$ At current NAV	\$50,000,000		
Sales Charge (Load) ⁽¹⁾	None	None		
Proceeds to the Fund (Before Expenses) ⁽²⁾	\$ Amount invested at current NAV	\$50,000,000		

- (1) The minimum initial investment for Shares of the Fund is \$50,000. Shares of the Fund are not subject to sales charges, but the Fund may in the future impose sales charges.
- (2) Assumes all Shares currently registered are sold in the continuous offering. The Adviser will bear certain ongoing offering costs associated with the Fund's continuous offering of Shares. The Fund's initial organizational and offering expenses (including pre-effective expenses) were \$0, since all such expenses were paid by Axonic Capital LLC, as described under "Fund Expenses" below.

Investment Adviser. The investment adviser to the Fund is Axonic Capital LLC ("Axonic" or the "Adviser"), an investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"). The Adviser oversees the management of the Fund's activities and is responsible for making investment decisions for the Fund's portfolio.

Securities Offered. The Fund is offering on a continuous basis an unlimited number of Shares. Shares are not subject to sales charges. The minimum initial investment for Shares of the Fund is \$50,000 and subsequent investments therein may be made in any amount. The Fund reserves the right to waive the investment minimum. Shares are being offered through ALPS Distributors, Inc. (the "Distributor") at an offering price equal to the Fund's then - current NAV per Share.

This Prospectus concisely provides the information that a prospective investor should know about the Fund before investing. Investors are advised to read this Prospectus carefully and to retain it for future reference. Additional information about the Fund, including a statement of additional information, dated February 28, 2023 (the "Statement of Additional Information"), has been filed with the SEC and is incorporated by reference in its entirety into this Prospectus. The Statement of Additional Information and the Fund's annual and semi-annual reports and other information filed with the SEC can be obtained upon request and without charge by writing to the Fund at c/o ALPS Fund Services, Inc. at 1290 Broadway, Suite 1000, Denver, CO 80203, by calling (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic), or by visiting the Fund's website at www.axonicfunds.com. Investors may request the Statement of Additional Information, annual and semi-annual reports and other information about the Fund, or make Shareholder inquiries, by calling (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic) or by visiting www.axonicfunds.com. In addition, the contact information provided above may be used to request additional information about the Fund and to make Shareholder inquiries. The Statement of Additional Information, other material incorporated by reference into this Prospectus and other information about the Fund is also available on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. The address of the SEC's website is provided solely for the information of prospective investors and is not intended to be an active link.

The Fund and the Adviser have received an exemptive order from the SEC that allows the Fund in the future to, among other things, (i) designate multiple classes of shares; (ii) impose a repurchase fee on certain classes of shares; and (iii) impose a front-end sales charge and/or distribution/service fee on certain classes of shares. Accordingly, in the future the Fund could impose a repurchase fee, a front-end sales charge or, subject to Shareholder approval, a distribution/service fee on the Shares to which this Prospectus relates, though the Fund has no current intention to do so. Any repurchase fee applied to the Shares would only apply to Shares purchased after the repurchase fee is adopted and disclosed in the Prospectus.

Shares are not deposits or obligations of, and are not guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank or other insured depository institution, and Shares are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or any other government agency.

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or determined if this Prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE
SUMMARY OF TERMS	1
SUMMARY OF FEES AND EXPENSES	11
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS	12
THE FUND	12
THE ADVISER	13
USE OF PROCEEDS	13
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES	13
TYPES OF INVESTMENTS AND RELATED RISKS	16
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	28
FUND EXPENSES	29
MANAGEMENT FEE	30
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	30
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	31
SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM	33
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE	34
TAX ASPECTS	36
PURCHASING SHARES	42
DISTRIBUTIONS	44
FISCAL YEAR; REPORTS	44
INOUIRIES	44

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 45

SUMMARY OF TERMS

This is only a summary and does not contain all of the information that a prospective investor should consider before investing in the Fund. Before investing, a prospective investor in the Fund should carefully read the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus and the Statement of Additional Information.

THE ADVISER Axonic serves as the Fund's investment adviser. Axonic is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC

under the Advisers Act.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE The Fund seeks total return.

INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITIES AND STRATEGIES.....

In pursuing its investment objective, the Fund invests primarily in income-producing instruments. Such instruments may consist of: (i) mortgage-backed securities ("MBS"), including residential mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS") and commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS"); (ii) other asset-backed securities ("ABS") and structured credit instruments, including those backed by instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from or financing of various assets (such as assets in the aviation industry and automobiles), collateralized debt obligations ("CDOs"), collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs") and collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs") and various commercial and consumer loans (and participations thereon) or receivables held in trust; (iii) whole loans and participations in whole loans, including commercial mortgage mezzanine loans and participations ("Mezzanine Loans") and whole residential and commercial mortgage loans and participations; and (iv) other income-producing investments, including corporate and bank-issued bonds, loans and participations, and instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from or financing of various assets (including assets in the aviation industry, automobiles and intellectual property royalties).

Instruments acquired by the Fund may be fixed, floating or inverse floating; interest-only or principal-only (i.e., stripped securities); of any maturity or no maturity; senior or subordinate (including equity tranches of structured credit instruments); and/or secured or unsecured. In addition, loans invested in by the Fund may be directly or indirectly originated by the Fund or purchased from other originators. There is no limit on the amount of Fund assets that may be invested in the junior debt, residual or equity tranches of any of the structured finance vehicles in which the Fund may invest. The Fund's investments may be of any credit quality, including, without limitation, investments that are distressed or in default, unrated or rated below investment grade (commonly referred to as "high yield" or "junk" instruments). The Fund's investments may be issued by U.S. and non-U.S. issuers. There is no limit on the percentage of the Fund's assets that may be invested in the securities or loans of non-U.S. issuers or obligors, including, without limitation, securities of emerging markets issuers and obligors.

The Fund also may invest in real estate investment trust ("REIT") stocks and other equity securities and indices.

In addition, for speculative or hedging purposes, the Fund may use various cleared and uncleared over-the-counter and exchange-traded derivatives, including swaps (such as total return swaps), options, swaptions, structured notes, futures and forward agreements on financial instruments, equity securities and indices, debt instruments and indices, government securities, treasuries, currencies and commodities.

The Fund's portfolio will be deemed to be non-diversified under the 1940 Act, meaning it may invest a greater percentage of its assets in a single or limited number of issuers than a diversified fund. Under normal circumstances, the Fund will concentrate its investments (*i.e.*, invest 25% or more of its total assets (measured at the time of purchase)) in mortgage-related assets issued by government agencies or other governmental entities or by private originators or issuers.

To the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, the Fund's positions may be leveraged, and may be financed by various sources of funding, including bank lines, margin trading, short positions, derivatives (including total return swaps and forward transactions), reverse repurchase arrangements and participations.

Axonic's investment approach primarily focuses on generation of income and other gains while seeking to minimize the adverse effects of rising interest rates by utilizing both top-down and bottom-up analysis during the fundamental research phase and focusing on key sources of risk during the portfolio construction and ongoing portfolio management phases. The Adviser's investment approach relies on three primary components: (i) the Adviser's ability to identify and purchase appropriate securities; (ii) an intensive analytical approach to risk management and portfolio construction; and (iii) the Adviser's ability to construct a blended portfolio of risk-based assets and hedges with a return profile over time that demonstrates increased total return while mitigating discrete risks.

The Adviser carries out the Fund's investment process and risk control procedures by applying various valuation tools, including the Adviser's own risk and valuation pricing engine. In particular, the Adviser believes that attractive risk-adjusted returns can be produced by systematically discovering misvalued credit risk, structural nuances and other opportunities in income-producing investments. The Adviser will attempt to take advantage

of the inefficiencies that result from, among other things: (i) inconsistency of performance across deals, issuers, and sectors; (ii) heterogeneity of securities from both a collateral and structural perspective; and (iii) structural complexity.

The Adviser will attempt to identify and capture these opportunities and apply appropriate hedging mechanisms as necessary. Given the nature of many of the assets contemplated by the Adviser, which, at times, may include illiquid and/or distressed assets, the investment performance of the Fund may be considerably more volatile than that of more conventional markets. The Fund will attempt to consistently achieve attractive risk-adjusted returns through a complex bottom-up evaluation process of individual securities as well as the top-down nature of optimal portfolio construction and hedging.

The Fund may invest in all money market instruments, U.S. Government obligations, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, and other cash or cash equivalent positions (collectively, "Cash Positions"). The Fund may invest in Cash Positions at any time to maintain liquidity, pending selection of investments by the Adviser, or if the Adviser believes that sufficient investment opportunities that meet the Fund's investment criteria are not available.

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION . .

Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities. CMBS are fixed income instruments that may be secured by interests in a single mortgage loan or a pool of mortgage loans that are secured by multifamily or commercial properties, such as industrial and warehouse properties, office buildings, retail space and shopping malls, cooperative apartments, hotels and motels, nursing homes, hospitals, trailer parks and senior living centers.

REIT and Other Equities. The Fund may invest in equities and related securities such as exchange traded funds ("ETFs") and equity indices. Equity investments may include indices, ETFs or public or private companies, and may be effected directly in common or preferred stocks, or indirectly or through warrants, options or other derivatives. In general, equity positions are expected primarily to focus on financially-related companies such as mortgage, commercial and other REITs; title, financial guaranty and other insurers and reinsurers; banks; marketplace and other lenders; mortgage originators; mortgage and other loan servicers; and homebuilders. REITs are entities that either own properties or make construction or mortgage loans, and also may include operating or finance companies.

Asset-Backed Securities. Asset-backed securities are structured like mortgage-backed securities, but instead of mortgage loans or interests in mortgage loans, the underlying assets may include such items as motor vehicle installment sales or installment loan contracts, home equity loans, assets in the aviation industry, including commercial aircrafts or aircraft leases, leases of various types of real, personal and other property (including those relating to automobiles, and intellectual property), and receivables from credit card agreements. The cash flow generated by the underlying assets is applied to make required payments on the securities and to pay related administrative expenses. The amount of residual cash flow resulting from a particular issue of asset-backed securities depends on, among other things, the characteristics of the underlying assets, the coupon rates on the securities, prevailing interest rates, the amount of administrative expenses and the actual prepayment experience on the underlying assets.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities. RMBS are fixed income instruments that may be secured by interests in a single residential mortgage loan or a pool of mortgage loans secured by residential property. RMBS may be senior, subordinate, interest-only, principal-only, investment-grade, non-investment grade or unrated. The Fund acquires RMBS from private originators as well as from other mortgage loan investors, including savings and loan associations, mortgage bankers, commercial banks, finance companies and investment banks. The credit quality of any RMBS issue depends primarily on the credit quality of the underlying mortgage loans. The investment characteristics of RMBS differ from traditional debt securities. Among the major differences are that interest and principal payments are made more frequently, usually monthly, and that principal may be prepaid at any time because the underlying residential mortgage loans or other assets generally may be prepaid at any time.

Structured Investments. The Fund may invest in structured investments, which may include:

Collateralized Debt Obligations. The term "CDO" refers to a class of debt or equity securities issued by an entity that owns a pool of assets. The payments to the holders of those CDO securities depend primarily on the cash flows generated by the assets owned by the issuer of the CDO. A synthetic CDO typically is backed by collateral in the form of an over-the-counter derivatives contract in which a portfolio of CDOs are the reference underlying securities.

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations. Each class of a CMO (often referred to as a "tranche") is a debt obligation secured by a pool of mortgage loans pledged as collateral that is legally required to be paid by the issuer, regardless of whether payments are actually made on the underlying mortgages. In a CMO, bonds or certificates are issued in multiple classes. Each class of a CMO is issued at a specific coupon rate and has a stated maturity or final distribution date. CMO residuals generally represent the interests in any excess cash flow from a CMO remaining after the CMO makes required payments of principal and interest to the CMO bondholders and has paid the CMO's administrative expenses.

Collateralized Loan Obligations. CLOs are limited recourse obligations of the issuer payable solely from the cashflow obligations of corporate borrowers that represent the underlying assets. Consequently, holders of the notes must rely solely on distributions of cashflows for the payment of principal and interest on their particular notes. If distributions of cashflows are insufficient to make full payment on a particular note, no other assets are available from which to pay any deficiencies. Investments in CLOs may include investments in income notes (a type of fixed income investment that produces interest income) and other residual interests.

The Fund may invest in any tranche of a structured investment vehicle, including junior debt, residual or equity tranches.

Stripped Mortgage-Related Securities. Stripped mortgage-related securities ("SMRS") usually are collateralized by a pool of mortgages or a pool of mortgage-backed bonds or pass-through securities. SMRS usually are structured with two classes that receive different proportions of the principal and interest payments from the underlying assets. A common type of SMRS has one class receiving some of the interest and most of the principal, while the other class receives most of the interest and some of the principal. In the most extreme case, one class of interest-only securities ("IOs") receives all of the interest payments from the underlying assets and one class of principal-only securities ("POs") receives all of the principal payments from the underlying assets.

Commercial Mortgage Mezzanine Loans and Participations. Mezzanine loans are secured by one or more direct or indirect ownership interests (which may be only partial ownership interests) in a company, partnership or other entity owning, operating or controlling, directly or through subsidiaries or affiliates, one or more commercial properties and interests therein ("Mezzanine Loans"), such as industrial and warehouse properties, office buildings, retail space and shopping malls, cooperative apartments, hotels and motels, nursing homes, hospitals, trailer parks and senior living centers. Purchasing mezzanine loans may require entering into intercreditor agreements, co-lender agreements and undertaking duties as a directing lender, including directing foreclosure proceedings, and may require the Fund and any transferee to have a minimum net worth and total assets. Participations in mezzanine loans are participations from the participating lender. The Fund may purchase participations or serve as the participating lender.

Pass-Through Mortgage-Related Securities. Interests in pools of mortgage-related securities differ from other forms of debt securities, which normally provide for periodic payment of interest in fixed amounts with principal payments at maturity or specified call dates. Instead, these securities provide a monthly payment consisting of both interest and principal payments. In effect, these payments are a "pass-through" of the monthly payments made by the individual borrowers on their residential mortgage loans, net of any fees paid to the issuer or guarantor of such securities. Additional payments may be generated by repayments of principal resulting from the sale of the underlying residential property, refinancing or foreclosure, net of fees or costs that may be incurred. Some mortgage-related securities, such as securities issued by the Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), are described as "modified pass-through." These securities entitle the holder to receive all interest and principal payments owed on the mortgage pool, net of certain fees, regardless of whether or not a mortgagor actually makes the payment.

Adjustable-Rate Mortgage Securities. Adjustable-rate mortgage securities ("ARMS") bear interest at a rate determined by reference to a predetermined interest rate or index. ARMS may be secured by fixed-rate mortgages or adjustable-rate mortgages. ARMS secured by fixed-rate mortgages generally have lifetime caps on the coupon rates of the securities. The adjustable-rate mortgages that secure ARMS will frequently have caps that limit the maximum amount by which the interest rate or the monthly principal and interest payments on the mortgages may increase.

High Yield Securities. The Fund may invest in below investment grade securities. These "high-yield" securities (also known as "junk bonds") will generally be rated BB or lower by S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") or of equivalent quality rating from another Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organization ("NRSRO"), or if unrated, considered by the Adviser to be of comparable quality. There is no minimum credit quality for securities in which the Fund may invest. Accordingly, the Fund may invest without limit in securities rated as low as D by S&P or of equivalent quality rating from another NRSRO or that are unrated securities of comparable quality.

International Securities. The Fund may invest in the securities of non-U.S. issuers, including direct investments in companies whose securities are principally traded outside the United States on foreign exchanges or foreign over-the-counter markets. The Fund may invest, without limit, in securities of companies in developed, developing or emerging markets.

Whole Loans. Whole loans involve the direct acquisition by the Fund of unsecuritized mortgage loans, including non-qualified mortgages, purchased from originators or warehouse providers. Unlike its investments in the mortgage-related securities described above, the Fund will have beneficial and record ownership of the whole loans purchased by it. The Fund may invest in loans bearing either fixed or adjustable interest rates. Loans may be non-performing and the Fund may engage one or more third parties to restructure a loan or foreclose on the related mortgage or other collateral. The Fund may acquire defaulted, distressed, non-performing or under-performing loans or properties or options to acquire the foregoing. The Fund may also seek a third-party purchaser for such loans or options and may finance the purchase by such third party.

Credit Derivatives. The Fund may invest in credit derivatives, which are contracts that transfer price, spread and/or default risks of debt and other instruments from one party to another. Such instruments may include one or more debtors or indices, such as CMBX and CDX. Payments under credit derivatives may be made during the exercise period of the contracts. Payments under many credit derivatives are triggered by credit events such as bankruptcy, default, restructuring, failure to pay, cross default or acceleration, interest shortfalls, principal shortfalls or writedowns, etc. Such payments may be for notional amounts, actual losses or amounts determined by a formula. The CMBX and CDX indices are administered by Markit Group Limited. The credit derivatives in which the Fund invests may include, among other things, total return swaps.

LEVERAGE.....

The Fund may use leverage to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. The Fund is permitted to obtain leverage using any form or combination of financial leverage instruments, including through funds borrowed from banks or other financial institutions (i.e., a credit facility), margin facilities, the issuance of preferred shares or notes and leverage generated by reverse repurchase agreements, dollar rolls or similar transactions in an aggregate amount up to 33 1/3% of the Fund's total assets, including any assets purchased with borrowed money, immediately after giving effect to the leverage. The Fund does not expect to issue preferred shares within the 12-month period from the date of the prospectus. The Fund may use leverage opportunistically and may use different types, combinations or amounts of leverage over time, based on the Adviser's views concerning market conditions and investment opportunities. The Fund's strategies relating to its use of leverage may not be successful, and the Fund's use of leverage will cause the Fund's NAV to be more volatile than it would otherwise be. There can be no guarantee that the Fund will leverage its assets or, to the extent the Fund does utilize leverage, what percentage of its assets such leverage will represent. See "Investment Objective and Strategies—Leverage."

MANAGEMENT FEE

Pursuant to the investment advisory agreement by and between the Fund and the Adviser (the "Investment Advisory Agreement"), and in consideration of the advisory services provided by the Adviser to the Fund, the Adviser is entitled to a management fee (the "Management Fee") equal to 1.25% of the Fund's average daily net assets. A discussion of the factors that the Fund's Board of Trustees ("Board") considered in its most recent approval of the Fund's advisory agreement will be available in the Fund's semi-annual report for the fiscal period ending April 30, 2023.

If you invest in the Fund through an investment adviser, bank, broker-dealer, 401(k) plan, trust company or other financial intermediary, the policies and fees for transacting business may be different than those described in this Prospectus. Some financial intermediaries may charge transaction fees and may set different minimum investments or limitations on buying or selling Shares. Some financial intermediaries do not charge a direct transaction fee, but instead charge a fee for services such as sub-transfer agency, accounting and/or Shareholder services that the financial intermediary provides on the Fund's behalf. This fee may be based on the number of accounts or may be a percentage of the average value of the Fund's Shareholder accounts for which the financial intermediary provides services. The Fund may pay a portion of this fee, which is intended to compensate the financial intermediary for providing the same services that would otherwise be provided by the Fund's transfer agent (the "Transfer Agent") or other service providers if the Shares were purchased directly from the Fund. To the extent that these fees are not paid by the Fund, the Adviser may pay a fee to financial intermediaries for such services.

ADMINISTRATOR AND TRANSFER AGENT

ALPS Fund Services, Inc. ("ALPS Fund Services") acts as administrator to the Fund. Pursuant to the Fund's agreement with ALPS Fund Services, the Fund will pay ALPS Fund Services a fee equal to 0.09% the average daily net assets of the Fund, subject to an annual minimum amount of \$15,000. SS&C Global Investor & Distribution Solutions, Inc. ("SS&C GIDS, Inc.") acts as transfer agent to the Fund. Pursuant to the Fund's agreement with SS&C GIDS, Inc., SS&C GIDS, Inc. will receive fees from the Fund for services performed as transfer agent. SS&C GIDS, Inc. receives a fee based on the average daily net assets of the Fund.

DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund intends to distribute to its Shareholders as dividends all or substantially all of its net investment income and any realized net capital gains. Distributions from the Fund's net investment income are accrued daily and typically paid monthly. However, there can be no assurances that the Fund will achieve any level of distribution to its Shareholders. See "Distributions."

The Board reserves the right to change the distribution policy from time to time.

Unless a Shareholder indicates another option on the account application, any dividends and capital gain distributions paid to the Shareholder by the Fund automatically will be invested in additional Shares of the Fund. Alternatively, a Shareholder may elect to have: (1) dividends and/or capital gain distributions paid in cash; or (2) the full amount of any dividends and capital gain distributions paid in cash.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES.....

The Board has overall responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the Fund's management and operations. A majority of the Trustees are Independent Trustees. See "Management of the Fund."

UNLISTED CLOSED-END INTERVAL FUND STRUCTURE .

The Fund has been organized as a continuously offered, non-diversified closed-end management investment company. Closed-end funds differ from open-end funds (commonly known as mutual funds) in that closed-end funds' shareholders do not have the right to redeem their Shares on a daily basis. Unlike most closed-end funds, which typically list their shares on a securities exchange, the Fund does not currently intend to list the Shares for trading on any securities exchange, and the Fund does not anticipate any secondary market to develop for the Shares in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, an investment in the Fund, unlike an investment

in a typical closed-end fund, should not be considered to be a liquid investment. In order to provide some liquidity to Shareholders, the Fund is structured as an "interval fund" and will conduct quarterly repurchase offers for a limited amount of the Shares (at least 5%).

The Fund's NAV per Share may be volatile. As the Shares are not traded, investors will not be able to dispose of their investment in the Fund no matter how poorly the Fund performs.

PURCHASES OF SHARES.

The Fund's Shares are offered on a daily basis. Please see "Purchasing Shares" for purchase instructions and additional information.

The minimum initial investment for Shares of the Fund is \$50,000 and subsequent investments therein may be made in any amount. The Fund reserves the right to waive the investment minimum. See "Distributions—Dividend Reinvestment Plan."

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

The Shares have no history of public trading, nor is it intended that the Shares will be listed on a public exchange at this time. No secondary market is expected to develop for the Fund's Shares.

The Fund is an "interval fund," which is designed to provide some liquidity to Shareholders by making quarterly offers to repurchase between 5% and 25% of its outstanding Shares at NAV, pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the 1940 Act, unless such offer is suspended or postponed in accordance with relevant regulatory requirements (as discussed below). In connection with any given repurchase offer, it is possible that the Fund may offer to repurchase only the minimum allowable amount of 5% of its outstanding Shares. Quarterly repurchases will occur in the months of March, June, September and December. The Fund's offer to purchase Shares is a fundamental policy that may not be changed without the approval of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities (as defined in the 1940 Act). Written notifications of each quarterly repurchase offer (the "Repurchase Offer Notice") will be sent to Shareholders at least 21 calendar days before the repurchase request deadline (i.e., the date by which Shareholders can tender their Shares in response to a repurchase offer) (the "Repurchase Request Deadline"), which is ordinarily on the third Friday of the month in which the repurchase occurs. The Fund expects to determine the NAV applicable to repurchases on the business day following the Repurchase Request Deadline. However, the NAV will be calculated no later than the 14th calendar day (or the next business day if the 14th calendar day is not a business day) after the Repurchase Request Deadline (the "Repurchase Pricing Date"), although the NAV is expected to be determined on the business day following the Repurchase Request Deadline. The Fund expects to distribute payment to Shareholders between one and three business days after the Repurchase Pricing Date and will distribute such payment no later than seven calendar days after such Date. The Shares are not listed on any securities exchange, and the Fund anticipates that no secondary market will develop for the Shares. Accordingly, you may not be able to sell Shares when and/or in the amount that you desire. Thus, the Shares are appropriate only as a long-term investment. In addition, the Fund's repurchase offers may subject the Fund and Shareholders to special risks. See "Types of Investments and Related Risks-Repurchase Offers Risks."

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION....

ALPS Distributors, Inc., (the "Distributor" or "ALPS"), located at 1290 Broadway, Suite 1000, Denver, CO 80203, serves as the Fund's principal underwriter and acts as the Distributor of the Fund's Shares on a best efforts basis, subject to various conditions. The Fund's Shares are offered for sale through the Distributor at NAV. The Distributor also may enter into broker-dealer selling agreements with other broker dealers for the sale and distribution of the Shares.

The Distributor is not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of Shares, but will use it best efforts to solicit orders for the sale of the Shares. Shares will not be listed on any national securities exchange and the Distributor will not act as a market maker in Shares.

ERISA PLANS AND OTHER TAX-EXEMPT ENTITIES

Investors subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and other tax-exempt entities, including employee benefit plans, individual retirement accounts ("IRAs"), 401(k) plans and Keogh plans, may purchase Shares. Because the Fund is registered as an investment company under the 1940 Act, the underlying assets of the Fund will not be considered to be "plan assets" of the ERISA plans investing in the Fund for purposes of ERISA's fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction rules. Thus, neither the Fund nor the Adviser will be a fiduciary within the meaning of ERISA with respect to the assets of any ERISA plan that becomes a Shareholder, solely as a result of the ERISA plan's investment in the Fund. See "ERISA Considerations."

VALUATIONS.....

The price at which you purchase or redeem Shares is based on the Fund's NAV. The Fund's NAV is calculated at the close of trading (normally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on each day the NYSE and the principal bond markets (as recommended by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association) are open for regular trading (e.g., the NYSE is closed on weekends, most federal holidays and Good Friday). The Fund's NAV is calculated by dividing the value of the Fund's total assets (including interest and dividends accrued but not yet received) minus liabilities (including accrued expenses) by the total number of Shares outstanding. Requests to purchase Shares are processed at the NAV next calculated after the Fund receives your order in proper form. If the NYSE is closed due to inclement weather, technology problems or any other reason on a day it would normally be open for business, or the NYSE has an unscheduled early closing on a day it has opened for business, the Fund reserves the right to treat such day as a business day and accept purchase orders until, and calculate the Fund's NAV as of, the normally scheduled close of regular trading on the NYSE for that day, so long as Fund management believes there remains an adequate market to meet purchase orders for that day.

In the event the Fund holds portfolio securities that trade in foreign markets or that are primarily listed on foreign exchanges that trade on weekends or other days when the Fund does not price its Shares, the NAV of the Fund's Shares may change on days when Shareholders will not be able to purchase the Fund's Shares.

The Board has approved procedures pursuant to which the Fund will value its investments and has delegated to the Adviser, as valuation designee, general responsibility for determining, in accordance with such procedures, the value of such investments. Generally, portfolio investments for which market quotations are readily available are valued at market value, which is ordinarily determined based on official closing prices or the last reported sale prices of an instrument. Where no such closing price or sale price is reported, market value is determined based on quotes obtained from market makers or prices supplied by one or more third-party pricing source ("Pricing Services"), which may include evaluated prices. Many of the types of investments in which the Fund invests are valued using evaluated prices provided by Pricing Services, which prices may be based on a number of factors, including, among other things, information obtained from market makers and estimates based on recent market prices for investments with similar characteristics. If market or evaluated prices are not readily available (including when the Adviser determines that prices are not reliable), or if an event occurs after the close of the trading market but before the calculation of the Fund's NAV that materially affects the values, assets may be valued at a fair value by the Adviser, as valuation designee.

Fair valuation may occur in instances when market or evaluated prices are not available or are deemed not to be reliable or accurate in the opinion of the Adviser, or if an event occurs after the close of the trading market but before the calculation of the NAV that materially affects the values. Fair valuation could also occur in instances of (a) thinly traded securities or (b) lack of liquidity or depth in the market for the security. For example, the Fund may be obligated to fair value a foreign security because many foreign markets operate at times that do not coincide with those of the major U.S. markets. In such situations, the Adviser may consider, when calculating fair value, (a) the nature and duration of the restrictions upon disposition of the securities or other assets, (b) the extent to which there is market for similar securities or other assets of the same class, or (c) availability of fundamental analytical data relating to the investment including the use of proprietary pricing models. When pricing securities using these methods, the Fund (with the assistance of its Pricing Services and other service providers) seeks to assign the value that represents the amount that the Fund might reasonably expect to receive upon a current sale of the securities. In this regard, the Adviser, pursuant to the terms of the investment advisory agreement with the Fund, has agreed to provide the Fund's pricing information that the Adviser reasonably believes may assist in the determination of fair value consistent with requirements under the 1940 Act and the Fund's policies and procedures. The Fund's policies and procedures include the consideration of pricing information from one or more Pricing Services which information is monitored by the Adviser daily.

When using pricing models or other pricing methods that are not based solely on market quotes for actively-traded securities, the Adviser's review process may include periodic back-testing by appropriate valuation personnel or third-party service providers, when applicable, of a sample of valuations, to the extent possible and where it is likely to provide a reasonable base of comparison, against the recent sale prices of investment positions. Back-testing, if performed, may focus on identifying trends in valuations versus sale prices, not the accuracy of individual marks for individual investment positions. Differences will be expected and viewed in the context of the overall analysis, especially since back-testing has inherent limitations, particularly during periods of market stress. This analysis can provide further assurance in assessing the quality of models and other evaluative processes being employed internally or by third-party service providers, but not absolute certainty to the accuracy of the fair value itself.

In calculating the Fund's NAV, the Adviser, as valuation designee, uses various valuation techniques. To the extent practicable, the Adviser generally endeavors to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs are to be used when available. The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from investment to investment and are affected by a wide variety of factors. When valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment, and may involve alternative methods to obtain fair values where market prices are not readily available. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used if a ready market for the investments existed. As a result, the Adviser may exercise a higher degree of judgement in determining fair value for certain financial instruments.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, given the subjectivity inherent in fair valuation and the fact that events could occur after NAV calculation, the actual market prices for a security may differ from the fair value of that security as determined by the Fund at the time of NAV calculation. Thus, discrepancies between fair values and actual market prices may occur on a regular and recurring basis. These discrepancies do not necessarily indicate that the Fund's fair value methodology is inappropriate. The Fund will adjust the fair values assigned to securities in the Fund's portfolio, to the extent necessary, as soon as market prices become available. The Fund (and its service providers) continually monitor and evaluate the appropriateness of their fair value methodologies through systematic comparisons of fair values to the actual next available market prices of securities contained in the Fund's portfolio. To the extent the Fund invests in other investment companies, the Fund's NAV is calculated based, in part, upon the NAVs of such investment companies; the prospectuses for those investment companies in which the Fund will invest describe the circumstances under which those investment companies will use fair value pricing, which, in turn, affects their NAVs.

Because the Fund relies on various sources to calculate its NAVs, the Fund is subject to certain operational risks associated with reliance on the Pricing Services and other service providers and data sources. The Fund's NAV calculation may be impacted by operational risks arising from factors such as failures in systems and technology. Such failures may result in delays in the calculation of the Fund's NAV and/or the inability to calculate NAV over extended time periods. The Fund may be unable to recover any losses associated with such failures.

SUMMARY OF TAXATION....

The Fund has elected to be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and has qualified and intends to continue to qualify annually, as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). As a RIC, the Fund generally will not be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any net ordinary income or capital gains that is currently distributed as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to Shareholders, as applicable. To maintain its qualification as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Fund is required to meet certain specified source-of-income and asset diversification requirements, and is required to distribute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes of an amount at least equal to 90% of the sum of its net ordinary income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses each tax year to Shareholders, as applicable. See "Distributions" and "Tax Aspects."

For accounting purposes, the Fund's fiscal year is the 12-month period ending on October 31.

REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS

As soon as practicable after the end of each calendar year, a statement on Form 1099-DIV identifying the sources of the distributions paid by the Fund to Shareholders for tax purposes will be furnished to Shareholders subject to Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") reporting. In addition, the Fund will prepare and transmit to Shareholders an unaudited semi-annual and an audited annual report within 60 days after the close of the period for which the report is being made, or as otherwise required by the 1940 Act.

RISK FACTORS.....

The principal risks of investing in the Fund are summarized below. There may be circumstances that could prevent the Fund from achieving its investment objective and you may lose money by investing in the Fund. You should carefully consider the Fund's investment risks before deciding whether to invest in the Fund. An investment in the Fund is not a deposit at a bank and is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency.

For a more complete discussion of the risks of investing in the Fund, see "Types of Investments and Related Risks." Shareholders should consider carefully the following principal risks before investing in the Fund.

- Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities Risks. Collateral underlying CMBS generally consists of mortgage loans secured by income-producing property or other CMBS. Performance of a commercial mortgage loan and the market value of a commercial property both depend primarily on the net income generated by the underlying mortgaged property and performance of the related business (including property management). As a result, income generation will affect both the likelihood of default and the severity of losses with respect to a commercial mortgage loan. Issues associated with managing a commercial property may impact both performance and market value. The value of commercial real estate is also subject to limitations on remedies imposed by bankruptcy laws and state laws regarding foreclosure and rights of redemption. In addition, the unavailability of real estate financing may lead to default of mortgage loans on commercial properties, and there is no recourse against the borrower's assets other than the collateral except in the case of borrowers acting fraudulently or otherwise illegally. As a result, payments on the CMBS may be adversely affected in such cases. Higher CMBS delinquency rates resulting from the economic impacts of COVID-19 or otherwise, and other COVID-19-related impacts on CMBS, could adversely affect the Fund's investments.
- Concentration in Certain Mortgage-Related Assets Risk. The risks of concentrating in mortgage-related
 assets, including RMBS (agency and non-agency), CMBS and other mortgage-backed securities include
 susceptibility to changes in interest rates and the risks associated with the market's perception of issuers,
 the creditworthiness of the parties involved and investing in real estate securities.
- **REIT Risk.** Investments in REITS and in securities of other companies principally engaged in the real estate industry subject the Fund to, among other things, risks similar to those of direct investments in real estate and the real estate industry in general. These include risks related to general and local economic conditions, possible lack of availability of financing and changes in interest rates or property values.
- Asset-Backed Securities Risks. Asset-backed securities are subject to credit risk, interest rate risk, and to a
 lesser degree, prepayment risk. Asset-backed securities may also be subject to additional risks, including
 the fact that underlying assets may be unsecured.
- Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities Risks. Collateral underlying RMBS generally consists of mortgage
 loans secured by residential real estate or other RMBS. In addition to the risks associated with other
 asset-backed securities as described above, mortgage-backed securities are subject to the general
 risks associated with investing in real estate securities; that is, they may lose value if the value of the

underlying real estate to which a pool of mortgages relates declines. In addition, the rate of prepayments on underlying mortgages affects the price and volatility of a mortgage-backed security, and may have the effect of shortening or extending the effective maturity beyond what was anticipated.

- Aircraft and Aviation Industry Risk. The Fund may invest in securities collateralized or otherwise backed by assets in the aviation industry, including commercial aircraft and loans and leases thereof. Economic declines and recessions, geopolitical conflict, the price of petroleum, the availability of more attractively priced and/or more efficient aircraft, price discounting by manufacturers of new aircraft, obsolescence (whether due to changes in technology or changes in regulation, particularly regulation related to environmental standards), and the occurrence or threat of pandemic, terrorism or war can have a material effect on aircraft values, especially in the short term, but the effect may be long-term or permanent. Most of these circumstances either cannot be predicted or cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty, but will adversely affect the value of securities held by the Fund. In addition to factors linked to the aviation industry, other factors that may affect the value of an aircraft include: (i) manufacturers merging or exiting the industry or ceasing to produce aircraft types; (ii) the particular maintenance and operating history of the aircraft and engines; (iii) the number of operators using that type of aircraft; (iv) whether the aircraft is subject to a lease; (v) regulatory and legal requirements that must be satisfied before the aircraft can be operated, sold or re-leased, including airworthiness directives; (iv) layout of the aircraft amongst operators of particular aircraft; and (vii) any renegotiation of a lease on less favorable terms. Changes in the economic and public health situation, which can result in widespread travel restrictions and reduced travel demand at times, may have adverse effects on the value and liquidity of aircraft securitizations. To the extent an investment is collateralized or otherwise backed by assets in the aviation industry that are located outside the United States, such investment will be subject to the risks associated with non-U.S. investments, including risks of exposure to government restrictions, including confiscatory taxation, expropriation or nationalization of a company's assets.
- Structured Investments Risks. The Fund may invest in entities organized and operated for the purpose of restructuring the investment characteristics of other debt securities, which may include CDOs, CLOs and CMOs. The Fund will not own the underlying assets of these entities directly, the Fund will not benefit from rights that holders of the assets have, including indemnification and voting rights. Structured finance securities entail risks that are associated with their underlying assets and risks resulting from the entities' structure and execution. Additionally, investments in the equity tranches (or other similar junior tranches) of structured investments typically represent the first loss position, are unrated and may be highly leveraged, which magnifies the risk of loss on such investments.
- Direct Lending/Origination Risk. To the extent that the Fund invests in loans or privately placed debt
 securities that are directly or indirectly originated by the Fund or purchased from the originator, the Fund
 will be subject to the risk associated with investing in commercial and residential mortgages and loans
 and to certain additional risks and expenses, which may include the risks and expenses of servicing the
 accompanying debt and, if necessary, of foreclosure.
- Interest Rate Risk. For the past decade, the U.S. has experienced historically low interest rates. In 2022, however, interest rates rose steadily as the Federal Reserve began to raise the federal funds rate as part of its efforts to address rising inflation. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. The value of longer-term securities generally changes more in response to changes in interest rates than shorter-term securities. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, some fixed income securities may experience increased volatility and may lose value, which could adversely impact the Fund's net asset value. Rising interest rates could also impair the ability of borrowers to service interest payment obligations and make principal loan repayments, which could adversely impact the Fund's net investment income and its distributions to Shareholders. Additionally, decreases in the value of fixed income securities could lead to increased shareholder redemptions, which could impair the Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.
- Commercial and Residential Mortgages and Loans Risks. Investing in commercial and residential
 mortgage loans involves the general risks typically associated with investing in traditional fixed-income
 securities (including interest rate and credit risk) and certain additional risks and special considerations
 (including the risk of principal prepayment and the risk of investing in real estate).
- Conflicts of Interest Risk. There are significant and potential conflicts of interest that could impact the Fund's investment returns, including the potential for portfolio managers to devote unequal time and attention to the management of the Fund and any other accounts managed; allocate a limited investment opportunity among more than one client for whom the investment may be suitable; and acquire material non-public information or otherwise be restricted from trading in certain potential investments.
- Credit Risk. Certain investments may be exposed to the credit risk of the counterparties with whom the Fund deals.
- Derivatives Risks. Credit derivatives are contracts that transfer price, spread and/or default risks of debt
 and other instruments from one party to another. Such instruments may be illiquid or less liquid, volatile,
 difficult to price and leveraged so that small changes in the value of the underlying instruments may

produce disproportionate losses to the Fund. In addition, the Fund is subject to the credit risk associated with the underlying assets of a derivatives contract as well as the risk of counterparty default. As a result, the Fund's use of derivatives could result in losses, which could be significant.

- Distributions Risk. The Fund's distributions may include a return of capital, thus reducing a Shareholder's cost basis in his or her Fund Shares and reducing the amount of capital available to the Fund for investment and likely increasing the Fund's expense ratio. A Shareholder who receives a capital distribution may be subject to tax even though the Shareholder has experienced a net loss on his or her investment in the Fund. Any capital returned to Shareholders through distributions will be distributed after the payment of fees and expenses. Shareholders who periodically receive payment of a distribution consisting of a return of capital may be under the impression that they are receiving net income or profits when they are not. A return of capital to Shareholders is a return of a portion of their original investment in the Fund. Shareholders should not assume that the source of a distribution from the Fund is net income or profit.
- Extension Risk. When interest rates rise, certain obligations may be paid off by the obligor more slowly
 than anticipated, causing the value of these securities to fall.
- Foreign Currency Risk. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates may adversely affect the U.S. dollar
 value of and returns on foreign denominated investments.
- General Market Risk. The capital markets may experience periods of disruption, instability and volatility. Such
 conditions may materially and adversely affect the markets globally and in the jurisdictions in which the Fund
 invests, which may have a negative impact on the Fund's performance. The Fund's NAV and investment return will
 fluctuate based on changes in the value of its portfolio securities. Certain market events could cause turbulence
 in financial markets, and reduced liquidity in equity, credit and fixed income markets, which may negatively affect
 many issuers domestically and around the world. During periods of market volatility, security prices (including
 securities held by the Fund) could change drastically and rapidly and therefore adversely affect the Fund.
- High Yield Securities Risk. The Fund may invest in below investment grade and/or unrated instruments (also known as "junk bonds"), which may include securities rated as low as "D" or unrated securities of comparable quality. Such instruments are regarded as predominantly speculative with respect to an issuer's capacity to pay interest and repay principal. Lower grade instruments may be particularly susceptible to economic downturns. It is likely that a prolonged or deepening economic recession could adversely affect the ability of the issuers of such instruments to repay principal and pay interest thereon, increase the incidence of default for such instruments and severely disrupt the market value of such instruments. Debt rated "D" is in default or is expected to default upon maturity of payment date. Such investments are inherently speculative and involve major risk exposure to adverse conditions. There is no minimum credit quality for securities in which the Fund may invest.
- Illiquidity Risk. It is expected that most of the securities and instruments held by the Fund will not trade
 on an exchange. Illiquid securities may be difficult to dispose of at a fair price at the times when the Fund
 believes it is desirable to do so. The Fund may be forced to sell securities at inopportune prices to meet
 Shareholder repurchase requests or to satisfy margin calls.
- Leverage. The Fund may use leverage, which will cause the Fund's NAV to be more volatile than it would
 otherwise be, may cause the Fund to experience losses if earnings on the investments made with borrowed
 money do not cover the costs of borrowing and may increase the risk of investing with the Fund.
- **Non-Diversification Risk.** The Fund is classified as "non-diversified" under the 1940 Act. As a result, it can invest a greater portion of its assets in obligations of a single issuer than a "diversified" fund. The Fund may therefore be more susceptible than a diversified fund to being adversely affected by a single corporate, economic, political or regulatory occurrence.
- Non-U.S. Investments Risks. Non-U.S. investments may be traded in undeveloped, inefficient and less
 liquid markets and may experience greater price volatility and changes in value. Investments in emerging
 markets can impose greater risk than investing in developed foreign markets.
- Regulatory and Legal Risk. Legal and regulatory changes, including those implemented in connection with
 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act"), could occur,
 which may materially adversely affect the Fund.
- Repurchase Offer Risks. Although the Fund intends to implement a quarterly Share repurchase program, there is no guarantee that an investor will be able to sell all of the Shares he or she desires to sell. Accordingly, the Fund should be considered an illiquid investment.
- Risk Relating to the Fund's RIC Status. To qualify and remain eligible for the special tax treatment
 accorded to RICs and their Shareholders under the Code, the Fund must meet certain source-of-income,
 asset diversification and annual distribution requirements, and failure to do so could result in the loss of
 RIC status.

- **Security Selection Risk.** The Fund's financial condition and results of operations could be negatively affected if a significant investment fails to perform as expected.
- Unrated Securities Risk. The Fund may purchase unrated securities which are not rated by a rating agency.
 Unrated securities may be less liquid than comparable rated securities and involve the risk that the Adviser may not accurately evaluate the security's comparative credit rating.
- Valuation Risk. The valuation of securities or instruments that lack a central trading place (such as fixed-income securities or instruments) may carry greater risk than those that trade on an exchange. Accordingly, there is a risk that the determination of the fair value of a security or instrument will not approximate the price at which the Fund could sell the security or instrument at the time of the fair valuation.

Accordingly, the Fund should be considered a speculative investment that entails substantial risks, and prospective investors should invest in the Fund only if they can sustain a complete loss of their investment.

SUMMARY OF FEES AND EXPENSES

The following table illustrates the fees and expenses that you may pay if you buy and hold Shares of the Fund.

SHAREHOLDER TRANSACTION EXPENSES

Maximum Sales Charge (Load) Imposed on Purchases	None
Maximum Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (Load)	None
ANNUAL FUND EXPENSES (as a percentage of average net assets attributable to Shares (i.e., common shares))	
Management Fee	1.25%
Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses	0.02%
Other Expenses ⁽¹⁾	1.24%
Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses	2.51%

⁽¹⁾ Other expenses include accounting, legal and auditing fees of the Fund, as well as the reimbursement of the compensation of administrative personnel and fees payable to the Independent Trustees.

Example:

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total expenses that would be incurred over various periods with respect to a hypothetical investment in the Fund. In calculating the following expense amounts, the Fund has assumed its direct and indirect annual operating expenses would remain at the percentage levels set forth in the table above.

An investor would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment, assuming a 5.0% annual return:

1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
\$25	\$78	\$133	\$284

The example and the expenses in the tables above should not be considered a representation of the Fund's future expenses, and actual expenses may be greater or less than those shown. While the example assumes a 5.0% annual return, as required by the SEC, the Fund's performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5.0%. For a more complete description of the various fees and expenses borne directly and indirectly by the Fund, see "Fund Expenses" and "Management Fee."

The Adviser has contractually agreed to waive its fees and/or reimburse certain expenses (inclusive of organizational and offering costs, but exclusive of any taxes, interest on borrowings, dividends on securities sold short, brokerage commissions, 12b-1 fees, acquired fund fees and expenses, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization and extraordinary expenses) to limit the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses after Fee Waiver/Expense Reimbursement to 2.00% of the Fund's average daily net assets (the "Expense Limit") through February 28, 2024. The Expense Limit excludes certain expenses and, consequently, the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses after Fee Waiver/Expense Reimbursement may be higher than the Expense Limit. The contractual waiver and expense reimbursement may be changed or eliminated at any time by the Board of Trustees, on behalf of the Fund, upon 60 days' written notice to the Adviser. The contractual fee waiver and expense reimbursement may not be terminated by the Adviser without the consent of the Board of Trustees. The Adviser may recoup from the Fund any waived amount or reimbursed expenses pursuant to this agreement if such recoupment does not cause the Fund to exceed the current Expense Limit or the Expense Limit in place at the time of the waiver or reimbursement (whichever is lower) and the recoupment is made within three years after the end of the month in which the Adviser incurred the expense.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights tables are intended to help you understand the Fund's financial performance for the period since the Fund commenced operations. Certain information reflects financial results for a single Fund share. The total returns in the table represent the rate that an investor would have earned or lost on an investment in the Fund (assuming reinvestment of all dividends and distributions). This information has been audited by Cohen & Company, Ltd., the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm, whose report, along with the Fund's financial statements and financial highlights are included in the Fund's annual report, which is available upon request by calling the Fund at (833) 429-6642.

For a Share Outstanding Throughout the Periods Presented

	 e Year Ended ber 31, 2022	 e Year Ended ber 31, 2021	 e Year Ended ber 31, 2020	Decer (Com of Op	the Period nber 31, 2018 imencement perations) to ber 31, 2019
OPERATING PERFORMANCE:					
Net asset value - beginning of period	\$ 22.54	\$ 21.02	\$ 25.69	\$	25.00
INCOME/(LOSS) FROM INVESTMENT OPERATIONS:					
Net investment income ^(a)	1.64	2.57	0.53		0.74
Net realized and unrealized gain/(loss) on investments	(1.46)	0.85	(3.80)		0.63
Total Income/(Loss) from Investment Operations	0.18	3.42	(3.27)		1.37
DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS:					
From net investment income	(2.10)	(1.90)	(0.76)		(0.68)
From net realized gains	(0.18)	` _	(0.64)		·
From return of capital	(0.15)	_	_		_
Total Distributions to Shareholders	(2.43)	(1.90)	(1.40)		(0.68)
Net asset value - end of period	\$ 20.29	\$ 22.54	\$ 21.02	\$	25.69
Total Investment Return - Net Asset Value ^(b)	0.74%	16.72%	(13.22%)		5.52% ^(c)
RATIOS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA:					
Net assets end of period (000s)	\$ 99,789	\$ 33,456	\$ 12,869	\$	1,787
Including Interest Expense					
Ratio of expenses to average net assets excluding					
reimbursement and recoupment of expenses ^(d)	2.22%	2.54%	N/A		N/A
Ratio of expenses to average net assets including					
reimbursement and recoupment of expenses ^(d)	2.49%	2.35%	N/A		N/A
Excluding Interest Expense					
Ratio of expenses to average net assets excluding	4.700/	2.400/	42.000/		CO 200((a)
reimbursement and recoupment of expenses ^(d) Ratio of expenses to average net assets including	1.73%	2.19%	12.00%		60.30% ^(e)
reimbursement and recoupment of expenses ^(d)	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%		2.00% ^(e)
Ratio of net investment income to average net assets ^(d)	7.70%	11.51%	2.55%		3.49% ^(e)
Portfolio turnover rate	50%	41%	56%		48% ^(c)
BORROWINGS AT END OF PERIOD					
Aggregate Amount Outstanding (000s)	\$ 14,927	\$ 8,607	N/A		N/A
Asset Coverage Per \$1,000 (000s)	\$ 7,685	\$ 4,887	N/A		N/A

⁽a) Calculated using average shares method.

THE FUND

The Fund is a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that is registered under the 1940 Act. The Fund is structured as an "interval fund" and continuously offers its Shares. The Fund was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on September 26, 2018. The principal office of the Fund is located at 520 Madison Avenue, 42nd Floor, New York, New York 10022, and its telephone number is (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic).

⁽b) Total returns would have been lower had certain expenses not been reimbursed during the period. Returns shown do not reflect the deduction of taxes that a shareholder would pay on Fund distributions or the redemption of Fund shares. Returns shown exclude applicable sales charges.

⁽c) Not annualized.

⁽d) Expenses and net investment income/(loss) amounts used to calculate the ratios above include amounts allocated to investors. An individual investor's results may vary based on a variety of factors and the timing of capital transactions.

⁽e) Annualized.

THE ADVISER

Axonic Capital LLC, 520 Madison Avenue, 42nd Floor, New York, New York 10022, an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the Advisers Act, serves as the investment adviser to the Fund. The Adviser has overall supervisory management responsibility for the general management and investment of the Fund's portfolio. The Adviser was formed in 2010 and provides advisory services to high net worth individuals, institutions and investment companies. As of September 30, 2022, the Adviser had net assets under management of approximately \$4 billion. The Adviser is controlled by Clayton DeGiacinto, the Managing Member of Axonic.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Fund will invest the proceeds of the offering of Shares in accordance with its investment objective and policies as stated below. The Adviser presently anticipates that the Fund will be able to fully invest the net proceeds according to its investment objectives and policies within approximately one month after receipt of the proceeds, depending on the amount and timing of proceeds available to the Fund as well as the availability of securities consistent with the Fund's investment objective and strategies. A delay in the anticipated use of proceeds could lower returns and reduce the Fund's distribution to Shareholders. Pending investment of the net proceeds, the Fund will invest the offering proceeds in high-quality, short-term debt securities, cash and/or cash equivalents.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES

Investment Objective

The Fund seeks total return.

Investment Opportunities and Strategies

In pursuing its investment objective, the Fund invests primarily in income-producing instruments. Such instruments may consist of: (i) mortgagebacked securities ("MBS"), including residential mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS") and commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS"); (ii) other asset-backed securities ("ABS") and structured credit instruments, including those backed by instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from or financing of various assets (such as assets in the aviation industry and automobiles), collateralized debt obligations ("CDOs"), collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs") and collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs") and various commercial and consumer loans (and participations thereon) or receivables held in trust; (iii) whole loans and participations in whole loans, including commercial mortgage mezzanine loans and participations ("Mezzanine Loans") and whole residential and commercial mortgage loans and participations; and (iv) other income-producing investments, including corporate and bank-issued bonds, loans and participations, and instruments representing the ownership and cashflows from or financing of various assets (including assets in the aviation industry, automobiles and intellectual property royalties). Instruments acquired by the Fund may be fixed, floating or inverse floating; interest-only or principal-only (i.e., stripped securities); of any maturity or no maturity; senior or subordinate (including equity tranches of structured credit instruments); and/or secured or unsecured. In addition, loans acquired by the Fund may be directly or indirectly originated by the Fund or purchased from other originators. There is no limit on the amount of Fund assets that may be invested in the junior debt, residual or equity tranches of any of the structured finance vehicles in which the Fund may invest. The Fund's investments may be of any credit quality, including, without limitation, investments that are distressed or in default, unrated or rated below investment grade (commonly referred to as "high yield" or "junk" instruments). The Fund's investments may be issued by U.S. and non-U.S. issuers. There is no limit on the percentage of the Fund's assets that may be invested in the securities or loans of non-U.S. issuers or obligors, including, without limitation, securities of emerging markets issuers and obligors. Fund investments may also include private placement debt securities. The Fund may often be the sole buyer of such securities designed for purchase by the Fund.

The Fund also may invest in real estate investment trust ("REIT") stocks and other equity securities and indices.

In addition, for speculative or hedging purposes, the Fund may use various cleared and uncleared over-the-counter and exchange-traded derivatives, including swaps (such as total return swaps), options, swaptions, structured notes (such as CLNs), futures and forward agreements on financial instruments, equity securities and indices, debt instruments and indices, government securities, treasuries, currencies and commodities.

The Fund's portfolio will be deemed to be non-diversified under the 1940 Act, meaning it may invest a greater percentage of its assets in a single or limited number of issuers than a diversified fund. Under normal circumstances, the Fund will concentrate its investments (*i.e.*, invest 25% or more of its total assets (measured at the time of purchase)) in mortgage-related assets issued by government agencies or other governmental entities or by private originators or issuers.

To the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, the Fund's positions may be leveraged, and may be financed by various sources of funding, including bank lines, margin trading, short positions, derivatives (including total return swaps and forward transactions), reverse repurchase arrangements and participations.

The Fund may invest in private funds (i.e. hedge funds and private equity funds) that rely on the exclusion from the definition of "investment company" in Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act. The Fund will limit any investments in such entities to no more than 15% of the Fund's total net assets. Notwithstanding this limitation, the Fund may invest, without limitation, in structured finance vehicles, CDOs, CLOs or entities other than hedge funds and private equity funds not traditionally considered pooled investment vehicles, certain of which may, in some cases, rely on Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7).

The Fund may invest in all money market instruments, U.S. Government obligations, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, and other cash or cash equivalent positions (collectively, "Cash Positions"). The Fund may invest in Cash Positions at any time to maintain liquidity, pending selection of investments by the Adviser, or if the Adviser believes that sufficient investment opportunities that meet the Fund's investment criteria are not available.

Portfolio Composition

Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities. CMBS are fixed income instruments that may be secured by interests in a single mortgage loan or a pool of mortgage loans that are secured by multifamily or commercial properties, such as industrial and warehouse properties, office buildings, retail space and shopping malls, cooperative apartments, hotels and motels, nursing homes, hospitals, trailer parks and senior living centers.

REIT and Other Equities. The Fund may invest in equities and related securities such as exchange traded funds ("ETFs") and equity indices. Equity investments may include indices, ETFs or public or private companies, and may be effected directly in common or preferred stocks, or indirectly or through warrants, options or other derivatives. In general, equity positions are expected primarily to focus on financially-related companies such as mortgage, commercial and other REITs; title, financial guaranty and other insurers and reinsurers; banks; marketplace and other lenders; mortgage originators; mortgage and other loan servicers; and homebuilders. REITs are entities that either own properties or make construction or mortgage loans, and also may include operating or finance companies.

Asset-Backed Securities. Asset-backed securities ("ABS") are structured like mortgage-backed securities, but instead of mortgage loans or interests in mortgage loans, the underlying assets may include such items as installment sales or loan contracts, leases of various types of real and personal property, and receivables from credit card agreements and from sales of personal property. Regular payments received on asset-backed securities include both interest and principal. Asset-backed securities typically have no U.S. government backing. Additionally, the ability of an issuer of asset-backed securities to enforce its security interest in the underlying assets may be limited.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities. RMBS are fixed income instruments that may be secured by interests in a single residential mortgage loan or a pool of mortgage loans secured by residential property. RMBS may be senior, subordinate, interest-only, principal-only, investment-grade, non-investment grade or unrated. The Fund acquires RMBS from private originators as well as from other mortgage loan investors, including savings and loan associations, mortgage bankers, commercial banks, finance companies and investment banks. The credit quality of any RMBS issue depends primarily on the credit quality of the underlying mortgage loans. The investment characteristics of RMBS differ from traditional debt securities. Among the major differences are that interest and principal payments are made more frequently, usually monthly, and that principal may be prepaid at any time because the underlying residential mortgage loans or other assets generally may be prepaid at any time.

Structured Investments. The Fund may invest in structured investments, which may include:

Collateralized Debt Obligations. The term "CDO" refers to a class of debt or equity securities issued by an entity that owns a pool of assets. The payments to the holders of those CDO securities depend primarily on the cash flows generated by the assets owned by the issuer of the CDO. A synthetic CDO typically is backed by collateral in the form of an over-the-counter derivatives contract in which a portfolio of CDOs are the reference underlying securities.

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations. Each class of a CMO (often referred to as a "tranche") is a debt obligation secured by a pool of mortgage loans pledged as collateral that is legally required to be paid by the issuer, regardless of whether payments are actually made on the underlying mortgages. In a CMO, bonds or certificates are issued in multiple classes. Each class of a CMO is issued at a specific coupon rate and has a stated maturity or final distribution date. CMO residuals generally represent the interests in any excess cash flow from a CMO remaining after the CMO makes required payments of principal and interest to the CMO bondholders and has paid the CMO's administrative expenses.

Collateralized Loan Obligations. CLOs are limited recourse obligations of the issuer payable solely from the cashflow obligations of corporate borrowers that represent the underlying assets. Consequently, holders of the notes must rely solely on distributions of cashflows for the payment of principal and interest on their particular notes. If distributions of cashflows are insufficient to make full payment on a particular note, no other assets are available from which to pay any deficiencies. Investments in CLOs may include investments in income notes (a type of fixed income investment that produces interest income) and other residual interests.

Stripped Mortgage-Related Securities. Stripped mortgage-related securities ("SMRS") usually are collateralized by a pool of mortgages or a pool of mortgage-backed bonds or pass-through securities. SMRS usually are structured with two classes that receive different proportions of the principal and interest payments from the underlying assets. A common type of SMRS has one class receiving some of the interest and most of the principal, while the other class receives most of the interest and some of the principal. In the most extreme case, one class of interest-only securities ("IOs") receives all of the interest payments from the underlying assets and one class of principal-only securities ("POs") receives all of the principal payments from the underlying assets.

Commercial Mortgage Mezzanine Loans and Participations. Mezzanine loans are secured by one or more direct or indirect ownership interests (which may be only partial ownership interests) in a company, partnership or other entity owning, operating or controlling, directly or through subsidiaries or affiliates, one or more commercial properties and interests therein ("Mezzanine Loans"), such as industrial and warehouse properties, office buildings, retail space and shopping malls, cooperative apartments, hotels and motels, nursing homes, hospitals, trailer parks and senior living centers. Purchasing mezzanine loans may require entering into intercreditor agreements, co-lender agreements and undertaking duties as a directing lender, including directing foreclosure proceedings, and may require the Fund and any transferee to have a minimum net worth and total assets. Participations in mezzanine loans are participations from the participating lender. The Fund may purchase participations or serve as the participating lender.

Pass-Through Mortgage-Related Securities. Interests in pools of mortgage-related securities differ from other forms of debt securities, which normally provide for periodic payment of interest in fixed amounts with principal payments at maturity or specified call dates. Instead, these securities provide a monthly payment consisting of both interest and principal payments. In effect, these payments are a "pass-through" of the monthly payments made by the individual borrowers on their residential mortgage loans, net of any fees paid to the issuer or guarantor of such securities. Additional payments may be generated by repayments of principal resulting from the sale of the underlying residential property, refinancing or foreclosure, net of fees or costs that may be incurred. Some mortgage-related securities, such as securities issued by the

Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), are described as "modified pass-through." These securities entitle the holder to receive all interest and principal payments owed on the mortgage pool, net of certain fees, regardless of whether or not a mortgagor actually makes the payment.

Adjustable-Rate Mortgage Securities. Adjustable-rate mortgage securities ("ARMS") bear interest at a rate determined by reference to a predetermined interest rate or index. ARMS may be secured by fixed-rate mortgages or adjustable-rate mortgages. ARMS secured by fixed-rate mortgages generally have lifetime caps on the coupon rates of the securities. The adjustable-rate mortgages that secure ARMS will frequently have caps that limit the maximum amount by which the interest rate or the monthly principal and interest payments on the mortgages may increase.

High Yield Securities. The Fund may invest in below investment grade securities. These "high-yield" securities (also known as "junk bonds") will generally be rated BB or lower by S&P or of equivalent quality rating from another Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organization ("NRSRO"), or if unrated, considered by the Adviser to be of comparable quality. There is no minimum credit quality for securities in which the Fund may invest. Accordingly, the Fund may invest without limit in securities rated as low as D by S&P or of equivalent quality rating from another NRSRO or that are unrated securities of comparable quality.

International Securities. The Fund may invest in the securities of non-U.S. issuers, including direct investments in companies whose securities are principally traded outside the United States on foreign exchanges or foreign over-the-counter markets. The Fund may invest, without limit, in securities of companies in developed, developing or emerging markets.

Whole Loans. Whole loans involve the direct acquisition by the Fund of unsecuritized mortgage loans, including non-qualified mortgages, purchased from originators or warehouse providers. Unlike its investments in the mortgage-related securities described above, the Fund will have beneficial and record ownership of the whole loans purchased by it. The Fund may invest in loans bearing either fixed or adjustable interest rates. Loans may be non-performing and the Fund may engage one or more third parties to restructure a loan or foreclose on the related mortgage or other collateral. The Fund may acquire defaulted, distressed, non-performing or under-performing loans or properties or options to acquire the foregoing. The Fund may also seek a third-party purchaser for such loans or options and may finance the purchase by such third party.

Credit Derivatives. The Fund may invest in credit derivatives, which are contracts that transfer price, spread and/or default risks of debt and other instruments from one party to another. Such instruments may include one or more debtors or indices, such as CMBX and CDX. Payments under credit derivatives may be made during the exercise period of the contracts. Payments under many credit derivatives are triggered by credit events such as bankruptcy, default, restructuring, failure to pay, cross default or acceleration, interest shortfalls, principal shortfalls or writedowns, etc. Such payments may be for notional amounts, actual losses or amounts determined by a formula. The CMBX and CDX indices are administered by Markit Group Limited. The credit derivatives in which the Fund invests may include, among other things, CLNs and total return swaps.

The Investment Process

Axonic's investment strategies primarily focus on generation of income and other gains while seeking to minimize the adverse effects of rising interest rates by utilizing both top-down and bottom-up analysis during the fundamental research phase and focusing on key sources of risk during the portfolio construction and ongoing portfolio management phases. Axonic's investment strategy relies on three primary components: (i) the Adviser's ability to identify and purchase appropriate securities; (ii) an intensive analytical approach to risk management and portfolio construction; and (iii) the Adviser's ability to construct a blended portfolio of risk-based assets and hedges with a return profile over time that demonstrates increased total return while mitigating discrete risks.

Idea Generation/Security Analysis

The Adviser's idea generation and sourcing process seeks to identify repeatable themes that can meet the Fund's investment objective, using a fundamental and data driven approach during the fundamental research process. The Adviser applies various trading models developed by the Adviser to evaluate prospective instrument. In addition, the Adviser's portfolio managers and analysts regularly monitor market conditions, trade flows, and trade execution to understand current market trends and investment opportunities.

Portfolio Construction

The Adviser carries out the Fund's investment process and risk control procedures by applying various valuation tools, including the Adviser's own risk and valuation pricing engine. In particular, the Adviser believes that attractive risk-adjusted returns can be produced by systematically discovering misvalued credit risk, structural nuances and other opportunities in income-producing investments. The Adviser will attempt to take advantage of the inefficiencies that result from, among other things: (i) inconsistency of performance across deals, issuers, and sectors; (ii) heterogeneity of securities from both a collateral and structural perspective; and (iii) structural complexity. During the portfolio construction phase, the Adviser specifically focuses on minimizing or capitalizing on changes in key sources of risk for structured credit, including: prepayment rates, default rates, loss severity, regulation and legislation risk, and price/yield change risk. The Adviser seeks to achieve lower portfolio volatility by diversifying exposure to these risk sources.

Portfolio Management

After the portfolio construction phase, the Adviser will actively reallocate the portfolio among different risks in an effort to adapt to new fundamental or technical conditions. The Adviser will attempt to consistently achieve attractive risk-adjusted returns through a complex bottom-up evaluation process of individual securities as well as the top-down nature of optimal portfolio construction and hedging.

TYPES OF INVESTMENTS AND RELATED RISKS

The risks below include risks associated with investments in the Fund specifically, as well as risks generally associated with investment in a fund with investment objectives, investment policies, capital structure or trading markets similar to the Fund's. Investors should carefully consider the risk factors described below before deciding on whether to make an investment in the Fund.

Principal Risks of Investing in the Fund

• Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities Risks. The Fund may invest in tranches of CMBS transactions, ranging from the most senior tranches to the most subordinated tranches, any of which may be unrated. The collateral underlying CMBS generally consists of mortgage loans secured by income-producing property or other CMBS. Performance of a commercial mortgage loan and the market value of a commercial property both depend primarily on the net income generated by the underlying mortgaged property. As a result, income generation will affect both the likelihood of default and the severity of losses with respect to a commercial mortgage loan. Successful management and operation of the related business (including property management decisions, such as pricing, maintenance and capital improvements) will have a significant impact on the performance of commercial mortgage loans. Issues such as tenant mix, success of tenant business, property location and condition, competition, increases in interest rates, real estate taxes and other operational expenses, general or local economic conditions and/or specific industry segments, declines in real estate values, declines in rental or occupancy rates and civil disturbances, changes in governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies, acts of God, social unrest and insurance coverage are among the factors that may impact both performance and market value. The value of commercial real estate is also subject to limitations on remedies imposed by bankruptcy laws and state laws regarding foreclosures and rights of redemption. Higher CMBS delinquency rates resulting from the economic impacts of COVID-19 or otherwise, and other COVID-19-related impacts on CMBS, could adversely affect the Fund's investments.

Mortgage loans on commercial properties often are structured so that a substantial portion of the loan principal is not amortized over the loan term but is payable at maturity, and repayment of the loan principal thus often depends upon the future availability of real estate financing from the existing or an alternative lender and/or upon the current value and salability of the real estate. Therefore, the unavailability of real estate financing may lead to default. Most commercial mortgage loans underlying CMBS are effectively nonrecourse obligations of the borrower, meaning that there is no recourse against the borrower's assets other than the collateral except in the case of borrowers acting fraudulently or otherwise illegally. If borrowers are not able or willing to refinance or dispose of encumbered property to pay the principal and interest owed on such mortgage loans, payments on the CMBS are likely to be adversely affected to some degree depending upon the seniority of the notes within a securitization's capital structure.

The ultimate extent of the loss, if any, to the subordinated classes of CMBS may only be determined after a negotiated discounted settlement, restructuring or sale of the mortgage note, or the foreclosure (or deed in lieu of foreclosure) of the mortgage encumbering the property and subsequent liquidation of the property. Foreclosure can be costly and delayed by litigation and/or bankruptcy. Factors such as the property's location, the legal status of title to the property, its physical condition and financial performance, environmental risks, and governmental disclosure requirements with respect to the condition of the property may make a third party unwilling to purchase the property at a foreclosure sale or to pay a price sufficient to satisfy the obligations with respect to the related CMBS. Revenues from the assets underlying such CMBS may be retained by the borrower and the return on investment may be used to make payments to others, maintain insurance coverage, pay taxes or pay maintenance costs. Such diverted revenue is generally not recoverable without a court-appointed receiver to control collateral cash flow.

- Concentration in Certain Mortgage-Related Assets Risks. The risks of concentrating in mortgage-related assets, including RMBS (agency and non-agency), CMBS, CLOs, and other mortgage-backed securities include susceptibility to changes in interest rates and the risks associated with the market's perception of issuers, the creditworthiness of the parties involved and investing in real estate securities.
- REIT Risks. Investments in REITs and in securities of other companies principally engaged in the real estate industry subject the Fund to, among other things, risks similar to those of direct investments in real estate and the real estate industry in general. These include risks related to general and local economic conditions, possible lack of availability of financing and changes in interest rates or property values. The value of interests in a REIT may be affected by, among other factors, changes in the value of the underlying properties owned by the REIT, changes in the prospect for earnings and/or cash flow growth of the REIT itself, defaults by borrowers or tenants, market saturation, decreases in market rates for rents, and other economic, political, or regulatory matters affecting the real estate industry generally. REITs and similar non-U.S. entities depend upon specialized management skills, may have limited financial resources, may have less trading volume in their securities, and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than the overall securities markets. REITs are also subject to the risk of failing to qualify for favorable tax treatment under the Code. The failure of a REIT to continue to qualify as a REIT for tax purposes can materially and adversely affect its value. In addition, due to recent changes in tax laws, certain tax benefits of REITs may not be passed through to Fund shareholders. Some REITs (especially mortgage REITs) are affected by risks similar to those associated with investments in debt securities including changes in interest rates and the quality of credit extended.
- Asset-Backed Securities Risks. Asset-backed securities are subject to credit risk, interest rate risk and, to a lesser degree, prepayment risk. Asset-backed securities may also be subject to additional risks in that, unlike some mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities do not have the benefit of a security interest in the related collateral. Each type of asset-backed security also entails unique risks depending on the type of assets involved and the legal structure used. For example, credit card receivables are generally unsecured and the debtors are entitled to the protection of a number of state and federal consumer credit laws, many of which give debtors the right to set off certain amounts owed on the credit cards, thereby reducing the balance due. Asset-backed securities typically experience credit risk. There is also the possibility that recoveries on repossessed collateral may not, in some cases, be available to support payments on these securities because of the inability to perfect a security interest in such collateral.
- Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities Risks. In addition to the risks associated with other asset-backed securities as described above,
 mortgage-backed securities are subject to the general risks associated with investing in real estate securities; that is, they may lose value
 if the value of the underlying real estate to which a pool of mortgages relates declines. Mortgage-backed securities may be issued by

governments or their agencies and instrumentalities, such as, in the United States, Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. They may also be issued by private issuers but represent an interest in or are collateralized by pass-through securities issued or guaranteed by a government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities. In addition, mortgage-backed securities may be issued by private issuers and be collateralized by securities without a government guarantee. Such securities usually have some form of private credit enhancement.

The rate of prepayments on underlying mortgages affects the price and volatility of a mortgage-backed security, and may have the effect of shortening or extending the effective maturity beyond what was anticipated. Further, different types of mortgage-backed securities are subject to varying degrees of prepayment risk. Finally, the risks of investing in such instruments reflect the risks of investing in real estate securing the underlying loans, including the effect of local and other economic conditions, the ability of tenants to make payments, and the ability to attract and retain tenants.

Pools created by private issuers generally offer a higher rate of interest than government and government-related pools because there are no direct or indirect government or agency guarantees of payments. Notwithstanding that such pools may be supported by various forms of private insurance or guarantees, there can be no assurance that the private insurers or guarantors will be able to meet their obligations under the insurance policies or guarantee arrangements. The Fund may invest in private mortgage pass-through securities without such insurance or guarantees. Any mortgage-backed securities that are issued by private issuers are likely to have some exposure to subprime loans as well as to the mortgage and credit markets generally. In addition, such securities are not subject to the underwriting requirements for the underlying mortgages that would generally apply to securities that have a government or government-sponsored entity guarantee, thereby increasing their credit risk. The risk of non-payment is greater for mortgage-related securities that are backed by mortgage pools that contain subprime loans, but a level of risk exists for all loans. Market factors adversely affecting mortgage loan repayments may include a general economic downturn, high unemployment, a general slowdown in the real estate market, a drop in the market prices of real estate, or an increase in interest rates resulting in higher mortgage payments by holders of adjustable rate mortgages.

• Aircraft and Aviation Industry Risk. The Fund may invest in securities collateralized or otherwise backed by assets in the aviation industry, including commercial aircraft and loans and leases thereof. Risks associated with aircraft securitizations include, but are not limited to, risks related to commercial aircraft, the leasing of aircraft by commercial airlines and the commercial aviation industry generally, as well as with respect to any one aircraft or type of aircraft, the particular maintenance and operating history for the aircraft or its components, the model and type of aircraft, the jurisdiction of registration and regulatory risk. Changes in the economic and public health situation, which can result in widespread travel restrictions and reduced travel demand at times, may have adverse effects on the value and liquidity of aircraft securitizations. To the extent an investment is collateralized or otherwise backed by assets in the aviation industry that are located outside the United States, such investment will be subject to the risks associated with non-U.S. investments, including risks of exposure to government restrictions, including confiscatory taxation, expropriation or nationalization of a company's assets.

With respect to risks related to particular aircraft and securities related to the same, values and income may be adversely affected by: (i) manufacturers merging or exiting the industry or ceasing to produce the aircraft; (ii) the particular operating and maintenance experience of the aircraft; (iii) the number of operators ordering or using the aircraft; (iv) whether and the extent to which the aircraft is subject to lease; (v) regulatory and legal requirements applicable to the aircraft's operation, maintenance, sale or lease including, without limitation, airworthiness directives; (vi) market positioning and use of the aircraft; and (vii) other developments related to specific sales, leases or maintenance arrangements for the aircraft.

With respect to risks associated with the commercial aviation industry generally, economic declines and recessions, geopolitical conflict, the price of petroleum, the availability of more attractively priced and/or more efficient aircraft, price discounting by manufacturers of new aircraft, obsolescence (whether due to changes in technology or changes in regulation, particularly regulation related to environmental standards), declines in travel (whether as a result of government restrictions or changes in consumer preferences), and the occurrence or threat of pandemic, terrorism or war can have a material effect on aircraft values, especially in the short term, but the effect may be long-term or permanent.

The realization of any of the foregoing risks with respect to aircraft or the airline industry generally will adversely affect the ability or perceived ability of obligors to make payments on aircraft-related debt securities, any of which will cause declines in the value of the securities and the receipt of payments therefrom.

• Structured Investments Risks. The Fund may invest in entities organized and operated for the purpose of restructuring the investment characteristics of other debt securities, which may include CDOs, CLOs and CMOs. These investments will typically consist of equity or subordinated debt securities issued by a private investment fund that invests, on a leveraged basis, in debt instruments, including primarily senior loans and high-yield bonds and mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities, directly or through total rate of return swaps or other credit derivatives. The cash flow on the underlying instruments may be apportioned among the newly issued security to create securities with different investment characteristics such as varying maturities, payment priorities and interest rate provisions, and the extent of the payments made with respect to such securities is dependent on the extent of the cash flow on the underlying instruments. Because the Fund will not own these assets directly, they will not benefit from rights that holders of the assets have, including indemnification and voting rights.

Exposure to structured finance securities entails various risks: credit risks, liquidity risks, prepayment risks, interest rate risks, market risks, operations risks, structural risks, geographical concentration risks, basis risks and legal risks. Structured finance securities are also subject to the risk that the servicer fails to perform. Structured finance securities are subject to risks associated with their structure and execution, including the process by which principal and interest payments are allocated and distributed to investors, how credit losses affect the issuing vehicle and the return to investors in such structured finance securities, whether the collateral represents a fixed set of specific assets or accounts, whether the underlying collateral assets are revolving or closed-end, under what terms (including maturity of the structured finance instrument) any remaining balance in the accounts may revert to the issuing entity and the extent to which the entity that is the actual source of the collateral assets is obligated to provide support to the issuing vehicle or to the investors in such structured finance securities. Most structured investments are issued in multiple tranches that offer investors various maturity and credit risk characteristics,

which are often categorized as senior, mezzanine, and subordinated/equity. The Fund may invest in subordinated/equity tranches that typically represent the first loss position, are unrated and may be highly leveraged, which magnifies the risk of loss on such investments. As a result, investment in subordinated/equity tranches of structured investments may expose the Fund to a greater risk of loss.

Some of the loans underlying the CDOs, CLOs and other types of structured securities in which the Fund may invest may be "covenant-lite" loans, which contain fewer or less restrictive constraints on the borrower than certain other types of loans. In a covenant-lite loan, the covenants that require the borrower to maintain certain financial ratios are eliminated altogether, and lenders are left to rely only on covenants that restrict a company from incurring or actively engaging in certain action. A covenant that only restricts a company from incurring new debt cannot be violated simply by a deteriorating financial condition. Instead, the company must take affirmative action in order to breach it. The impact of such covenant-lite loans may be to delay a lender's ability to take control over troubled deals, which could impose a greater risk of loss on such investments as compared to investments that provide exposure to loans with additional or more conventional covenants.

- Direct Lending/Origination Risk. The Fund may invest in loans or privately placed debt securities, either of which may be directly or indirectly originated by the Fund or purchased from originators. To the extent that the Fund is the sole lender or investor in privately offered debt, the Fund will hold a promissory note or the equivalent and will be responsible for the expense of servicing the accompanying debt, including, without limitation, determining and/or monitoring the security for the debt and, if necessary, taking legal action to foreclose on the secured position. In such a case, the Fund is at risk for impairment of the security for the loan or debt security, expenses of foreclosure, and the potential failure of foreclosure to cover any unpaid principal or interest on the applicable debt. The Fund's exposure to a direct loan, whether originated or purchased by the Fund, may exceed the exposure the Fund would have had had it purchased one or more similar investments in the secondary market with a third party issuer and servicer. Similarly, risks of such loans or debt securities are generally greater that similar syndicated or publicly offered debt, since responsibility and expense of collection and foreclosure, if necessary, falls on the holder. In addition to the foregoing, the availability of opportunities for the origination or acquisition of private debt securities, the level and volatility of interest rates, the availability of adequate short and long-term financing, conditions in the financial markets and economic conditions, and the illiquidity and inefficiency of private lending and private debt securities may also negatively impact the value of these kinds of investments. Finally, competition for originations of and investments in loans and private debt securities may lead to the price of such assets increasing, or make it more difficult to identify or successfully implement desirable investment opportunities. For more information, see "Commercial and Residential Mortgages and Loans Risks" b
- Interest Rate Risk. For the past decade, the U.S. has experienced historically low interest rates. In 2022, however, interest rates rose steadily as the Federal Reserve began to raise the federal funds rate as part of its efforts to address rising inflation. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. The value of longer-term securities generally changes more in response to changes in interest rates than shorter-term securities. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, some fixed income securities may experience increased volatility and may lose value, which could adversely impact the Fund's net asset value. Rising interest rates could also impair the ability of borrowers to service interest payment obligations and make principal loan repayments, which could adversely impact the Fund's net investment income and its distributions to Shareholders.

Generally, the value of fixed income securities will change inversely with changes in interest rates. As interest rates rise, the market value of fixed in-come securities tends to decrease. Conversely, as interest rates fall, the market value of fixed income securities tends to increase. This risk will be greater for long-term securities than for short-term securities. The Fund may attempt to minimize the exposure of the portfolios to interest rate changes through the use of interest rate swaps, interest rate futures and/or interest rate options. However, there can be no guarantee that such hedges will be implemented and, if implemented, will be successful in mitigating the impact of interest rate changes on the portfolios.

Interest rate increases may result in periods of volatility and cause the value of the fixed income securities held by the Fund to decrease, which may result in substantial withdrawals from the Fund that, in turn, force the Fund to liquidate such investments at disadvantageous prices negatively impacting the performance of the Fund. In addition, if the Fund borrows money to finance shareholder redemptions, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect remaining shareholders by increasing Fund expenses and reducing any net investment income.

- Borrowing Risks and Leverage Risks. Certain transactions, including, for example, forward commitment purchases, inverse floaters, loans of portfolio securities, repurchase agreements (or reverse repurchase agreements), and the use of some derivatives, can result in leverage. In addition, the Fund may create leverage by borrowing money. Leverage generally has the effect of increasing the amounts of loss or gain the Fund may realize, and creates the likelihood of greater volatility of the value of the Fund's investments. In transactions involving leverage, a relatively small market movement or change in other underlying indicator can lead to significantly larger losses to the Fund. There is a risk of loss in excess of invested capital. The use of leverage may also require the Fund to liquidate its other holdings at disadvantageous times and prices in order to satisfy repayment, interest payment or margin obligations or to meet asset segregation or coverage requirements. Money borrowed will be subject to interest and other costs (including commitment fees and/or the cost of maintaining minimum average balances). Unless the income and capital appreciation, if any, on securities acquired with borrowed funds exceed the cost of borrowing, the use of leverage will diminish the investment performance of the Fund. The Fund may borrow money through a credit facility or other arrangements for investment purposes, to satisfy Shareholder repurchase requests, and to provide the Fund with liquidity. The amount the Fund may borrow is limited by the provisions of Section 18 of the 1940 Act, which requires a fund to have net asset coverage of 300% of the amount of its indebtedness, including amounts borrowed. As a result, the value of the Fund's total indebtedness may not exceed one-third of the value of the Fund's total assets, including the value of the any assets purchased using the proceeds of the indebtedness. However, subsequent drops in asset values may magnify losses or totally eliminate the Fund's equity in a leveraged
- Commercial and Residential Mortgages and Loans Risks. Investing in loans, including commercial and residential mortgage loans involves the general risks typically associated with investing in traditional fixed-income securities (including interest rate and credit risk) and certain additional risks and special considerations (including the risk of principal prepayment and with respect to commercial and residential mortgage loans, the risk of investing in real estate). In addition, in the event that a loan is foreclosed on, the Fund could become the owner (in whole or in part) of any collateral, which may include, among other things, real estate or other real or personal property, and the

Fund would bear the costs and liabilities of owning, holding or disposing of such property. In 2020, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, moratoriums were put in place in certain states to stop evictions and foreclosures in an effort to lessen the financial burden created by COVID-19, and similar moratoriums could be put into place in the future for other reasons. Any such moratoriums could limit the ability of the Fund to obtain remedies in the case of tenant defaults or non-compliance and may adversely impact the Fund.

The Fund may also experience difficulty disposing of loans, which do not trade in a liquid market and typically can only be sold to a limited universe of institutional investors. The absence of a liquid market for these instruments could adversely impact their value and may inhibit the Fund's ability to dispose of them at times when it would be desirable to do so, including in response to particular economic events, such as a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the borrower. Because they do not trade in a liquid market residential loans may also be difficult for the Fund to value.

Investing in loans may subject the Fund to greater levels of credit risk, call risk, settlement risk and liquidity risk than other types of fixed income instruments. Transactions involving loans may also involve greater costs than transactions involving more actively traded securities. In addition, a number of factors, including restrictions on transfers, irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended trade settlement periods may make it more difficult for the Fund to acquire, dispose of or accurately price such instruments compared with other types of investments. As a result, the Fund may not be able to realize the full value for loans and there may be extended delays in the Fund's receipt of proceeds from the sale of a loan, which could adversely impact the Fund's performance. Because transactions in many loans are subject to extended trade settlement periods, proceeds from the sale of a loan may not be immediately available to the Fund. As a result, proceeds related to the sale of loans may not be available to make additional investments or to meet the Fund's share repurchase obligations for a period after the sale of the loans, and, as a result, the Fund may have to sell other investments or engage in borrowing transactions if necessary to raise cash to meet its obligations. The Fund may invest in loans directly or indirectly, including through one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The Fund may, directly or indirectly, purchase U.S. residential mortgages that do not satisfy the U.S. Consumer Financial Protection Bureau's ("CFPB") definition for a "qualified mortgage" (or similar definitions of other regulators) as well as qualified mortgages and secured or unsecured consumer loans. Purchasers of non-qualified mortgages may be subject to borrower defenses and claims (whether or not the purchaser was at fault) that may not be available to qualified mortgage borrowers. In addition, purchasers and originators of residential mortgage loans or consumer loans may be subject to enforcement and other actions by the CFPB or other regulators, class action lawsuits by mortgagors or borrowers and actions by governmental authorities. The Fund may directly or indirectly purchase residential or commercial mortgage loans and consumer or commercial loans from various originators and, in certain cases, may engage and rely on third party due diligence firms to determine whether these loans are originated to acceptable standards. Such third-party due diligence firms generally will be exculpated from liability (except for their own fraud) and the Fund may not discover any failures by such firms until many years following the acquisition of such loans. The Fund may have lender liability under these loans, even if it did not act as the originator, and borrowers may have defenses to payment, including that the loans violate applicable usury law or that the Fund does not have the proper licenses to originate, acquire or hold the loans. Usury and other violations of applicable law (which may be criminal law) may allow borrowers to recover amounts paid and additional amounts as a penalty, may void the enforceability of the loan, and may subject the Fund to adverse regulatory actions, penalties and punitive damages. While the Fund may have a claim against the relevant originator for a breach of a representation or warranty made or guaranteed by the Fund for which the Fund has liability, such claim may not be economically viable. The Fund may be required to obtain licenses or qualify in those jurisdictions in which the borrowers un-der these loans or in which the properties secured by the loans are located, and the failure to obtain and maintain those licenses and qualifications may limit the ability of the Fund to continue to hold these loans or exercise remedies in respect thereof as well as subjecting the Fund to sanctions and/or monetary penalties from relevant regulatory authorities.

Despite the Fund's efforts to manage credit risk related to the residential mortgage loans the Fund acquires, there are many aspects of credit risk that the Fund cannot control. The Fund's due diligence process may not be effective at preventing or limiting compliance violations or borrower delinquencies and defaults, and the loan servicing companies that service the mortgage loans may not comply with applicable servicing regulations or investor requirements. Prior to acquiring loans, the Fund will perform due diligence and the Fund will rely on resources and data available to it from the seller, which may be limited. The Fund's due diligence efforts may not detect matters that could lead to losses. If the Fund's due diligence processes are not adequate, and the Fund fails to detect certain loan defects or compliance issues related to origination, the Fund may incur losses. The Fund could also incur losses if a counterparty that sold the Fund a loan is unwilling or unable (e.g., due to its financial condition) to repurchase that loan or asset or pay damages to the Fund if the Fund determines subsequent to purchase that one or more of the representations or warranties made to the Fund in connection with the sale was inaccurate. There may be less readily available information about loans and their underlying borrowers than is the case for other types of investments and issuers. In addition, because loans may not be considered "securities," investors in loans, such as the Fund, may not be entitled to rely on the antifraud protections of the federal securities laws, although they may be entitled to certain contractual remedies.

The mortgage loans that the Fund purchases may be concentrated in a specific state or states. Weak economic conditions in these locations or any other location (which may or may not affect real property values), may affect the ability of borrowers to repay their mortgage loans on time. Properties in certain jurisdictions may be more susceptible than homes located in other parts of the country to certain types of uninsurable hazards, such as earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, wildfires and other natural disasters. Declines in the residential real estate market of a particular jurisdiction may reduce the values of properties located in that jurisdiction, which would result in an increase in the loan-to-value ratios. Any increase in the market value of properties located in a particular jurisdiction would reduce the loan-to-value ratios of the mortgage loans and could, therefore, make alternative sources of financing available to the borrowers at lower interest rates, which could result in an increased rate of prepayment of the mortgage loans.

• Conflicts of Interest Risk. There are significant and potential conflicts of interest that could impact the Fund's investment returns, including the potential for portfolio managers to devote unequal time and attention to the management of the Fund and any other accounts managed; allocate a limited investment opportunity among more than one client for whom the investment may be suitable; and acquire material non-public information or otherwise be restricted from trading in certain potential investments.

• Corporate and Other Debt Obligations Risks. The Fund may invest its assets in debt obligations, which include interests in loans to entities or their affiliates undertaken to finance a capital restructuring or in connection with recapitalizations, acquisitions, leveraged buyouts, refinancings or other financially leveraged transactions and may include loans that are designed to provide temporary or bridge financing to a borrower pending the sale of identified assets, the arrangement of longer-term loans or the issuance and sale of debt obligations. The Fund may also invest in financial instruments secured or backed by whole commercial, consumer and other loans and lease contracts. These loans may bear fixed or floating rates. Syndicated loans have generally been arranged through private negotiations between a corporate borrower and one or more financial institutions ("Lenders"), including banks. The Fund's investment may be in the form of participations in loans ("Participations") or of assignments of all or a portion of loans from third parties ("Assignments"). Borrowers may include corporations, partnerships, trusts and sovereigns (including Indian tribes) and their affiliates. Obligations of sovereigns and their affiliates may be difficult or impossible to enforce.

In certain cases, the rights and obligations acquired by the Fund through the purchase of an assignment may differ from, and be more limited than, those held by the assigning selling institution. Assignments are sold strictly without recourse to the selling institutions, and the selling institutions will generally make no representations or warranties to the Fund about the underlying loan, the borrowers, the documentation of the loans or any collateral securing the loans.

With respect to Participations, the Fund has the right to receive payments of principal, interest and any fees to which it is entitled only from the Lender selling the Participation and only upon receipt by the Lender of the payments from the borrower. The Fund generally will have no right to enforce compliance by the borrower with the terms of the loan agreement relating to the loan in which it has purchased a Participation, nor any rights of set-off against the borrower, and the Fund may not benefit directly from any collateral supporting the loan in which it has purchased the Participation. Thus, the Fund assumes the credit risk of both the borrower and the Lender that is selling the Participation. In addition, in connection with purchasing Participations, the Fund generally will have no role in terms of negotiating or effecting amendments, waivers and consents with respect to the loans underlying the Participations. In the event of the insolvency of the Lender, the Fund may be treated as a general creditor of the Lender and may not benefit from any set-off between the Lender and the borrower.

Investments in Participations and Assignments involves additional risks, including the risk of nonpayment of principal and interest by the borrower, the risk that any loan collateral may become impaired and that the Fund may obtain less than the full value for the loan interests sold because they may be illiquid. Purchasers of loans depend primarily upon the creditworthiness of the borrower for payment of interest and repayment of principal. If scheduled interest or principal payments are not made, the value of the instrument may be adversely affected. Participations may also have the risk that the counterparty to the Participation defaults or becomes insolvent.

Investments in loans through direct assignment of a financial institution's interests with respect to a loan may involve additional risks. For example, if a loan is foreclosed, the Fund could become part owner of any collateral, in which case it would bear the costs and liabilities associated with owning and disposing of the collateral. In addition, it is conceivable that under emerging legal theories of lender liability, the Fund could be held liable as a co-lender.

A syndicated loan is often administered by a bank or other financial institution that acts as agent for all holders. The agent administers the terms of the loan, as specified in the loan agreement. Unless, under the terms of the loan or other indebtedness, the Fund has direct recourse against the borrower, the Fund may have to rely on the agent to apply appropriate credit remedies against a borrower. If assets held by the agent for the benefit of the Fund were determined to be subject to the claims of the agent's general creditors, the Fund might incur certain costs and delays in realizing payment on the loan or loan participation and could suffer a loss of principal or interest.

Interests in loans are also subject to additional liquidity risks. Loans are generally subject to legal or contractual restrictions on resale. Loans are not currently listed on any securities exchange or automatic quotation system, but are traded by banks and other institutional investors engaged in loan syndication. As a result, no active market may exist for some loans, and to the extent a secondary market exists for other loans, such market may be subject to irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended trade settlement periods. Consequently, the Fund may have difficulty disposing of Assignments or Participations in response to a specific economic event such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of the borrower, which can result in a loss. In such market situations, it may be more difficult for the Fund to assign a value to Assignments or Participations when valuing the Fund's securities and calculating its net asset value.

The loans acquired by the Fund may be unsecured or undersecured. In addition, in the event of the insolvency of the selling institution, under the U.S. laws, the Fund may be treated as a general creditor of such selling institution, and may not have any exclusive or senior claim with respect to the selling institution's interest in, or the collateral with respect to, a secured loan. Consequently, the Fund may be subject to the credit risk of the selling institution as well as of the borrower. Certain of the secured loans or loan participations may be governed by the law of a jurisdiction other than the United States which may present additional risks as regards the characterization under such laws of such participation in the event of the insolvency of the selling institution or the borrower.

The Fund may originate loans directly. Loan origination results in risks in addition to the acquisition of a loan and may accordingly subject the Fund to lender liability claims and additional regulation and taxation.

• Counterparty and Settlement Risks. Counterparty and settlement risk is the risk that the counterparty to a securities transaction (e.g., the issuer, seller, or buyer of a bond, derivative or other security), is, or is perceived as being, unable or unwilling to make timely interest, principal or settlement payments, or to otherwise honor its obligations. Transactions entered into directly between two counterparties (e.g., over-the-counter transactions, repurchase agreements, securities lending transactions, many derivatives contracts, and similar non-exchange traded securities) and transactions on foreign exchanges with few or no requirements for counterparties and intermediaries generally do not benefit from such protections and expose the parties to greater risk of counterparty default. Any such default by a trading counterparty could result in losses to the Fund due to the delay of settlement of a transaction or receipt of payments, loss of market gains or, in certain circumstances, loss of a portion or the full amount of the notional value of the transaction. If the creditworthiness of a counterparty to a transaction declines, the Fund may not receive payments owed under the terms of the transaction in full or in a timely manner, and the value of the applicable transaction can be expected to decline, either of which would result in losses. While

counterparty and settlement risks apply to all securities transactions, the risks are lessened in U.S. exchange-traded transactions, which generally are backed by clearing organization guarantees, daily marking-to-market and settlement, and segregation and minimum capital requirements applicable to intermediaries. Nevertheless, these transactions and any other securities transactions that are cleared through an intermediary (e.g., a clearing broker or futures commission merchant) are subject to credit and liquidity risks of the intermediary. To the extent that the Fund, as buyer or seller of a security or debt instrument prepays for or pre-delivers a security or instrument, its counterparty risk is increased.

- Credit Default Swap Agreements Risks. The buyer of a credit default swap is obligated to pay the seller a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract in return for one or more contingent payments upon the occurrence of a credit event with respect to one or more underlying reference obligations. Generally, a credit event means, (i) with respect to corporate reference obligations, bankruptcy, failure to pay and, in certain cases, restructuring, (ii) with respect to municipal or sovereign reference obligations, failure to pay, restructuring and, in certain cases, moratorium, and (iii) with respect to asset-backed security reference obligations, principal writedowns and interest shortfalls. If a credit event occurs under a swap referencing a corporate, sovereign or municipal reference obligation, the buyer typically receives the notional amount of the reference obligation subject to an obligation to physically deliver the notional amount of the reference obligation (or other permitted security) to the seller, which reference obligation (or other permitted security) may not be readily available to the buyer, in which case the buyer may forfeit its credit event payment. However, in many cases, the parties to the swap will agree to an industrywide cash-settlement auction process. Following a credit event and the physical delivery or cash settlement thereof, a swap referencing a corporate, sovereign or municipal reference obligation will terminate. If a credit event occurs under a swap referencing an asset backed security reference obligation, the buyer typically receives a payment calculated by reference to the principal writedowns and interest shortfalls under a notional amount of the reference obligation. In certain cases, the buyer may be required to make a payment calculated by reference to a write-up or recovery under a notional amount of the reference obligation, which may relate to a credit event that occurred prior to the time that the buyer entered into the swap. Swaps referencing asset-backed security reference obligations do not terminate following a credit event thereunder. Entering into a credit default swap may require an upfront payment be made by the buyer or seller thereunder. Credit default swaps may be cleared or uncleared and the Fund may be either the buyer or seller of a cleared or uncleared credit default swap. If the Fund is a buyer and no credit event occurs, the Fund will have made payments under the swap and received nothing. The selling of credit default swaps involves additional risks to those posed by investing in the reference obligation directly, including the credit risk of the counterparty (or the credit risk of the relevant futures commission merchants and clearinghouses, in the case of cleared swaps). The Fund is exposed to the risk of a counterparty's default (in the case of an uncleared transaction) or futures commission merchant's or clearinghouse's default (in the case of a cleared transaction). In addition to general market risks, credit default swaps are subject to liquidity risk, and may be more or less liquid than the underlying reference obligations.
- Credit Derivatives Risks. Credit derivatives are contracts that transfer price, spread and/or default risks of debt and other instruments from one party to another. Such instruments may be illiquid or less liquid, volatile, difficult to price and leveraged so that small changes in the value of the underlying instruments may produce disproportionate losses to the Fund. In addition, the Fund is subject to the credit risk associated with the underlying assets of a derivatives contract as well as the risk of counterparty default. As a result, the Fund's use of derivatives could result in losses, which could be significant.

Credit derivatives used by the Fund may include one or more debtors. Payments under credit derivatives may be made during the exercise period of the contracts. Payments under many credit derivatives are triggered by credit events such as bankruptcy, default, restructuring, failure to pay, cross default or acceleration, etc. Such payments may be for notional amounts, actual losses or amounts determined by a formula.

The Fund may use derivatives for hedging or speculative purposes, and certain of the derivative investments in which the Fund may invest may, in certain circumstances, give rise to a form of financial leverage, which may magnify the risk of owning such instruments. The ability to successfully use derivative investments depends on the ability of the Adviser to predict pertinent market movements, which cannot be assured. In addition, amounts paid by the Fund as premiums and cash or other assets held in margin accounts with respect to the Fund's derivative investments would not be available to the Fund for other investment purposes, which may result in lost opportunities for gain.

The market for credit derivatives is somewhat illiquid and there are considerable risks that it may be difficult to either buy or sell the contracts as needed or at reasonable prices. Sellers of credit derivatives carry the inherent price, spread and default risks of the debt instruments covered by the derivative instruments. Buyers of credit derivatives carry the risk of non-performance by the seller due to inability to pay. There are also risks with respect to credit derivatives in determining whether an event will trigger payment under the derivative and whether such payment will offset the loss or payment due under another instrument. In the past, buyers and sellers of credit derivatives have found that a trigger event in one contract may not match the trigger event in another contract, exposing the buyer or the seller to further risk. Credit derivatives may be cleared or uncleared. The Fund is exposed to the risk of a counterparty default (in the case of an uncleared transaction) or futures commission merchant's or clearinghouse's default (in the case of a cleared transaction).

- Currency Risks. The Fund's investments that are denominated in a foreign currency are subject to the risk that the value of a particular
 currency will change in relation to one or more other currencies. Among the factors that may affect currency values are trade balances,
 the level of short-term interest rates, differences in relative values of similar assets in different currencies, long-term opportunities for
 investment and capital appreciation and political developments.
- Distressed Investments and Non-Performing Loans Risks. The Fund may invest in debt and equity securities, accounts and notes payable, loans, private claims and other financial instruments and obligations of troubled obligors that may result in significant returns to the Fund, but which involve a substantial degree of risk. The Fund may lose its entire investment in a troubled obligor, may be required to accept cash or securities with a value less than the Fund's investment and may be prohibited from exercising certain rights with respect to such investment. Troubled obligor investments may not show any returns for a considerable period of time. Funding a plan of reorganization involves additional risks, including risks associated with equity ownership in the reorganized entity. Troubled obligor investments may be adversely affected by state and federal laws relating to, among other things, fraudulent conveyances, voidable preferences, lender liability

and the Bankruptcy Court's discretionary power to disallow, subordinate or disenfranchise particular claims. Investments in securities and private claims of troubled obligors made in connection with an attempt to influence a restructuring proposal or plan of reorganization in a bankruptcy case may also involve substantial litigation.

The Fund may have significant investments in companies involved in (or the target of) acquisition attempts or tender offers or companies involved in work-outs, liquidations, spin-offs, reorganizations, bankruptcies and similar transactions. In any investment opportunity involving any such type of business enterprise, there exists the risk that the transaction in which such business enterprise is involved either will be unsuccessful, take considerable time or result in a distribution of cash or a new security, the value of which will be less than the purchase price to the Fund of the security, or other financial instrument in respect of which such distribution is received. Similarly, if an anticipated transaction does not in fact occur, the Fund may be required to sell its investment at a loss. Because there is substantial uncertainty concerning the outcome of transactions involving financially troubled obligors in which the Fund may invest, there is a potential risk of loss by the Fund of its entire investment in such companies.

- Extension Risks. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. The value of longer-term securities generally changes more in response to changes in interest rates than shorter-term securities. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, securities may exhibit additional volatility and may lose value.
- **Fixed-Income Instruments Risks.** Changes in interest rates generally will cause the value of fixed-income instruments held by the Fund to vary inversely to such changes. Prices of longer-term fixed-income instruments generally fluctuate more than the prices of shorter-term fixed income instruments as interest rates change. In addition, a fund with a longer average portfolio duration will be more sensitive to changes in interest rates than a fund with a shorter average portfolio duration. Duration is a measure used to determine the sensitivity of a security's price to changes in interest rates that incorporates a security's yield, coupon, final maturity and call features, among other characteristics. For example, if a portfolio has a duration of three years, and interest rates increase (fall) by 1%, the portfolio would decline (increase) in value by approximately 3%. However, duration may not accurately reflect the true interest rate sensitivity of instruments held by the Fund and, therefore the Fund's exposure to changes in interest rates.

Fixed-income instruments that are fixed-rate are generally more susceptible than floating rate instruments to price volatility related to changes in prevailing interest rates. The prices of floating rate fixed-income instruments tend to have less fluctuation in response to changes in interest rates, but will have some fluctuation, particularly when the next interest rate adjustment on such security is further away in time or adjustments are limited in amount over time. The Fund may invest in short-term securities that, when interest rates decline, affect the Fund's yield as these securities mature or are sold and the Fund purchases new short-term securities with lower yields. Subordinated debt securities that receive payments of interest and principal after other more senior security holders are paid carry the risk that the issuer will not be able to meet its obligations and that the subordinated investments may lose value. An obligor's willingness and ability to pay interest or to repay principal due in a timely manner may be affected by its cash flow.

- Floating or Variable Rate Securities Risks. Floating or variable rate securities pay interest at rates that adjust in response to changes in a specified interest rate or reset at predetermined dates (such as the end of a calendar quarter). Securities with floating or variable interest rates are generally less sensitive to interest rate changes than securities with fixed interest rates, but may decline in value if their interest rates do not rise as much, or as quickly, as comparable market interest rates. Conversely, floating or variable rate securities will not generally increase in value if interest rates decline. The impact of interest rate changes on floating or variable rate securities is typically mitigated by the periodic interest rate reset of the investments. Floating or variable rate securities can be rated below investment grade or unrated; therefore, the Fund relies heavily on the analytical ability of the Adviser. Lower-rated floating or variable rate securities are subject to many of the same risks as high yield securities, although these risks are reduced when the instruments are senior and secured as opposed to many high yield securities that are junior and unsecured. Floating or variable rate securities are often subject to restrictions on resale, which can result in reduced liquidity.
- **Highly Volatile Markets Risks.** The prices of financial instruments in which the Fund may invest can be highly volatile. Price movements of forward and other derivative contracts in which the Fund's assets may be invested are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand relationships, trade, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programs and policies of governments, and national and international political and economic events and policies. The Fund is subject to the risk of failure of any of the exchanges on which its positions trade and of the clearinghouses on which the positions are carried.
- High Yield Securities Risks. The Fund may invest in "high yield" bonds and preferred securities (commonly referred to as "junk bonds") that are rated in the lower rating categories by the various credit rating agencies (or in comparable non-rated securities), which may include securities rated as low as "D" or unrated securities of comparable quality. Securities in the lower rating categories are subject to greater risk of loss of principal and interest than higher-rated securities and are generally considered to be predominantly speculative with respect to the issuer's capacity to pay interest and repay principal. They are also generally considered to be subject to greater risk than securities with higher ratings in the case of deterioration of general economic conditions. It is likely that a prolonged or deepening economic recession could adversely affect the ability of the issuers of such instruments to repay principal and pay interest thereon, increase the incidence of default for such instruments and severely disrupt the market value of such instruments. Because investors generally perceive that there are greater risks associated with lower-rated securities, the yields and prices of such securities may tend to fluctuate more than those for higher-rated securities. In addition, adverse publicity and investor perceptions about lower-rated securities, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may be a contributing factor in a decrease in the value and liquidity of such lower- rated securities. Debt rated "D" is in default or is expected to default upon maturity of payment date. Such investments are inherently speculative and involve major risk exposure to adverse conditions.

Lower grade instruments, though higher yielding, are characterized by higher risk. The retail secondary market for lower grade instruments, which are often thinly traded or subject to irregular trading, may be less liquid than that for higher rated instruments. Such instruments can be more difficult to sell and to value than higher rated instruments because there is generally less public information available about such securities. As a result, subjective judgment may play a greater role in valuing such instruments. Adverse conditions could make it difficult at

times for the Fund to sell certain instruments or could result in lower prices than those used in calculating the Fund's NAV. Because of the substantial risks associated with investments in lower grade instruments, investors could lose money on their investment in the Fund, both in the short-term and the long-term.

- Private Placement Securities Risk. A private placement is a direct offering of securities that is exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, generally made to a single or limited number of sophisticated investors (such as mutual funds, insurance companies, pension funds and accredited individual investors). Issuance is typically made by direct negotiation between an issuer and the investor(s), but may also be made with the assistance of a placement agent. Private placement debt securities may: (i) bear fixed or floating rates of interest; (ii) permit the issuer to increase the size of the issue at some future date; (iii) permit the issuer to extend or shorten the repayment date; (iv) be secured or unsecured; (v) or offer additional terms which are generally more flexible than those offered in the public market. Private placement debt securities are subject to all of the risks applicable to debt securities generally, as well as the risks described for applicable specific asset classes. In addition, because private placement securities are generally illiquid, purchases of such securities are subject to the risks of illiquid securities described below.
- Illiquid Securities Risks. The Fund may invest in illiquid securities. The Fund may also invest in restricted securities. Investments in restricted securities could have the effect of increasing the amount of the Fund's assets invested in illiquid securities if qualified institutional buyers are unwilling to purchase these securities.

Illiquid and restricted securities may be difficult to dispose of at a fair price at the times when the Fund believes it is desirable to do so. The market price of illiquid and restricted securities generally is more volatile than that of more liquid securities, which may adversely affect the price that the Fund pays for or recovers upon the sale of such securities. Illiquid and restricted securities are also more difficult to value, especially in challenging markets. The Adviser's judgment may play a greater role in the valuation process. Investment of the Fund's assets in illiquid and restricted securities may restrict the Fund's ability to take advantage of market opportunities. To dispose of an unregistered security, the Fund, where it has contractual rights to do so, may have to cause such security to be registered. A considerable period may elapse between the time the decision is made to sell the security and the time the security is registered, thereby enabling the Fund to sell it. Contractual restrictions on the resale of securities vary in length and scope and are generally the result of a negotiation between the issuer and acquiror of the securities. In either case, the Fund would bear market risks during that period. Liquidity risk may impact the Fund's ability to meet Shareholder repurchase requests, and the Fund may be forced to sell securities at inopportune prices to meet repurchase requests or to satisfy margin calls.

Certain fixed-income instruments are not readily marketable and may be subject to restrictions on resale. Fixed-income instruments may not be listed on any national securities exchange and no active trading market may exist for certain of the fixed-income instruments in which the Fund will invest. Where a secondary market exists, the market for some fixed-income instruments may be subject to irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended trade settlement periods. In addition, dealer inventories of certain securities are at historic lows in relation to market size, which indicates a potential for reduced liquidity as dealers may be less able to "make markets" for certain fixed-income securities.

- Market Risk. Investments in securities and other investments in general are subject to market risks that may cause their prices to fluctuate over time. Investments may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally, or particular countries, segments, economic sectors, industries or companies within those markets. The value of a security may decline due to general economic, political and market conditions that are not specifically related to a particular issuer, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions or changes in interest or currency rates. During those periods, the Fund may experience high levels of shareholder redemptions, and may have to sell securities at times when the Fund would otherwise not do so, potentially at unfavorable prices. Certain securities may be difficult to value during such periods. The value of securities convertible into equity securities, such as warrants or convertible debt, is also affected by prevailing interest rates, the credit quality of the issuer and any call provision. Fluctuations in the value of the Fund's securities (which may be material on a daily, weekly, monthly or other basis) will cause the NAV of the Fund to fluctuate. Certain market events could increase volatility and exacerbate market risk, such as changes in governments' economic policies, political turmoil, military action, environmental events, trade disputes, terrorism, epidemics, pandemics or other public health issues. For example, the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) that emerged in 2020 resulted in closing borders, quarantines, cancellations, disruptions to supply chains and customer activity, as well as general concern and uncertainty, thus causing significant disruptions to global business activity and financial markets. Turbulence in financial markets, and reduced liquidity in equity, credit and fixed income markets may negatively affect many issuers domestically and around the world, and can result in trading halts, any of which could have an adverse impact on the Fund. During periods of market volatility, security prices (including securities held by the Fund) could fall drastically and rapidly and, therefore, adversely affect the Fund.
- Non-Diversification Risk. The Fund is classified as "non-diversified" under the 1940 Act. A non-diversified fund is not limited by the 1940 Act with regard to the percentage of its assets that may be invested in the securities of a single issuer. Consequently, the securities of a particular issuer or a small number of issuers may constitute a significant portion of the Fund's investment portfolio. This may adversely affect the Fund's performance or subject the Fund's Shares to greater price volatility than that experienced by more diversified investment companies.
- Non-Listed Closed-end Interval Fund; Liquidity Risks. The Fund is a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company structured as an "interval fund" and designed primarily for long-term investors. Closed-end funds differ from open-end management investment companies (commonly known as mutual funds) because investors in a closed-end fund do not have the right to redeem their shares on a daily basis. Unlike most closed-end funds, which typically list their shares on a securities exchange, the Fund does not currently intend to list the Shares for trading on any securities exchange, and the Fund does not expect any secondary market to develop for the Shares in the foreseeable future. Therefore, an investment in the Fund, unlike an investment in a typical closed-end fund, is not a liquid investment. The Fund is not intended to be a typical traded investment. Although the Fund, as a fundamental policy, will make quarterly offers to repurchase at least 5% and up to 25% of its outstanding Shares at NAV, the number of Shares tendered in connection with a repurchase offer may exceed the number of Shares the Fund has offered to repurchase, in which case not all of your Shares tendered in that offer will be repurchased. In connection with any given repurchase offer, it is possible that the Fund may offer to repurchase only the minimum amount of 5% of its outstanding Shares. Hence, you may not be able to sell your Shares when or in the amount that you desire.

In addition, because the Fund's investment objective and non-fundamental policies (including its policy to invest under normal circumstances, at least 80% of its net assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in credit-related instruments) may be changed by a vote of the Board without the approval of Shareholders, in the event of such a change, you may hold an investment with a strategy you did not anticipate, with limited means by which to dispose of your investment in a timely manner.

• Non-U.S. Investments Risks. Investing in instruments of non-U.S. governments and companies, and non-U.S. properties and loans, including non-performing loans, which may be denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar and may be governed by laws of a foreign jurisdiction, and utilization of foreign currency forward contracts and options on foreign currencies, involve certain considerations comprising both risks and opportunities not typically associated with investing in securities of United States issuers. These considerations include changes in exchange rates and exchange control regulations, political and social instability, expropriation, imposition of non-U.S. taxes (including non-U.S. withholding taxes and transfer and stamp taxes), less liquid markets and less available information than are generally the case in the United States, higher transaction costs, less government supervision of exchanges, brokers and issuers, difficulty in enforcing contractual obligations, lack of uniform accounting and auditing standards, greater price volatility, and reliance on non-U.S. servicers and service providers.

The Fund may directly or indirectly hold loans from obligors located in non-U.S. jurisdiction. It may be more difficult and costly for the Fund to enforce the terms of loans against foreign obligors than obligors of loans in U.S. jurisdictions. Adverse economic conditions in such jurisdictions, as well as foreign exchange rate fluctuations may affect the ability and incentive of foreign obligors to make timely payments of principal and interest on their loans. Collection on purchased loans may also be affected by economic and political conditions in the country or region in which the obligor is located. Rights and remedies available to enforce loan obligations and any security interest relating thereto will depend on the relevant country's laws, including insolvency laws and laws specifying the priority of payments to creditors, all of which laws may be significantly different from U.S. law. Accordingly, the actual rates of delinquencies, defaults and losses on non-U.S. loans could be higher than those experienced with loans to obligors located in the United States.

Investing in emerging markets can impose greater risk than investing in developed foreign markets. Governments of developing and emerging market countries may be more unstable as compared to those of more developed countries. Developing and emerging market countries may have less developed securities markets or exchanges and legal and accounting systems. It may be more difficult to sell securities at acceptable prices and security prices may be more volatile than in countries with more mature markets. Currency values may fluctuate more in developing or emerging markets. Developing or emerging market countries may be more likely to impose government restrictions, including confiscatory taxation, expropriation or nationalization of a company's assets, and restrictions on foreign ownership of local companies. In addition, emerging markets may impose restrictions on the Fund's ability to repatriate investment income or capital and, consequently, may adversely affect the operations of the Fund. Certain emerging markets may impose constraints on currency exchange and some currencies in emerging markets may have been devalued significantly against the U.S. dollar. For these and other reasons, the prices of securities in emerging markets can fluctuate more significantly than the prices of securities of companies in developed countries. The less developed the country, the greater effect these risks may have on the Fund.

- Options Risks. The purchase or sale of an option involves the payment or receipt of a premium by the investor and the corresponding right or obligation, as the case may be, either to purchase or sell the underlying security, commodity or other instrument for a specific price at a certain time or during a certain period. Purchasing options involves the risk that the underlying instrument will not change price in the manner expected, so that the investor loses its premium. Selling options involves potentially greater risk because the investor is exposed to the extent of the actual price movement in the underlying security rather than only the premium payment received (which could result in a potentially unlimited loss). Over-the-counter options also involve counterparty solvency risk.
- **Portfolio Turnover Risks.** The Fund's annual portfolio turnover rate may vary greatly from year to year, as well as within a given year. The portfolio turnover rate is not considered a limiting factor in the execution of investment decisions for the Fund. High portfolio turnover may result in the realization of net short-term capital gains by the Fund which, when distributed to Shareholders, will be taxable as ordinary income. A high portfolio turnover may increase the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits, resulting in a greater portion of the Fund's distributions being treated as a dividend to the Fund's Shareholders. In addition, a higher portfolio turnover rate results in correspondingly greater brokerage and other transactional expenses that are borne by the Fund.
- Prepayment Risks. When interest rates decline, fixed income securities with stated interest rates may have their principal paid earlier than
 expected. In such a case, the Fund may lose the benefit of a favorable interest rate for the remainder of the term of the security in question,
 and may only be able to reinvest the amount of the prepayment at a less favorable rate.
- **Proprietary Models Risks.** The Adviser carries out its investment process and risk control procedures, in part, by applying various trading models (including proprietary models) developed by it. These models are used to evaluate prospective investments, as well as to monitor and value existing holdings. The accuracy and effectiveness of these models cannot be guaranteed.
- Rating Agencies Risks. Rating agencies may fail to make timely changes in credit ratings and an issuer's current financial condition may be
 better or worse than a rating indicates. In addition, rating agencies are subject to an inherent conflict of interest because they are often
 compensated by the same issuers whose securities they grade.
- Repurchase Offers Risks. As described under "Share Repurchase Program," the Fund is an "interval fund" and, in order to provide liquidity to Shareholders, makes quarterly offers to repurchase between 5% and 25% of its outstanding Shares at NAV, pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the 1940 Act. The Fund believes that these repurchase offers are generally beneficial to the Fund's Shareholders, and repurchases generally will be funded from available cash or sales of portfolio securities. However, the repurchase of Shares by the Fund decreases the assets of the Fund and, therefore, may have the effect of increasing the Fund's expense ratio. Repurchase offers and the need to fund repurchase obligations may also affect the ability of the Fund to be fully invested or force the Fund to maintain a higher percentage of its assets in liquid investments, which may harm the Fund's investment performance. Moreover, diminution in the size of the Fund through repurchases may result in untimely sales of portfolio securities and may limit the ability of the Fund to participate in new investment opportunities or to achieve its investment objective. If the Fund uses leverage, repurchases of Shares may compound the adverse effects of leverage

in a declining market. In addition, if the Fund borrows money to finance repurchases, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect Shareholders who do not tender their Shares by increasing Fund expenses and reducing any net investment income. If a repurchase offer is oversubscribed and the Fund determines not to repurchase additional Shares beyond the repurchase offer amount, or if Shareholders tender an amount of Shares greater than that which the Fund is entitled to purchase, the Fund will repurchase the Shares tendered on a pro rata basis, and Shareholders will have to wait until the next repurchase offer to make another repurchase request. Shareholders will be subject to the risk of NAV fluctuations during that period. Thus, there is also a risk that some Shareholders, in anticipation of proration, may tender more Shares than they wish to have repurchased in a particular quarter, thereby increasing the likelihood that proration will occur. The NAV of Shares tendered in a repurchase offer may fluctuate between the date a Shareholder submits a repurchase request and the Repurchase Request Deadline, and to the extent there is any delay between the Repurchase Request Deadline and the Repurchase Pricing Date. The NAV on the Repurchase Request Deadline or the Repurchase Pricing Date may be higher or lower than on the date a Shareholder submits a repurchase request. See "Share Repurchase Program."

 Residential Mortgage Lending Market Risks. The residential mortgage market has been an attractive environment for finding value in securities, loans and other instruments. There can be no assurance that the Adviser will continue to be able to find value in such market.

Delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures on residential mortgage loans may affect the performance of collateralized debt obligations, asset backed securities and other securities, in particular residential mortgage securities that are backed by mortgage loans. Mortgage loans are generally made to borrowers with lower credit scores and are generally made with higher loan-to-value ratios than mortgage loans made to more creditworthy home buyers. Accordingly, mortgage loans backing residential mortgage securities are more sensitive to economic factors that could affect the ability of borrowers to pay their obligations under the mortgage loans backing these securities. A portion of CDO and asset backed securities' collateral may consist of residential mortgage securities. A deterioration in the assets collateralizing the CDO, asset backed or other securities held by the Fund would negatively affect the cash flows of the collateral securities, and consequently the performance or market value of the Fund. Therefore, the Fund will be sensitive to the same economic factors that affect residential mortgage securities. Further, a portion of the collateral securities may consist of securities which include or have significant exposure to residential mortgage securities which were originated or are serviced (or both) by mortgage companies which are currently in bankruptcy proceedings or which are experiencing financial difficulties or regulatory enforcement actions which have restricted the ability of the lender or its affiliates to originate mortgage loans and may affect its ability to service or subservice mortgage loans.

- Reverse Repurchase Agreement Risks. A reverse repurchase agreement is the sale by the Fund of a debt obligation to a party for a specified price, with the simultaneous agreement by the Fund to repurchase that debt obligation from that party on a future date at a higher price. Similar to borrowing, reverse repurchase agreements provide the Fund with cash for investment purposes, which creates leverage and subjects the Fund to the risks of leverage. Reverse repurchase agreements also involve the risk that the other party may fail to return the securities in a timely manner or at all. The Fund could lose money if it is unable to recover the securities and the value of collateral held by the Fund, including the value of the investments made with cash collateral, is less than the value of securities. Reverse repurchase agreements also create Fund expenses and require that the Fund have sufficient cash available to purchase the debt obligations when required. Reverse repurchase agreements also involve the risk that the market value of the debt obligation that is the subject of the reverse repurchase agreement could decline significantly below the price at which the Fund is obligated to repurchase the security. Reverse repurchase agreements also may be viewed as borrowings made by the Fund and are a form of leverage which also may increase the volatility of the Fund.
- RIC-Related Risks of Investments Generating Non-Cash Taxable Income. Certain of the Fund's investments will require the Fund to recognize taxable income in a taxable year in excess of the cash generated on those investments during that year. In particular, the Fund expects to invest in debt obligations that will be treated as having "market discount" and/or original issue discount ("OID") for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Additionally, some of the CLOs in which the Fund invests may be considered passive foreign investment companies, or under certain circumstances, controlled foreign corporations. Because the Fund may be required to recognize income in respect of these investments before, or without receiving, cash representing such income, the Fund may have difficulty satisfying the annual distribution requirements applicable to RICs and avoiding Fund-level U.S. federal income and/or excise taxes. Accordingly, the Fund may be required to sell assets, including at potentially disadvantageous times or prices, raise additional debt or equity capital, make taxable distributions of its shares or debt securities, or reduce new investments, to obtain the cash needed to make these income distributions. If the Fund liquidates assets to raise cash, the Fund may realize gain or loss on such liquidations; in the event the Fund realizes net capital gains from such liquidation transactions, the Fund Shareholders may receive larger capital gain distributions than they would in the absence of such transactions.
- Risks of Not Being Treated as a "Publicly Offered Regulated Investment Company". The Fund will be treated as a "publicly offered regulated investment company" (within the meaning of Section 67 of the Code) if either (i) shares of the Fund's common stock and preferred stock (if any) collectively are held by at least 500 persons at all times during a taxable year, (ii) shares of the Fund's common stock are continuously offered pursuant to a public offering (within the meaning of Section 4 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act")). The Fund cannot assure you that it will be treated as a publicly offered regulated investment company for all years. If the Fund is not treated as a publicly offered regulated investment company for all years. If the Fund is not treated as a publicly offered regulated investment company for any calendar year, each U.S. stockholder that is an individual, trust or estate will be treated as having received a dividend from the Fund in the amount of such U.S. stockholder's allocable share of the management fees and certain of the Fund's other expenses for the calendar year, and these fees and expenses will be treated as miscellaneous itemized deductions of such U.S. stockholder. For taxable years beginning before 2026, miscellaneous itemized deductions generally are not deductible by a U.S. stockholder that is an individual, trust or estate. For taxable years beginning in 2026 or later, miscellaneous itemized deductions generally are deductible by a U.S. stockholder that is an individual, trust or estate. For taxable years beginning in 2026 or later, miscellaneous itemized deductions generally are deductible by a U.S. stockholder that is an individual, trust or estate only to the extent that the aggregate of such U.S. stockholder's miscellaneous itemized deductions exceeds 2% of such U.S. stockholder's adjusted gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes, are not deductible for purposes of the alternative minimum tax and are subject to the overall limitation on
- Risks Relating to the Fund's RIC Status. To qualify and remain eligible for the special tax treatment accorded to a RIC and its shareholders
 under the Code, the Fund must meet certain source-of-income, asset diversification and annual distribution requirements. Very generally,
 to qualify as a RIC, the Fund must derive at least 90% of its gross income for each taxable year from dividends, interest, payments with

respect to certain securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies, net income from certain publicly traded partnerships or other income derived with respect to its business of investing in stock or other securities. The Fund must also meet certain asset diversification requirements at the end of each quarter of each of its taxable years. Failure to meet these diversification requirements on the last day of a quarter may result in the Fund having to dispose of certain investments quickly to prevent the loss of RIC status. Any such dispositions could be made at disadvantageous prices or times, and may result in substantial losses to the Fund. In addition, to be eligible for the special tax treatment accorded RICs, the Fund must meet the annual distribution requirement, requiring it to distribute with respect to each taxable year an amount at least equal to 90% of the sum of its "investment company taxable income" (generally its taxable ordinary income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, if any, and determined without regard to any deduction for dividends paid) and its net tax-exempt income (if any), to its Shareholders. If the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC for any reason and becomes subject to corporate tax, the resulting corporate taxes could substantially reduce its net assets, the amount of income available for distribution and the amount of its distributions. Such a failure would have a material adverse effect on the Fund and its Shareholders. In addition, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest and make substantial distributions to re-qualify as a RIC.

- Sector Risks. To the extent the Fund invests more heavily in particular sectors of the economy, its performance will be especially sensitive
 to developments that significantly affect those sectors.
- Security Selection Risk. The Fund is actively managed and its performance may reflect the Adviser's ability to make decisions which are suited to achieving the Fund's investment objective. Due to its active management, the Fund could under perform other funds with similar investment objectives.
- Trading Curbs Risks. Certain exchanges or markets may impose trading restrictions, also referred to as circuit breakers, which limit or stop trading in certain instruments when certain thresholds have been crossed. When a trading restriction is imposed, the Fund may be unable to enter into or close out desired positions or effectively hedge its existing portfolio, including when the Fund trades paired positions in different markets and a trading restriction impacts only one leg of the paired position.
- Uncertain Tax Treatment Risks. The Fund may invest a portion of its net assets in below investment grade instruments. Investments in these types of instruments may present special tax issues for the Fund. U.S. federal income tax rules are not entirely clear about issues such as when the Fund may cease accruing interest, OID or market discount, when and to what extent deductions may be taken for bad debts or worthless instruments, how payments received on obligations in default should be allocated between principal and income and whether exchanges of debt obligations in a bankruptcy or workout context are taxable. These and other issues will be addressed by the Fund to the extent necessary to seek to ensure that it distributes sufficient income that it does not become subject to U.S. federal income or excise tax.
- Unrated Securities Risks. The Fund may purchase unrated securities which are not rated by a rating agency if the Adviser determines that the security is of comparable quality to a rated security that the Fund may purchase. Unrated securities may be less liquid than comparable rated securities and involve the risk that the Adviser may not accurately evaluate the security's comparative credit rating. Analysis of creditworthiness of issuers of high yield securities may be more complex than for issuers of higher-quality debt securities. To the extent that the Fund purchases unrated securities, the Fund's success in achieving its investment objective may depend more heavily on the Adviser's creditworthiness analysis than if the Fund invested exclusively in rated securities.
- Money Market Fund Risk. An investment in a money market fund is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed by any bank or any government agency. It is possible for the Fund to lose money by investing in money market funds. The value of money market instruments may be affected by changing interest rates and by changes in the credit ratings of the investments held by the money market fund. If the liquidity of a money market fund's portfolio deteriorates below certain levels, the money market fund may suspend redemptions and thereby prevent the Fund from selling its investment in the money market fund or impose a fee of up to 2% on amounts the Fund redeems from the money market fund. These measures may result in an investment loss or prohibit the Fund from redeeming shares when the Adviser would otherwise redeem shares.
- U.S. Government Securities Risks. The Fund may invest, directly or indirectly, in U.S. Government Obligations. "U.S. Government Obligations" include securities, which are issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Department of the Treasury ("U.S. Treasury"), by various agencies of the U.S. government, and by various instrumentalities, which have been established or sponsored by the U.S. government. U.S. Treasury obligations are backed by the "full faith and credit" of the U.S. government. U.S. Treasury obligations include Treasury Bills, Treasury Notes, and Treasury Bonds. U.S. Government Obligations are subject to price fluctuations based upon changes in the level of interest rates, which will generally result in all those securities changing in price in the same way, i.e., all those securities experiencing appreciation when interest rates decline and depreciation when interest rates rise. Any guarantee of the U.S. government will not extend to the yield or value of the Fund's shares. Some obligations issued or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies, instrumentalities or GSEs, including, for example, pass-through certificates issued by Ginnie Mae, are supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. Other obligations issued by or guaranteed by federal agencies or GSEs, such as securities issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, are supported by the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase certain obligations of the federal agency or GSE, while other obligations issued by or guaranteed by federal agencies or GSEs, such as those of the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to borrow from the U.S. Treasury. The maximum potential liability of the issuers of some U.S. Government securities held by the Fund may greatly exceed their current resources, including their legal right to support from the U.S. Treasury. It is possible that these issuers will not have the funds to meet their payment obligations in the future.
- Valuation Risk. The valuation of securities or instruments that lack a central trading place (such as fixed-income securities or instruments) may carry greater risk than those that trade on an exchange. Accordingly, there is a risk that the determination of the fair value of a security or instrument will not approximate the price at which the Fund could sell the security or instrument at the time of the fair valuation.

Other Risks Relating to the Fund

- Cybersecurity Risks. Cybersecurity refers to the combination of technologies, processes and procedures established to protect information technology systems and data from unauthorized access, attack or damage. The Fund and its respective affiliates and third-party service providers are subject to cybersecurity risks. Cybersecurity risks have significantly increased in recent years, and the Fund could suffer material losses relating to cyber attacks or other information security breaches in the future. The Fund's and its respective affiliates' and third-party service providers' computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could have a security impact. If one or more of such events occur, this potentially could jeopardize confidential and other information, including nonpublic personal information and sensitive business data, processed and stored in, and transmitted through, computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in the Fund's operations or the operations of its respective affiliates and third-party service providers. This could result in financial losses to the Fund and its Shareholders. These failures or breaches may also result in disruptions to business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses; interference with the Fund's ability to calculate its NAV, process Shareholder transactions or otherwise transact business with Shareholders; impediments to trading; violations of applicable privacy and other laws; regulatory fines; penalties; reputational damage; reimbursement or other compensation costs; or additional compliance costs. In addition, substantial costs may be incurred in an attempt to prevent any cyber incidents in the future. The Fund has established risk management systems and business continuity plans designed to reduce the risks associated with cybersecurity. However, there is no guarantee that such efforts will succeed, especially since the Fund does not directly control the cybersecurity systems of issuers or third-party service providers. The Fund and its Shareholders could be negatively impacted as a result.
- General Market Risk. The NAV of the Fund and investment return will fluctuate based upon changes in the value of its portfolio securities. The market value of securities in which the Fund invests is based upon the market's perception of value and is not necessarily an objective measure of the securities' value. Other general market risks include: (i) the market may not recognize what the Adviser believes to be the true value or growth potential of the securities held by the Fund; (ii) the earnings of the companies in which the Fund invests will not continue to grow at expected rates, thus causing the price of the underlying securities to decline; (iii) the smaller a company's market capitalization, the greater the potential for price fluctuations and volatility of its securities due to lower trading volume for the stock, less publicly available information about the company and less liquidity in the market for the stock; (iv) the potential for price fluctuations in the securities of a medium capitalization company may be greater than that of a large capitalization company; (v) the Adviser's judgment as to the growth potential or value of a security may prove to be wrong; and (vi) a decline in investor demand for the securities held by the Fund also may adversely affect the value of the securities.
- Large Shareholder Transactions Risk. Shares of the Fund are offered to certain other investment companies, large retirement plans and other large investors. As a result, the Fund is subject to the risk that those Shareholders may purchase or request repurchase of a large amount of shares of the Fund. To satisfy such large Shareholder repurchase requests, the Fund may have to sell portfolio securities at times when it would not otherwise do so, which may negatively impact the Fund's NAV and liquidity. In addition, large purchases of Fund shares could adversely affect the Fund's performance to the extent that the Fund does not immediately invest cash it receives and therefore holds more cash than it ordinarily would. Large Shareholder activity could also generate increased transaction costs and cause adverse tax consequences.
- Other Investment Companies Risks. To the extent the Fund invests in other investment companies that invest in fixed-income securities, risks associated with investments in other investment companies will include fixed-income securities risks. In addition to the brokerage costs associated with the Fund's purchase and sale of the underlying securities, ETFs and mutual funds incur fees that are separate from those of the Fund. As a result, the Fund's Shareholders will indirectly bear a proportionate share of the operating expenses of the ETFs and mutual funds, in addition to Fund expenses. Because the Fund is not required to hold shares of underlying funds for any minimum period, it may be subject to, and may have to pay, short-term redemption fees imposed by the underlying funds. ETFs are subject to additional risks such as the fact that the market price of its shares may trade above or below its NAV or an active market may not develop. The Fund has no control over the investments and related risks taken by the underlying funds in which it invests. The 1940 Act and the rules and regulations adopted under that statute impose conditions on investment companies which invest in other investment companies, and as a result, the Fund is generally restricted on the amount of shares of another investment company to shares amounting to no more than 3% of the outstanding voting shares of such other investment company.

In addition to risks generally associated with investments in investment company securities, ETFs are subject to the following risks that do not apply to traditional mutual funds. One such risk is the risk that the market price of an ETF's shares may be above or below its NAV. For example, where all or a portion of an ETF's underlying securities trade in a market that is closed when the market in which the ETF's shares are listed and trading in that market is open, there may be changes between the last quote from its closed foreign market and the value of such security during the ETF's domestic trading day. Additionally, in stressed market conditions, the market for an ETF's shares may become less liquid in response to deteriorating liquidity in the markets for the ETF's underlying portfolio holdings. Either of these can result in differences between the market price of the ETF's shares and the underlying value of those shares. Furthermore, if securities underlying an ETF are traded outside of a collateralized settlement system, there are a limited number of financial institutions that may act as authorized participants that post collateral for certain trades on an agency basis (i.e., on behalf of other market participants). To the extent that those authorized participants exit the business or are unable to process creation and/or redemption orders and no other authorized participant is able to step forward to do so, there may be a significantly diminished trading market for the ETF's shares. This could in turn lead to difference between the market price of the ETF's shares and the Fund's NAV.

Other risks of ETFs that do not apply to traditional mutual funds include the risk that: (i) an active trading market for an ETF's shares may not develop or be maintained; (ii) the ETF may employ an investment strategy that utilizes high leverage ratios; (iii) trading of an ETF's shares may be halted if the listing exchange's officials deem such action appropriate; and (iv) underlying ETF shares may be de-listed from the exchange or the activation of market-wide "circuit breakers" (which are tied to large decreases in stock prices) may temporarily stop stock trading. In addition, purchases and redemptions of creation units primarily with cash, rather than through in-kind delivery of portfolio securities, may cause an ETF to incur certain costs. These costs could include brokerage costs or taxable gains or losses that the ETF might not have incurred if it had made redemption in-kind. These costs could be imposed on the ETF, and thus decrease the ETF's net asset value, to the extent that the costs are not offset by a transaction fee payable by an authorized participant.

• Regulatory and Legal Risks. U.S. and non-U.S. government agencies and other regulators regularly adopt new regulations and legislatures enact new statutes that affect the investments held by the Fund, the strategies used by the Fund or the level of regulation or taxation that applies to the Fund. These statutes and regulations may impact the investment strategies, performance, costs and operations of the Fund or the taxation of its Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

Trustees

Pursuant to the Fund's Declaration of Trust ("Declaration of Trust") and By-Laws ("By-Laws"), the Fund's business and affairs are managed under the direction of the Board, which has overall responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the Fund's management and operations. The Board consists of 4 members, 3 of whom are considered Independent Trustees. The Trustees are subject to removal or replacement in accordance with Delaware law and the Declaration of Trust. The Trustees serving on the Board have each been elected by the shareholders of the Fund. The Statement of Additional Information provides additional information about the Trustees.

Axonic serves as the Fund's investment adviser pursuant to the terms of the Investment Advisory Agreement and subject to the authority of, and any policies established by, the Board. Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Adviser manages the Fund's investment portfolio, directs purchases and sales of portfolio securities and reports thereon to the Fund's officers and Trustees regularly.

The Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees, oversees and monitors the Fund's investment performance. The Board will review on an annual basis the Investment Advisory Agreement to determine, among other things, whether the fees payable thereunder are reasonable in light of the services provided.

Investment Personnel

The Adviser's investment team includes:

Clayton DeGiacinto is Managing Member and Chief Investment Officer of Axonic. Mr. DeGiacentio has over 20 years' experience in the financial services and investment management industry. Prior to forming the Adviser, Mr. DeGiacinto was the Head of Mortgage Trading for Tower Research Capital LLC from December 2008 through December 2010. From July 2002 through March 2008, he was a Vice President in the Fixed Income, Currency and Commodities group at Goldman Sachs & Co. with responsibility for the hybrid and adjustable rate mortgage trading businesses, in both primary and secondary markets. Mr. DeGiacinto's duties at Goldman included securitization and retention of levered credit risk and convexity risk backed by adjustable rate and negatively amortizing residential mortgages. He was also responsible for running the RMBS credit book for all prime, alt-A and negatively amortizing structures. Mr. DeGiacinto received his MBA in Finance and Statistics from the Wharton School of Business. He served as a Captain in the U.S. Army in the 25th Infantry Division (Hawaii) from 1995 to 2000 after completing the U.S. Army Ranger School, Airborne School and Air Assault Course. He received a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the U.S. Military Academy at West Point.

Matthew Weinstein is a Partner and Head of Credit at Axonic. Mr. Weinstein has 20 years' experience in the financial services and investment management industry. Mr. Weinstein joined the Adviser in 2012 and is responsible for trading and portfolio management across the Adviser's credit businesses. Prior to joining the Adviser, Mr. Weinstein was a Vice President at Macquarie Capital where he managed a Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities (CMBS) principal investment strategy from 2010 through 2012. From 2003 to 2008, he was an Associate Director in the CMBS group at Bear Stearns & Co. Mr. Weinstein received his MBA in Finance at the New York University Stern School of Business and graduated from Cornell University with a BS in Industrial Labor Relations.

The Fund's statement of additional information provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts they manage, and their ownership of Fund Shares.

Control Persons

A control person generally is a person who beneficially owns more than 25% of the voting securities of a company or has the power to exercise control over the management or policies of such company. As of February 1, 2023, National Financial Services Corp. and Pershing LLC each owned of record 25% or more of the outstanding shares of the Fund.

Administrator and Transfer Agent

ALPS Fund Services, Inc. ("ALPS Fund Services"), 1290 Broadway, Suite 1000, Denver, CO 80203, acts as administrator to the Fund. Pursuant to the Fund's agreement with ALPS Fund Services, the Fund will pay ALPS Fund Services a fee equal to 0.09% the average daily net assets of the Fund, subject to an annual minimum amount of \$15,000. SS&C Global Investor & Distribution Solutions, Inc. ("SS&C GIDS, Inc."), located at 430 West 7th Street, Kansas City, MO 64105-1407, serves as the Fund's transfer agent pursuant to a services agreement. Pursuant to the Fund's Services Agreement with SS&C GIDS, Inc., SS&C GIDS, Inc. receives fees from the Fund for services performed as transfer agent. SS&C GIDS, Inc. receives a fee based on the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Custodian

U.S Bank, N.A, which has its principal office at U.S. Bank Tower, 425 Walnut Street, Cincinnati, OH 45202, serves as custodian for the Fund.

FUND EXPENSES

The Adviser bears all of its own costs incurred in providing investment advisory services to the Fund. As described below, however, the Fund bears all other expenses incurred in the business and operation of the Fund, including amounts that the Fund pays Axonic and ALPS Fund Services for certain services that Axonic and ALPS Fund Services provide or arrange to be provided to the Fund.

Expenses borne directly by the Fund include:

- the cost of calculating the NAV of Shares, including the cost of any third-party pricing or valuation services;
- the cost of effecting sales and repurchases of Shares and other securities;
- the Management Fee;
- investment related expenses (e.g., expenses that, in the Adviser's discretion, are related to the investment of the Fund's assets, whether or not such investments are consummated), including, as applicable, brokerage commissions, borrowing charges on securities sold short, clearing and settlement charges, recordkeeping, interest expense, dividends on securities sold but not yet purchased, and margin fees;
- · transfer agent and custodial fees;
- federal and any state registration or notification fees;
- federal, state and local taxes;
- fees and expenses of Trustees not also serving in an executive officer capacity for the Fund or the Adviser;
- the costs of preparing, printing and mailing reports and other communications, including repurchase offer correspondence or similar
 materials, to Shareholders (except that the Adviser bears the cost of printing and distributing extra copies of the Fund's prospectus,
 statement of additional information, and sales and advertising materials to prospective investors (but not to existing Shareholders));
- fidelity bond, Trustees and officers errors and omissions liability insurance and other insurance premiums;
- legal expenses (including those expenses associated with preparing the Fund's public filings, attending and preparing for Board meetings, as applicable, and generally serving as counsel to the Fund);
- external accounting expenses (including fees and disbursements and expenses related to the annual audit of the Fund and the
 preparation of the Fund's tax information);
- expenses with respect to the consideration and pursuit of transactions that are not ultimately consummated ("broken-deal expenses") (e.g., (i) research costs, (ii) fees and expenses of legal, financial, accounting, consulting or other advisers in connection with conducting due diligence or otherwise pursuing a particular non-consummated transaction, (iii) fees and expenses in connection with arranging financing for a particular non-consummated transaction, (iv) travel costs, (v) deposits or down payments that are forfeited in connection with, or amounts paid as a penalty for, a particular non-consummated transaction, and (vi) other expenses incurred in connection with activities related to a particular non-consummated transaction);
- costs associated with reporting and compliance obligations under the 1940 Act and applicable federal and state securities laws, including compliance with The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; and
- any expenses incurred outside of the ordinary course of business, including, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any claim, litigation, arbitration, mediation, government investigation or similar proceeding and indemnification expenses as provided for in the Fund's organizational documents.

Expense Limitation Arrangement

The Adviser has contractually agreed to waive its fees and/or reimburse certain expenses (inclusive of any organizational and offering costs, but exclusive of any taxes, interest on borrowings, dividends on securities sold short, brokerage commissions, 12b-1 fees, acquired fund fees and expenses, expenses incurred in connection with any merger or reorganization and extraordinary expenses) to limit the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses after Fee Waiver/Expense Reimbursement to 2.00% of the Fund's average daily net assets (the "Expense Limit") through February 28, 2024. The Expense Limit excludes certain expenses and, consequently, the Fund's Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses after Fee Waiver/Expense Reimbursement may be higher than the Expense Limit. The contractual waiver and expense reimbursement may be changed or eliminated at any time by the Board of Trustees, on behalf of the Fund, upon 60 days' written notice to the Adviser. The contractual fee waiver and expense reimbursement may not be terminated by the Adviser without the consent of the Board of Trustees. The Adviser may recoup from the Fund any waived amount or reimbursed expenses pursuant to this agreement if such recoupment does not cause the Fund to exceed the current Expense Limit or the Expense Limit in place at the time of the waiver or reimbursement (whichever is lower) and the recoupment is made within three years after the end of the month in which the Adviser incurred the expense.

Organization and Offering Costs

Organizational costs include, among other things, the cost of organizing as a Delaware statutory trust, including the cost of legal services and other fees pertaining to the Fund's organization. These costs are paid by the Adviser on behalf of the Fund.

The Fund's initial offering costs include, among other things, legal, accounting, printing and other expenses pertaining to this offering. These costs are paid by the Adviser on behalf of the Fund.

All organizational and offering costs of the Fund paid by the Adviser are subject to recoupment pursuant to the contractual fee waiver and expense reimbursement. See "Expense Limitation Arrangement."

MANAGEMENT FEE

Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, and in consideration of the advisory services provided by the Adviser to the Fund, the Adviser is entitled to a Management Fee. The Management Fee is calculated and payable monthly in arrears at the annual rate of 1.25% of the average daily value of the Fund's net assets.

Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's most recent approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement will be available in the Fund's semi-annual report on Form N-CSR for the period ending April 30, 2023.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The price at which you purchase or redeem Shares is based on the Fund's NAV. The Fund's NAV is calculated at the close of trading (normally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on each day the NYSE and the principal bond markets (as recommended by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association) are open for regular trading (e.g., the NYSE is closed on weekends, most federal holidays and Good Friday). The Fund's NAV is calculated by dividing the value of the Fund's total assets (including interest and dividends accrued but not yet received) minus liabilities (including accrued expenses) by the total number of Shares outstanding. Requests to purchase Shares are processed at the NAV next calculated after the Fund receives your order in proper form. If the NYSE is closed due to inclement weather, technology problems or any other reason on a day it would normally be open for business, or the NYSE has an unscheduled early closing on a day it has opened for business, the Fund reserves the right to treat such day as a business day and accept purchase orders until, and calculate the Fund's NAV as of, the normally scheduled close of regular trading on the NYSE for that day, so long as Fund management believes there remains an adequate market to meet purchase orders for that day.

In the event the Fund holds portfolio securities that trade in foreign markets or that are primarily listed on foreign exchanges that trade on weekends or other days when the Fund does not price its Shares, the NAV of the Fund's Shares may change on days when Shareholders will not be able to purchase the Fund's Shares.

The Board has approved procedures pursuant to which the Fund will value its investments and has delegated to the Adviser, as valuation designee, general responsibility for determining, in accordance with such procedures, the value of such investments. Generally, portfolio investments for which market quotations are readily available are valued at market value, which is ordinarily determined based on official closing prices or the last reported sale prices of an instrument. Where no such closing price or sale price is reported, market value is determined based on quotes obtained from market makers or prices supplied by one or more third-party pricing source ("Pricing Services"), which may include evaluated prices. Many of the types of investments in which the Fund invests are valued using evaluated prices provided by Pricing Services, which may be based on a number of factors, including, among other things, information obtained from market makers and estimates based on recent market prices for investments with similar characteristics. If market or evaluated prices are not readily available (including when they are not reliable), or if an event occurs after the close of the trading market but before the calculation of the Fund's NAV that materially affects the values, assets may be valued at a fair value by the Adviser, as valuation designee.

Fair valuation may occur in instances when market or evaluated prices are not available or are deemed not to be reliable or accurate in the opinion of the Adviser, or if an event occurs after the close of the trading market but before the calculation of the NAV that materially affects the values. Fair valuation could also occur in instances of (a) thinly traded securities or (b) lack of liquidity or depth in the market for the security. For example, the Fund may be obligated to fair value a foreign security because many foreign markets operate at times that do not coincide with those of the major U.S. markets. In such situations, the Adviser may consider, when calculating fair value, (a) the nature and duration of the restrictions upon disposition of the securities or other assets, (b) the extent to which there is market for similar securities or other assets of the same class, or (c) availability of fundamental analytical data relating to the investment including the use of proprietary pricing models. When pricing securities using these methods, the Fund (with the assistance of its Pricing Services and other service providers) seeks to assign the value that represents the amount that the Fund might reasonably expect to receive upon a current sale of the securities. In this regard, the Adviser, pursuant to the terms of the investment advisory agreement with the Fund, has agreed to provide the Fund's pricing information that the Adviser reasonably believes may assist in the determination of fair value consistent with requirements under the 1940 Act and the Fund's policies and procedures. The Fund's policies and procedures include the consideration of pricing information from one or more Pricing Services, which information is monitored by the Adviser daily.

When using pricing models or other pricing methods that are not based solely on market quotes for actively-traded securities, the Adviser's review process may include periodic back-testing by appropriate valuation personnel or third-party service providers, when applicable, of a sample of valuations, to the extent possible and where it is likely to provide a reasonable base of comparison, against the recent sale prices of investment positions. Back-testing, if performed, may focus on identifying trends in valuations versus sale prices, not the accuracy of individual marks for individual investment positions. Differences will be expected and viewed in the context of the overall analysis, especially since back-testing has inherent limitations, particularly during periods of market stress. This analysis can provide further assurance in assessing the quality of models and other evaluative processes being employed internally or by third-party service providers, but not absolute certainty to the accuracy of the fair value itself.

In calculating the Fund's NAV, the Adviser, as valuation designee, uses various valuation techniques. To the extent practicable, the Adviser generally endeavors to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs are to be used when available. The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from investment to investment and are affected by a wide variety of factors. When valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,

the determination of fair value requires more judgment, and may involve alternative methods to obtain fair values where market prices are not readily available. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used if a ready market for the investments existed. As a result, the Adviser may exercise a higher degree of judgement in determining fair value for certain financial instruments.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, given the subjectivity inherent in fair valuation and the fact that events could occur after NAV calculation, the actual market prices for a security may differ from the fair value of that security as determined by the Fund at the time of NAV calculation. Thus, discrepancies between fair values and actual market prices may occur on a regular and recurring basis. These discrepancies do not necessarily indicate that the Fund's fair value methodology is inappropriate. The Fund will adjust the fair values assigned to securities in the Fund's portfolio, to the extent necessary, as soon as market prices become available. The Fund (and its service providers) continually monitor and evaluate the appropriateness of their fair value methodologies through systematic comparisons of fair values to the actual next available market prices of securities contained in the Fund's portfolio. To the extent the Fund invests in other investment companies, the Fund's NAV is calculated based, in part, upon the NAVs of such investment companies; the prospectuses for those investment companies in which the Fund will invest describe the circumstances under which those investment companies will use fair value pricing, which, in turn, affects their NAVs.

Because the Fund relies on various sources to calculate its NAVs, the Fund is subject to certain operational risks associated with reliance on the Pricing Services and other service providers and data sources. The Fund's NAV calculation may be impacted by operational risks arising from factors such as failures in systems and technology. Such failures may result in delays in the calculation of the Fund's NAV and/or the inability to calculate NAV over extended time periods. The Fund may be unable to recover any losses associated with such failures.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Adviser and its affiliates, and their respective principals, members and employees (hereinafter referred to as the "Affiliated Parties") may serve as the investment adviser or the investment manager to other clients ("Affiliated Funds" and, together with the Affiliated Parties, the "Affiliated Persons") and conduct investment activities for their own accounts. Such activities may include making personal investments in real property, private companies, other funds and public companies, in each case subject to the Adviser's compliance policies and procedures. Such investment activities may be in competition with the Fund. In particular, the Affiliated Persons may invest in the same positions as the Fund. Furthermore, the Affiliated Persons may sell such investments to dealers, market makers and other third parties immediately after purchase. Affiliated Funds may have investment objectives or may implement investment strategies similar to those of the Fund, and such Affiliated Funds may pay higher or lower management or performance fees or allocations than those paid by investors of the Fund. The Adviser may seek to manage such competing interests by: (1) having a portfolio manager focus on a particular investment discipline; (2) utilizing a quantitative model in managing accounts; and/or (3) reviewing performance differences between similarly managed accounts on a periodic basis to ensure that any such differences are attributable to differences in investment guidelines, timing of cash flows and other suitable purposes. The Adviser has adopted policies and procedures intended to ensure that clients are treated fairly and equitably over time and to prevent any potential conflicts from influencing its investment recommendations or the allocation of investment opportunities among clients. In addition, both the Adviser and the Fund maintain a Code of Ethics that establishes standards and procedures for the detection and prevention of activities through which persons having knowledge of the investments and investm

The Affiliated Parties may also give advice or take action with respect to other clients that differs from the advice given with respect to the Fund. If a determination is made that multiple clients (which include the Fund) should enter into or exit the same transaction (or group of transactions) at or about the same time, such transaction(s) will generally be allocated among such clients based on such clients' relative target percentages (the "Target Allocation"), unless the Affiliated Parties determine in their discretion that the facts specific to the transaction(s) or the clients warrant an alternative methodology. Factors considered in respect of a targeted allocation include, without limitation, the relevant clients' strategy, objectives, risk profile, time horizon, tax status, imbalances or restrictions, investable cash, market liquidity, minimum transaction size, financing terms, holding period and type of asset, among other factors. Target Allocations are subject to change, including intra-day, in the discretion of the Affiliated Parties. In setting Target Allocations or determining that an alternative methodology is warranted, there is a potential conflict of interest for the Affiliated Parties to favor clients that pay higher fees or clients in which the Affiliated Parties have invested proprietary capital. The Adviser's allocation policy prohibits any allocation of investment opportunities based solely on the fees that may be earned by the Adviser. The allocation policy seeks to allocate investment opportunities among clients in a manner that is fair and equitable over time. In accordance with these procedures, at times, the Fund may receive a smaller portion of an investment opportunity than desired, or certain investment opportunities may be allocated to other funds or accounts managed by the Adviser pursuant to the allocation procedures. The allocation policy is subject to change from time to time in the discretion of the Adviser.

The Fund and other funds or accounts managed by the Affiliated Parties may make investments at different levels of an issuer's capital structure or otherwise in different classes of an issuer's securities. These investments could potentially cause conflicts of interest between or among the Fund and the other holders of various classes of securities. The Affiliated Persons may pursue or enforce rights with respect to an issuer in which the Fund has invested, and those activities may have an adverse effect on the Fund, such as the prices, availability, liquidity and terms of the Fund's investments and may impair Fund transactions or effect prices or terms that may be less favorable than would otherwise have been the case.

In the course of business, the Affiliated Parties may acquire material non-public information or otherwise be restricted from trading in certain potential investments that the Fund otherwise might have purchased or sold.

When processing securities transactions for the Affiliated Funds, the Affiliated Parties select a dealer to execute each order. In some transactions, Affiliated Parties may direct such transactions to a particular dealer for various reasons, including receipt of research or participation interests in initial public offerings that may or may not benefit the Fund. In such cases, the Affiliated Parties have adopted procedures to help ensure best execution of all client transactions.

The Fund may invest (including indirectly through derivatives or otherwise) in the same positions as one or more Affiliated Funds, or in instruments issued by the same obligor that are pari passu with, or senior or subordinate to, those in which one or more Affiliated Funds are invested. While the Adviser will endeavor to ensure that the terms and pricing to both the Fund and the Affiliated Funds are fair to each in transactions in which the Fund and the Affiliated Funds both participate, such terms and pricing may not be the same, and these transactions could create a potential conflict of interest for the Adviser.

Other funds or accounts managed by the Adviser and entities owned in whole or in part by Affiliated Parties have sought and may in the future seek mortgage financing from mortgage lenders, the recourse for which may be limited to the property. Because of the relationships that the Affiliated Parties have with these mortgage lenders, the terms of the mortgage financing provided by the mortgage lenders is expected to be better than the terms that could have been obtained by the Affiliated Parties from other mortgage lenders where the Affiliated Parties have no prior relationship. The Fund may commit with these same mortgage lenders or others to purchase the economic residual certificates or other securities in securitizations in which these mortgages are pooled with other mortgages. As holder of the economic residual certificates, in certain cases, the Fund and therefore the Adviser may effectively control the delinquency, default and foreclosure procedure for the mortgage loans in the securitization, and in connection therewith the Adviser could grant waivers, amendments and other accommodations to the Affiliated Parties. While such waivers, amendments and accommodations will be no more favorable to the Affiliated Parties than those which the Adviser believes in good faith at the time may be obtained from an independent third party, they may create a potential conflict of interest for the Adviser.

The Affiliated Parties may have conflicts of interest in allocating their time and activities between the Fund and the other clients, in allocating investments among the Fund and the other clients and in effecting transactions between the Fund and the other clients, including ones in which the Affiliated Parties may have a greater financial interest. To address this, the Fund's portfolio managers are compensated solely based on their ownership interests in the Adviser (which includes a guaranteed payment from the Adviser and may include distributions derived from the Adviser's profits) and not based on the performance of any clients or accounts.

The Adviser will use its best efforts in connection with the purposes and objectives of the Fund and will devote so much of its time and effort to the affairs of the Fund as may, in its judgment, be necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Fund. The Affiliated Parties may conduct any other business, including any business within the securities industry, whether or not such business is in competition with the Fund. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Affiliated Parties may act as the investment adviser or investment manager for others, may manage funds or capital for others, may have, make and maintain investments in their own name or through other entities, and may serve as officers, directors, consultants, partners or stockholders of one or more investment funds, partnerships, securities firms or advisory firms. It may not always be possible or consistent with the investment objectives of the various persons or entities described above and of the Fund for the same investment positions to be taken or liquidated at the same time or at the same price.

The Fund will be prohibited under the 1940 Act from participating in certain transactions with Affiliated Persons without the prior approval of the SEC. Any person that owns, directly or indirectly, 5% or more of the Fund's outstanding voting securities will be an affiliate of the Fund for purposes of the 1940 Act, and the Fund will generally be prohibited from buying or selling any securities from or to such affiliate. The 1940 Act also prohibits certain "joint" transactions with affiliates (including the Affiliated Parties), which could include investments in the same portfolio company (whether at the same or different times), without prior approval of the SEC. If a person acquires more than 25% of the Fund's voting securities, the Fund will be prohibited from buying or selling any security from or to such person or certain of that person's affiliates, or entering into prohibited joint transactions with such persons, absent the prior approval of the SEC. Similar restrictions limit the Fund's ability to transact business with its officers or Trustees or the Affiliated Parties. As a result of these restrictions, the Fund may be prohibited from buying or selling any security from or to any portfolio company of an Affiliated Fund without the prior approval of the SEC, which may limit the scope of investment opportunities that would otherwise be available to the Fund.

The Fund's investment strategy contemplates that the Fund may invest capital in negotiated transactions that are sourced by the Adviser. These transactions may include transactions that are privately negotiated and sourced on a proprietary basis. Because the Adviser may manage other investment funds whose mandates include participating in such transactions, such investments will need to be made on a co-investment basis. The 1940 Act imposes significant limits on co-investment with Affiliated Persons.

The Fund may also invest alongside the Affiliated Funds in certain circumstances where doing so is consistent with applicable law and SEC staff interpretations and guidance as well as the Adviser's allocation policies. However, the Fund can offer no assurance that investment opportunities will be allocated to it fairly or equitably in the short-term or over time.

In situations where co-investment with Affiliated Funds is not permitted under the 1940 Act and related rules, existing or future staff guidance, or the terms and conditions of exemptive relief granted to the Fund by the SEC, the Adviser will need to decide which client or clients will proceed with the investment. Generally, the Fund will not have an entitlement to make a co-investment in these circumstances and, to the extent that another client elects to proceed with the investment, the Fund will not be permitted to participate. Moreover, except in certain circumstances, the Fund is unable to invest in any issuer in which an Affiliated Fund holds a controlling interest. These restrictions may limit the scope of investment opportunities that would otherwise be available to the Fund.

The Fund and one or more Affiliated Funds may participate in a particular investment or incur expenses applicable in connection with the operation or management of the Fund and Affiliated Funds, or otherwise may be subject to costs or expenses that are allocable to the Fund and one or more Affiliated Funds (which may include, without limitation, research expenses, technology expenses, valuation agent expenses, broken deal expenses, expenses relating to restructurings, class actions and other litigation, and insurance premiums). The Adviser may allocate investment-related and other expenses on a pro rata or different basis. The Adviser may bear any such expenses on behalf of certain Affiliated Funds and not for others, as it determines in its sole discretion. If the Adviser bears expenses on behalf of the Fund or an Affiliated Fund, and the fund subsequently receives reimbursement for such expenses, the Adviser will generally be entitled to receive all or a portion of the amount of such reimbursement, up to the amount that was borne by the Adviser on behalf of the fund.

The Adviser has adopted policies and procedures designed to prevent conflicts of interest from influencing proxy voting decisions made on behalf of advisory clients, including the Fund, and to help ensure that such decisions are made in accordance with its fiduciary obligations to clients. Nevertheless, notwithstanding such proxy voting policies and procedures, actual proxy voting decisions may have the effect of favoring the interests of other clients, provided that the Advisors believe such voting decisions to be in accordance with its fiduciary obligations.

The Adviser and the Fund have adopted certain compliance procedures which are designed to identify, address and resolve conflicts of interest. However, there is no guarantee that such procedures will detect each and every situation in which a conflict arises.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

The Fund does not currently intend to list the Shares on a securities exchange and does not expect a secondary market to develop in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, Shareholders should expect that they will be unable to sell their Shares for an indefinite time or at a desired price. No Shareholder will have the right to require the Fund to repurchase or redeem such Shareholder's Shares or any portion thereof. Shareholders are not permitted to transfer their investment from the Fund to any other registered investment company. Because no public market exists for the Shares, and no such market is expected to develop in the foreseeable future, Shareholders will not be able to liquidate their investment, other than through the Fund's share repurchase program, or, in limited circumstances, as a result of transfers of Shares to other investors.

The Fund is an "interval fund," which is designed to provide some liquidity to Shareholders by making quarterly offers to repurchase between 5% and 25% of its outstanding Shares at NAV, pursuant to Rule 23c-3 under the 1940 Act, unless such offer is suspended or postponed in accordance with relevant regulatory requirements (as discussed below). In connection with any given repurchase offer, it is possible that the Fund may offer to repurchase only the minimum allowable amount of 5% of its outstanding Shares. Quarterly repurchases will occur in the months of March, June, September and December. The Fund's offer to purchase Shares is a fundamental policy that may not be changed without the approval of the holders of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities (as defined in the 1940 Act). Written notifications of each quarterly repurchase offer (the "Repurchase Offer Notice") will be sent to Shareholders at least 21 calendar days before the repurchase request deadline (i.e., the date by which Shareholders can tender their Shares in response to a repurchase offer) (the "Repurchase Request Deadline"), which is ordinarily on the third Friday of the month in which the repurchase occurs. The Fund expects to determine the NAV applicable to repurchases on the business day following the Repurchase Request Deadline. However, the NAV will be calculated no later than the 14th calendar day (or the next business day if the 14th calendar day is not a business day) after the Repurchase Request Deadline (the "Repurchase Pricing Date"), although the NAV is expected to be determined on the business day following the Repurchase Request Deadline. The Fund expects to distribute payment to Shareholders between one and three business days after the Repurchase Pricing Date and will distribute such payment no later than seven calendar days after such Date. The Fund's Shares are not listed on any securities exchange, and the Fund anticipates that no secondary market will develop for its Shares. Accordingly, you may not be able to sell Shares when and/or in the amount that you desire. Thus, the Shares are appropriate only as a long-term investment. In addition, the Fund's repurchase offers may subject the Fund and Shareholders to special risks. See "Types of Investments and Related Risks-Repurchase Offers Risks."

Determination of Repurchase Offer Amount

The Board, or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion, will determine the number of Shares that the Fund will offer to repurchase (the "Repurchase Offer Amount") in connection with any given Repurchase Request Deadline. However, the Repurchase Offer Amount, will be no less than 5% and no more than 25% of the total number of Shares outstanding on the Repurchase Request Deadline.

If Shareholders tender more than the Repurchase Offer Amount for a given repurchase offer, the Fund will repurchase the Shares on a pro rata basis. However, the Fund is permitted to accept all Shares tendered for repurchase by Shareholders who own less than one hundred Shares and who tender all of their Shares, before prorating other amounts tendered.

Notice to Shareholders

No less than 21 days and more than 42 days before each Repurchase Request Deadline, the Fund will send each Shareholder of record and each beneficial owner of the Shares that are the subject of the repurchase offer a notification ("Shareholder Notification"). The Shareholder Notification will contain information Shareholders should consider in deciding whether to tender Shares for repurchase. The notice also will include detailed instructions on how to tender shares for repurchase, state the Repurchase Offer Amount and set forth the Repurchase Request Deadline, the scheduled Repurchase Pricing Date, and the date the repurchase proceeds are scheduled for payment (the "Repurchase Payment Deadline"). The notice will also indicate the NAV that has been computed no more than seven days before the date of notification, and the process through which Shareholders may ascertain the NAV after the notification date.

Repurchase Price

The repurchase price of the Shares will be the NAV of the Shares as of the close of regular trading on the NYSE on the Repurchase Pricing Date. Investors may call (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic) to learn the NAV. The notice of the repurchase offer also will provide information concerning the NAV, such as the NAV as of a recent date or a sampling of recent NAVs of the Fund, and a toll-free number for information regarding the repurchase offer.

Repurchase Amounts and Payment of Proceeds

Shares tendered for repurchase by Shareholders prior to any Repurchase Request Deadline will be repurchased subject to the aggregate Repurchase Offer Amount established for that Repurchase Request Deadline. Payment pursuant to the repurchase offer will be made by check to the Shareholder's address of record, or credited directly to a predetermined bank account on the Purchase Payment Date, which will be no more than seven days after the Repurchase Pricing Date. The Board may establish other policies for repurchases of shares that are consistent with the 1940 Act, regulations thereunder and other pertinent laws.

If Shareholders tender for repurchase more than the Repurchase Offer Amount for a given repurchase offer, the Fund may, but is not required to, repurchase an additional amount of Shares not to exceed 2.00% of the outstanding Shares on the Repurchase Request Deadline. If the Fund determines not to repurchase more than the Repurchase Offer Amount, or if Shareholders tender Shares in an amount exceeding the Repurchase Offer Amount plus 2.00% of the outstanding Shares on the Repurchase Request Deadline, the Fund will repurchase Shares on a pro rata basis. However, the Fund may accept all Shares tendered for repurchase by Shareholders who own less than one hundred Shares and who tender all of their Shares, before prorating other amounts tendered.

The Fund may in the future impose a repurchase fee. However, any such repurchase fee would only apply to shares purchased after the repurchase fee is adopted and disclosed in the Registration Statement.

Consequences of Repurchase Offers

From the time the Fund sends the Shareholder Notification until the Repurchase Pricing Date for that offer, the Fund must maintain liquid assets at least equal to the percentage of its Shares subject to the repurchase offer. For this purpose, liquid assets are investments that can be sold or otherwise disposed of in the ordinary course of business, at approximately the price at which the Fund values them, within the period between the Repurchase Request Deadline and the repurchase payment deadline, or that mature by the Repurchase Payment Deadline. The Fund is also permitted to borrow up to the maximum extent permitted under the 1940 Act to meet repurchase requests.

If the Fund borrows to finance repurchases, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect Shareholders who do not tender their Shares by increasing the Fund's expenses and reducing any net investment income. There is no assurance that the Fund will be able sell a significant amount of additional Shares so as to mitigate these effects.

These and other possible risks associated with the Fund's repurchase offers are described under "Other Risks Related to the Fund — Repurchase Offers Risks" above. In addition, the repurchase of Shares by the Fund will be a taxable event to Shareholders. For a discussion of these tax consequences, see "Tax Aspects" below and in the Statement of Additional Information.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shares of Beneficial Interest

The Declaration of Trust authorizes the Fund's issuance of an unlimited number of Shares of beneficial interest of each class. There is currently no market for Shares and the Fund does not expect that a market for Shares will develop in the foreseeable future. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and as permitted by Delaware law, Shareholders are entitled to the same limitation of personal liability extended to stockholders of private corporations organized for profit incorporated in the State of Delaware and therefore generally will not be personally liable for the Fund's debts or obligations.

Share Classes

The Fund is offering on a continuous basis an unlimited number of Shares. The Fund may offer additional classes of shares in the future. The Fund has received an exemptive order from the SEC that will permit the Fund to issue multiple classes of shares in the future. Until the Fund registers a new share class, the Fund will only offer one class of shares.

Shares

Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, all Shares, when consideration for Shares is received by the Fund, will be fully paid and nonassessable. Distributions may be paid to Shareholders if, as and when authorized and declared by the Board. Except as otherwise provided by the Trustees, Shares will have no preemptive or other right to subscribe to any additional Shares or other securities issued by the Fund, and will be freely transferable, except where their transfer is restricted by law or contract. The Declaration of Trust provides that the Board shall have the power to repurchase or redeem Shares. In the event of the Fund's dissolution, after the Fund pays or adequately provides for the payment of all claims and obligations of the Fund, and upon the receipt of such releases, indemnities and refunding agreements deemed necessary by the Board, each Share will be entitled to receive, according to its respective rights, a *pro rata* portion of the Fund's assets available for distribution for the applicable class, subject to any preferential rights of holders of the Fund's outstanding preferred Shares, if any. Each whole Share will be entitled to one vote as to any matter on which it is entitled to vote and each fractional Share will be entitled to a proportionate fractional vote. However, to the extent required by the 1940 Act or otherwise determined by the Board, classes of the Fund will vote separately from each other. Shareholders shall be entitled to vote on all matters on which a vote of Shareholders is required by the 1940 Act, the Declaration of Trust or a resolution of the Board. There will be no cumulative voting in the election of Trustees. Under the Declaration of Trust, the Fund is not required to hold annual meetings of Shareholders. The Fund only expects to hold Shareholder meetings to the extent required by the 1940 Act or pursuant to special meetings called by the Board or a majority of Shareholders.

Preferred Shares and Other Securities

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Board may, subject to the Fund's investment policies and restrictions and the requirements of the 1940 Act, authorize and cause the Fund to issue securities of the Fund other than Shares (including preferred Shares, debt securities or other senior securities), by action of the Board without the approval of Shareholders. The Board may determine the terms, rights, preferences, privileges, limitations and restrictions of such securities as the Board sees fit.

Preferred Shares could be issued with rights and preferences that would adversely affect Shareholders. Preferred Shares could also be used as an anti-takeover device. Every issuance of preferred Shares will be required to comply with the requirements of the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act requires, among other things, that (i) immediately after issuance of preferred Shares and before any distribution is made with respect to the Shares and before any purchase of Shares is made, the aggregate involuntary liquidation preference of such preferred Shares together with the aggregate involuntary liquidation preference or aggregate value of all other senior securities must not exceed an amount equal to 50% of the Fund's total

assets after deducting the amount of such distribution or purchase price, as the case may be; and (ii) the holders of preferred Shares, if any are issued, must be entitled as a class to elect two Trustees at all times and to elect a majority of the Trustees if distributions on such preferred Shares are in arrears by two years or more. Certain matters under the 1940 Act require the separate vote of the holders of any issued and outstanding preferred Shares.

Outstanding Securities

The following table sets forth information about the Fund's outstanding Shares as of February 1, 2023:

	Amount Held by the Fund			
	Amount Authorized	for its Own Account	Amount Outstanding	
Shares of Beneficial Interest	Unlimited	None	5,764,122.811	

Limitation on Liability of Trustees and Officers; Indemnification and Advance of Expenses

Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, Trustees and officers of the Fund will not be subject in such capacity to any personal liability to the Fund or Shareholders, unless the liability arises from bad faith, willful misfeasance, gross negligence or reckless disregard for the Trustee's or officer's duty.

Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration of Trust, the Fund will indemnify and hold harmless any current or former Trustee or officer of the Fund against any liabilities and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees relating to the defense of any claim, action, suit or proceeding with which such person is involved or threatened), while and with respect to acting in the capacity of a Trustee or officer of the Fund, except with respect to matters in which such person did not act in good faith in the reasonable belief that his or her action was in the best interest of the Fund. In accordance with the 1940 Act, the Fund will not indemnify any Trustee or officer for any liability to which such person would be subject by reason of his or her willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of the duties of his or her position. The Fund will provide indemnification to Trustees and officers prior to a final determination regarding entitlement to indemnification as described in the Declaration of Trust.

The Fund has entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement with Axonic. The Investment Advisory Agreement provides that, in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard for its obligations and duties thereunder, the Adviser is not liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss the Fund suffers.

Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the Fund will advance the expenses of defending any action for which indemnification is sought if the Fund receives an undertaking by the indemnitee which provides that the indemnitee will reimburse the Fund unless it is subsequently determined that the indemnitee is entitled to such indemnification.

Number of Trustees; Appointment of Trustees; Vacancies; Removal

The Declaration of Trust provides that the number of Trustees shall be no less than two and no more than 10, as determined in writing by a majority of the Trustees then in office. As set forth in the Declaration of Trust, a Trustee's term of office shall continue until his or her death, resignation or removal. Subject to the provisions of the 1940 Act, individuals may be appointed by the Trustees at any time to fill vacancies on the Board by the appointment of such persons by a majority of the Trustees then in office. Each Trustee shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been appointed pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. To the extent that the 1940 Act requires that Trustees be elected by Shareholders, any such Trustees will be elected by a plurality of all Shares voted at a meeting of Shareholders at which a quorum is present.

The Declaration of Trust provides that any Trustee may be removed (provided that after the removal the aggregate number of Trustees is not less than the minimum required by the Declaration of Trust) (i) with or without cause, by at least two-thirds (66 2/3%) of the remaining Trustees; or (ii) with or without cause, at any meeting of Shareholders, by at least two-thirds (66 2/3%) of the outstanding shares of the Trust.

Action by Shareholders

The Declaration of Trust provides that Shareholder action can be taken only at a meeting of Shareholders or by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting. Subject to the 1940 Act, the Declaration of Trust or a resolution of the Board specifying a greater or lesser vote requirement, the affirmative vote of a majority of Shares present in person or represented by proxy at a meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter shall be the act of the Shareholders with respect to any matter submitted to a vote of the Shareholders.

Amendment of Declaration of Trust and By-Laws

Subject to the provisions of the 1940 Act, pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the Board may amend the Declaration of Trust without any vote of Shareholders. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and By-Laws, the Board has the exclusive power to amend or repeal the By-Laws or adopt new By-Laws at any time.

No Appraisal Rights

In certain extraordinary transactions, some jurisdictions provide the right to dissenting Shareholders to demand and receive the fair value of their Shares, subject to certain procedures and requirements set forth in such statute. Those rights are commonly referred to as appraisal rights. The Declaration of Trust provides that Shares shall not entitle Shareholders to appraisal rights.

Conflict with Applicable Laws and Regulations

The Declaration of Trust provides that if and to the extent that any provision of the Declaration of Trust conflicts with any provision of the 1940 Act, the provisions under the Code applicable to the Fund as a RIC or other applicable laws and regulations, the conflicting provision shall be deemed never to have constituted a part of the Declaration of Trust; provided, however, that such determination shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Declaration of Trust or affect the validity of any action taken or omitted to be taken prior to such determination.

TAX ASPECTS

The following is a general summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to the Fund and an investment in the Fund. The discussion below provides general tax information related to an investment in the Fund, but does not purport to be a complete description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of an investment in the Fund and does not address any state, local, non-U.S., or other tax consequences. It is based on the Code and U.S. Treasury regulations thereunder and administrative pronouncements, all as of the date hereof, any of which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. In addition, it does not describe all of the tax consequences that may be relevant in light of a Shareholder's particular circumstances, including (but not limited to) federal alternative minimum tax consequences and tax consequences applicable to Shareholders subject to special tax rules, such as certain financial institutions; dealers or traders in securities who use a mark-to-market method of tax accounting; persons holding Shares as part of a hedging transaction, wash sale, conversion transaction or integrated transaction or persons entering into a constructive sale with respect to Shares; entities classified as partnerships or other pass-through entities for U.S. federal income tax purposes; insurance companies; U.S. Shareholders (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar; or tax-exempt entities, including "individual retirement accounts" or "Roth IRAs." As with any taxable investment, Shareholders may be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax on their income (including taxable income from the Fund), depending on their individual circumstances. Unless otherwise noted, the following discussion applies only to a Shareholder that holds Shares as a capital asset and is a U.S. Shareholder. A "U.S. Shareholder" generally is a beneficial owner of Shares who is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof
 or the District of Columbia;
- an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- a trust if it (a) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (b) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

If a partnership (including an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds Shares, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership will generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. A prospective Shareholder that is a partner in a partnership holding Shares should consult his, her or its tax advisors with respect to the purchase, ownership, and disposition of Shares.

The discussion set forth herein does not constitute tax advice. Tax laws are complex and often change, and Shareholders should consult their tax advisors about the U.S. federal, state, local, or non-U.S. tax consequences of an investment in the Fund.

Taxation of the Fund

The Fund has elected, to be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and has qualified and intends to continue to qualify annually, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. As a RIC, the Fund generally will not be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains that it distributes as dividends to Shareholders. To qualify as a RIC in any tax year, the Fund must, among other things, satisfy both a source of income test and asset diversification tests. The Fund will qualify as a RIC if (i) at least 90% of the Fund's gross income for such tax year consists of dividends; interest; payments with respect to certain securities loans; gains from the sale or other disposition of stock or securities (as defined in section 2(a)(36) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended) or foreign currencies; other income (including, but not limited to, gains from options, futures or forward contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities or currencies; and net income derived from interests in "qualified publicly-traded partnerships" as defined in Code section 851(h) (such income, "Qualifying RIC Income"); and (ii) the Fund's holdings are diversified so that, at the end of each quarter of such tax year, (a) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets is represented by cash and cash equivalents, securities of other RICs, U.S. government securities and other securities, with such other securities limited, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not greater than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer and (b) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets is invested (x) in securities (other than U.S. government securities or securities of other RICs) of any one issuer; (y) in securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of two or more issuers that the Fund controls and that are engaged in the same, similar or related trades or businesses; or (z) in the securities of one or more "qualified publicly-traded partnerships" as defined in Code section 851(h). The Fund's share of income derived from a partnership other than a "qualified publicly-traded partnership" will be treated as Qualifying RIC Income only to the extent that such income would have constituted Qualifying RIC Income if derived directly by the Fund. A "qualified publicly-traded partnership" is generally defined as an entity that is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes if (1) interests in such entity are traded on an established securities market or are readily tradable on a secondary market or the substantial equivalent thereof and (2) less than 90% of its gross income for the relevant tax year consists of Qualifying RIC Income. The Code provides that the Treasury Department may, by regulation, exclude from Qualifying RIC Income foreign currency gains that are not directly related to the RIC's principal business of investing in shares or securities (or options and futures with respect to shares or securities). The Fund anticipates that, in general, its foreign currency gains will be directly related to its principal business of investing in shares and securities.

In addition, to maintain RIC tax treatment, the Fund must distribute on a timely basis with respect to each tax year dividends of an amount at least equal to 90% of the sum of its "investment company taxable income" and its net tax-exempt interest income, determined without regard to any deduction for dividends paid, to Shareholders (the "90% Distribution Requirement"). If the Fund qualifies as a RIC and satisfies the 90% Distribution Requirement, the Fund generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its "investment company taxable income" and net capital gains (that is, the excess of net long-term capital gains over net short-term capital losses) that it distributes as dividends to Shareholders (including amounts that are reinvested pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan). In general, a RIC's "investment company taxable income" for any tax year is its taxable income, determined without regard to net capital gains and with certain other adjustments. The Fund intends to distribute all or substantially all of its "investment company taxable income," net tax-exempt interest income (if any), and net capital gains on an annual basis. Any taxable income, including any net capital gains that the Fund does not distribute in a timely manner, will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates. These rates are set at a flat 21% for tax year 2023.

If the Fund retains any net capital gains for reinvestment, it may elect to treat such capital gains as having been distributed to Shareholders. If the Fund makes such an election, each Shareholder will be required to report its share of such undistributed net capital gains attributed to the Fund as long-term capital gain and will be entitled to claim its share of the U.S. federal income taxes paid by the Fund on such undistributed net capital gains as a credit against its own U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, and to claim a refund on a properly-filed U.S. federal income tax return to the extent that the credit exceeds such liability. In addition, each Shareholder will be entitled to increase the adjusted tax basis of its Shares by the difference between its share of such undistributed net capital gain and the related credit. There can be no assurance that the Fund will make this election if it retains all or a portion of its net capital gain for a tax year.

As a RIC, the Fund will be, subject to a nondeductible 4% federal excise tax on certain undistributed amounts for each calendar year (the "4% Excise Tax"). To avoid the 4% Excise Tax, the Fund must distribute in respect of each calendar year dividends of an amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of its ordinary taxable income (taking into account certain deferrals and elections) for the calendar year, (2) 98.2% of its capital gain net income (adjusted for certain ordinary losses) generally for the one-year period ending on October 31 of the calendar year and (3) any ordinary income and capital gains for previous calendar years that were not distributed during those calendar years. For purposes of determining whether the Fund has met this distribution requirement, the Fund will be deemed to have distributed any income or gains previously subject to U.S. federal income tax. Furthermore, any distribution declared by the Fund in October, November, or December of any calendar year, payable to Shareholders, of record on a specified date in such a month and actually paid during January of the following calendar year, will be treated for tax purposes as if it had been paid on December 31 of the calendar year in which the distribution was declared. The Fund generally intends to avoid the imposition of the 4% Excise Tax, but there can be no assurance in this regard.

If the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC or fails to satisfy the 90% Distribution Requirement in respect of any tax year, the Fund would be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates on its taxable income, including its net capital gains, even if such income were distributed, and all distributions out of earnings and profits would be taxed as ordinary dividend income. Such distributions generally would be eligible for the dividends-received deduction in the case of certain corporate Shareholders and may be eligible to be qualified dividend income in the case of certain non-corporate Shareholders. In addition, the Fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay taxes, and make distributions (any of which could be subject to interest charges) before re-qualifying for taxation as a RIC. If the Fund fails to satisfy either the income test or asset diversification test described above, in certain cases, however, the Fund may be able to avoid losing its status as a RIC by timely providing notice of such failure to the IRS, curing such failure and possibly paying an additional tax or penalty.

Some of the investments that the Fund is expected to make, such as investments in debt instruments having market discount and/or treated as issued with OID, may cause the Fund to recognize income or gain for U.S. federal income tax purposes prior to the receipt of any corresponding cash or other property. As a result, the Fund may have difficulty meeting the 90% Distribution Requirement necessary to maintain RIC tax treatment. Because this income will be included in the Fund's investment company taxable income for the tax year it is accrued, the Fund may be required to make a distribution to Shareholders to meet the distribution requirements described above, even though the Fund will not have received any corresponding cash or property. The Fund may be required to borrow money, dispose of other securities or forgo new investment opportunities for this purpose.

There may be uncertainty as to the appropriate treatment of certain of the Fund's investments for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In particular, the Fund expects to invest a portion of its net assets in below investment grade instruments. U.S. federal income tax rules with respect to such instruments are not entirely clear about issues such as whether and to what extent the Fund should recognize interest, OID or market discount, when and to what extent deductions may be taken for bad debts or worthless instruments, how payments received on obligations in default should be allocated between principal and income and whether exchanges of debt obligations in a bankruptcy or workout context are taxable. These and other issues will be addressed by the Fund, to the extent necessary, in connection with the Fund's general intention to distribute sufficient income to qualify, and maintain its qualification to be subject to tax as a RIC and to minimize the risk that it becomes subject to U.S. federal income or excise tax.

Income received by the Fund from sources outside the U.S. may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed by such countries, thereby reducing income available to the Fund. Tax conventions between certain countries and the United States may reduce or eliminate such taxes. If more than 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets at the close of its tax year consists of securities of foreign corporations, the Fund will be eligible to elect to "pass-through" to the Fund the foreign source amount of income deemed earned and the respective amount of foreign taxes paid by the Fund. If at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets at the close of each quarter of its tax year is represented by interests in other RICs, the Fund may elect to "pass-through" to Shareholders the foreign source amount of income deemed earned and the respective amount of foreign taxes paid or deemed paid by the Fund. If the Fund so elects, each Shareholder would be required to include in gross income, even though not actually received, each Shareholder's *pro rata* share of the foreign taxes paid or deemed paid by the Fund, but would be treated as having paid its *pro rata* share of such foreign taxes and would therefore be allowed to either deduct such amount in computing taxable income or use such amount (subject to various limitations) as a foreign tax credit against federal income tax (but not both).

The Fund may invest in shares of foreign companies that are classified under the Code as passive foreign investment companies ("PFICs"). In general, a foreign company is considered a PFIC if at least 50% of its assets constitute investment-type assets or 75% or more of its gross income is investment-type income. In general, under the PFIC rules, an "excess distribution" received with respect to PFIC shares is treated as having been realized ratably over the period during which the Fund held the PFIC shares. The Fund generally will be subject to tax on the portion, if any, of the

excess distribution that is allocated to the Fund's holding period in prior tax years (and an interest factor will be added to the tax, as if the tax had actually been payable in such prior tax years) even though the Fund distributes the corresponding income to Shareholders. Excess distributions include any gain from the sale of PFIC shares as well as certain distributions from a PFIC. All excess distributions are taxable as ordinary income.

The Fund may be eligible to elect alternative tax treatment with respect to PFIC shares. Under one such election (i.e., a "QEF" election), the Fund generally would be required to include in its gross income its share of the earnings of a PFIC on a current basis, regardless of whether any distributions are received from the PFIC. If this election is made, the special rules, discussed above, relating to the taxation of excess distributions, would not apply. Alternatively, the Fund may be able to elect to mark its PFIC shares to market, resulting in any unrealized gains at the Fund's tax year end being treated as though they were recognized and reported as ordinary income. Any mark-to-market losses and any loss from an actual disposition of the PFIC's Shares would be deductible as ordinary losses to the extent of any net mark-to-market gains included in income in prior tax years with respect to shares in the same PFIC.

Because the application of the PFIC rules may affect, among other things, the character of gains, the amount of gain or loss and the timing of the recognition of income, gain or loss with respect to PFIC shares, as well as subject the Fund itself to tax on certain income from PFIC shares, the amount that must be distributed to Fund Shareholders, and which will be recognized by Fund Shareholders as ordinary income or long-term capital gain, may be increased or decreased substantially as compared to a fund that did not invest in PFIC shares. Note that distributions from a PFIC are not eligible for the reduced rate of tax on distributions of "qualified dividend income" as discussed below.

Some of the CLOs in which the Fund invests may be PFICs, which are generally subject to the tax consequences described above. Investment in certain equity interests of CLOs that are subject to treatment as PFICs for U.S. federal income tax purposes may cause the Fund to recognize income in a tax year in excess of the Fund's distributions from such CLOs, PFICs and the Fund's proceeds from sales or other dispositions of equity interests in other CLOs and other PFICs during that tax year. As a result, the Fund generally would be required to distribute such income to satisfy the distribution requirements applicable to RICs.

If the Fund holds more than 10% of the interests treated as equity for U.S. federal income tax purposes in a foreign corporation that is treated as a controlled foreign corporation ("CFC"), including equity tranche investments and certain debt tranche investments in a CLO treated as CFC, the Fund may be treated as receiving a deemed distribution (taxable as ordinary income) each tax year from such foreign corporation of an amount equal to the Fund's *pro rata* share of the foreign corporation's earnings for such tax year (including both ordinary earnings and capital gains), whether or not the corporation makes an actual distribution to the Fund during such tax year. This deemed distribution is required to be included in the income of certain U.S. Shareholders of a CFC, such as the Fund, regardless of whether a U.S. Shareholder has made a QEF election with respect to such CFC. The Fund is generally required to distribute such income in order to satisfy the distribution requirements applicable to RICs, even to the extent the Fund's income from a CFC exceeds the distributions from the CFC and the Fund's proceeds from the sales or other dispositions of CFC stock during that tax year. In general, a foreign corporation will be treated as a CFC for U.S. federal income tax purposes if more than 50% of the shares of the foreign corporation, measured by reference to combined voting power or value, is owned (directly, indirectly or by attribution) by U.S. Shareholders. A "U.S. Shareholder," for this purpose, is any U.S. person that possesses (actually or constructively) 10% or more of the combined value or voting power of all classes of shares of a corporation.

The functional currency of the Fund, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is the U.S. dollar. Gains or losses attributable to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates that occur between the time the Fund accrues interest income or other receivables or accrues expenses or other liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and the time the Fund actually collects such receivables or pays such liabilities generally are respectively characterized as ordinary income or ordinary loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Similarly, on the sale of other disposition of certain investments, including debt securities, certain forward contracts, as well as other derivative financial instruments, denominated in a foreign currency, gains or losses attributable to fluctuations in the value of foreign currency between the date of acquisition of the security or contract and the date of disposition also are generally treated as ordinary gain or loss. These gains and losses, referred to under the Code as "section 988" gains and losses, may increase or decrease the amount of the Fund's investment company taxable income subject to distribution to Fund Shareholders as ordinary income. For example, fluctuations in exchange rates may increase the amount of income that the Fund must distribute to qualify for tax treatment as a RIC and to prevent application of an excise tax on undistributed income. Alternatively, fluctuations in exchange rates may decrease or eliminate income available for distribution. If section 988 losses exceed other investment company taxable income during a tax year, the Fund would not be able to distribute amounts considered dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and any distributions during a tax year made by the Fund before such losses were recognized would be re-characterized as a return of capital to Fund Shareholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes, rather than as ordinary dividend income, and would reduce each Fund Shareholder's tax basis in Fund Shares.

If the Fund utilizes leverage through the issuance of preferred Shares or borrowings, it will be prohibited from declaring a distribution or dividend if it would fail the applicable asset coverage test(s) under the 1940 Act after the payment of such distribution or dividend. In addition, certain covenants in credit facilities or indentures may impose greater restrictions on the Fund's ability to declare and pay dividends on Fund Shares. Limits on the Fund's ability to pay dividends on Fund Shares may prevent the Fund from meeting the distribution requirements described above and, as a result, may affect the Fund's ability to be subject to tax as a RIC or subject the Fund to the 4% Excise Tax. The Fund endeavors to avoid restrictions on its ability to make distribution payments. If the Fund is precluded from making distributions on Fund Shares because of any applicable asset coverage requirements, the terms of preferred Shares (if any) may provide that any amounts so precluded from being distributed, but required to be distributed by the Fund to enable the Fund to satisfy the distribution requirements that would enable the Fund to be subject to tax as a RIC, will be paid to the holders of preferred Shares as a special distribution. This distribution can be expected to decrease the amount that holders of preferred Shares would be entitled to receive upon repurchase or liquidation of such preferred Shares.

Certain of the Fund's investments are expected to be subject to special U.S. federal income tax provisions that may, among other things, (1) disallow, suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions, (2) convert lower-taxed long-term capital gains into higher-taxed short-term capital gains or ordinary income, (3) convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into a capital loss, the deductibility of which is more limited, (4) adversely affect when a purchase or sale of shares or securities is deemed to occur, (5) adversely alter the intended characterization of certain complex financial transactions, (6) cause the Fund to recognize income or gain without a corresponding receipt of cash, (7) treat dividends that would otherwise constitute qualified dividend income as non-qualified dividend income, (8) treat dividends that would otherwise be eligible for the corporate dividends received deduction as ineligible for such treatment and (9) produce income that will not constitute

Qualifying RIC Income. The application of these rules could cause the Fund to be subject to U.S. federal income tax or the 4% Excise Tax and, under certain circumstances, could affect the Fund's status as a RIC. The Fund monitors its investments and may make certain tax elections to mitigate the effect of these provisions.

The remainder of this discussion assumes that the Fund has qualified and maintain its qualification as a RIC and has satisfied the distribution requirements described above.

Taxation of U.S. Shareholders

Distributions

Distributions of the Fund's ordinary income and net short-term capital gains will, except as described below with respect to distributions of "qualified dividend income," generally be taxable to Shareholders as ordinary income to the extent such distributions are paid out of the Fund's current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Distributions (or deemed distributions, as described above), if any, of net capital gains will be taxable as long-term capital gains, regardless of the length of time a Shareholder has owned Shares. The ultimate tax characterization of the Fund's distributions made in a tax year cannot be determined until after the end of the tax year. As a result, the Fund may make total distributions during a tax year in an amount that exceeds the current and accumulated earnings and profits of the Fund. A distribution of an amount in excess of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated by a Shareholder as a return of capital that will be applied against and reduce the Shareholder's tax basis in its Shares. To the extent that the amount of any such distribution exceeds the Shareholder's tax basis in its Shares, the excess will be treated as gain from a sale or exchange of Shares. Distributions will be treated in the manner described above regardless of whether such distributions are paid in cash or invested in additional Shares. Generally, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a Shareholder receiving Shares under the dividend reinvestment plan will generally be treated as having received a distribution equal to the fair market value of such Shares on the date the Shares are credited to the Shareholder's account.

A return of capital to Shareholders is a return of a portion of their original investment in the Fund, thereby reducing the tax basis of their investment. This reduction in tax basis may subject Shareholders to tax in connection with the sale of Fund Shares, even if such Shares are sold at a loss relative to the Shareholder's original investment.

It is expected that a substantial portion of the Fund's income will consist of ordinary income. For example, interest and OID derived by the Fund are characterized as ordinary income for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In addition, gain derived by the Fund from the disposition of debt instruments with "market discount" (generally, securities with a fixed maturity date of more than one year from the date of issuance acquired by the Fund at a price below the lesser of their stated redemption price at maturity or accreted value, in the case of securities with OID) will be characterized as ordinary income for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of the market discount that has accrued, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes, at the time of such disposition, unless the Fund makes an election to accrue market discount on a current basis. In addition, certain of the Fund's investments will be subject to other special U.S. federal income tax provisions that may affect the character, increase the amount and/or accelerate the timing of distributions to Shareholders.

Distributions made by the Fund to a corporate Shareholder will qualify for the dividends-received deduction only to the extent that the distributions consist of qualifying dividends received by the Fund. In addition, any portion of the Fund's dividends otherwise qualifying for the dividends-received deduction will be disallowed or reduced if the corporate Shareholder fails to satisfy certain requirements, including a holding period requirement, with respect to its Shares. Distributions of "qualified dividend income" to an individual or other non-corporate Shareholder will be treated as "qualified dividend income" to such Shareholder and generally will be taxed at long-term capital gain rates, provided the Shareholder satisfies the applicable holding period and other requirements. "Qualified dividend income" generally includes dividends from domestic corporations and dividends from foreign corporations that meet certain specified criteria. Given the Fund's investment strategy, it is not expected that a significant portion of the distributions made by the Fund will be eligible for the dividends-received deduction or the reduced rates applicable to "qualified dividend income."

Regulated investment companies that receive qualified REIT dividend income may designate such amounts as Section 199A dividends. Qualified REIT dividend income is the excess of qualified REIT dividends received by the regulated investment company over the amount of the regulated investment company's deductions that are properly allocable to such income. If a Fund designates a dividend as a Section 199A distribution, it may be treated by shareholders as a qualified REIT dividend that is taxed as ordinary income and for non-corporate taxpayers eligible for the 20% deduction for "qualified business income" under Code section 199A. Generally, only non-corporate shareholders who have held their shares for more than 45 days during the 91-day period beginning on the date which is 45 days prior to the ex-dividend date for such dividend are eligible for such treatment.

Under newly issued final Treasury Regulations, regulated investment companies that receive business interest income may pass through its business interest income under Code section 163(j) as a "section 163(j) interest dividend." A regulated investment company's total section 163(j) interest dividend amount for a tax year is limited to the excess of the regulated investment company's business interest income over the sum of its business interest expense and its other deductions properly allocable to its business interest income. The final Treasury Regulations provide that a registered investment company shareholder that receives a section 163(j) interest dividend may treat the dividend as interest income for purposes of section 163(j), subject to holding period requirements and other limitations.

If a person acquires Shares shortly before the record date of a distribution, the price of the Shares may include the value of the distribution, and the person will be subject to tax on the distribution even though economically it may represent a return of his, her or its investment in such Shares.

Distributions paid by the Fund generally will be treated as received by a Shareholder at the time the distribution is made. However, the Fund may, under certain circumstances, elect to treat a distribution that is paid during the following tax year as if it had been paid during the tax year in which the income or gains supporting the distribution was earned. If the Fund makes such an election, the Shareholder will still be treated as receiving the distribution in the tax year in which the distribution is received. In this instance, however, any distribution declared by the Fund in

October, November or December of any calendar year, payable to Shareholders of record on a specified date in such a month and actually paid during January of the following calendar year, will be treated for tax purposes as if it had been received by Shareholders on December 31 of the calendar year in which the distribution was declared.

The Fund will designate (1) any distribution that constitutes a qualified dividend as qualified dividend income; (2) any tax-exempt distribution as an exempt-interest dividend; (3) any distribution of long-term capital gains as a capital gain dividend; (4) any dividend eligible for the corporate dividends received deduction; (5) any distribution that is comprised of qualified REIT dividend income as a Section 199A dividend; and (6) any distribution that constitutes excess Code section 163(j) interest income as a Code section 163(j) interest dividend as such in a written notice provided to shareholders after the close of the Fund's taxable year. Shareholders receiving distributions in the form of additional Shares will receive a report as to the NAV of those Shares.

Sale or Exchange of Shares

The repurchase or transfer of Shares may result in a taxable gain or loss to the tendering Shareholder. Different tax consequences may apply for tendering and non-tendering Shareholders in connection with a repurchase offer. For example, if a Shareholder does not tender all of his, her, or its Shares, such repurchase may be treated as a dividend (as opposed to a sale or exchange) for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and may result in deemed distributions to non-tendering Shareholders. On the other hand, Shareholders holding Shares as capital assets who tender all of their Shares (including Shares deemed owned by Shareholders under constructive ownership rules) will be treated as having sold their Shares and generally will recognize capital gain or loss. The amount of the gain or loss will be equal to the difference between the amount received for the Shares and the Shareholder's adjusted tax basis in the relevant Shares. Such gain or loss generally will be a long-term capital gain or loss if the Shareholder has held such Shares as capital assets for more than one year. Otherwise, the gain or loss will be treated as short-term capital gain or loss.

Losses realized by a Shareholder on the sale or exchange of Shares held as capital assets for six months or less will be treated as long-term capital losses to the extent of any distribution of long-term capital gains received (or deemed received, as discussed above) with respect to such Shares. In addition, no loss will be allowed on a sale or other disposition of Shares if the Shareholder acquires (including through reinvestment of distributions or otherwise) Shares, or enters into a contract or option to acquire Shares, within 30 days before or after any disposition of such Shares at a loss. In such a case, the basis of the Shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. Under current law, net capital gains recognized by non-corporate Shareholders are generally subject to U.S. federal income tax at lower rates than the rates applicable to ordinary income.

In general, U.S. Shareholders currently are generally subject to a maximum federal income tax rate of either 15% or 20% (depending on whether the Shareholder's income exceeds certain threshold amounts) on their net capital gain (*i.e.*, the excess of realized net long-term capital gains over realized net short-term capital losses), including any long-term capital gain derived from an investment in Shares. Such rate is lower than the maximum rate on ordinary income currently payable by individuals. Corporate U.S. Shareholders currently are subject to U.S. federal income tax on net capital gain at the maximum 21% rate also applied to ordinary income. Non-corporate Shareholders with net capital losses for a tax year (*i.e.*, capital losses in excess of capital gains) generally may deduct up to \$3,000 of such losses against their ordinary income each tax year. Any net capital losses of a non-corporate Shareholder in excess of \$3,000 generally may be carried forward and used in subsequent tax years as provided in the Code. Corporate Shareholders generally may not deduct any net capital losses for a tax year, but may carry back such losses for three tax years or carry forward such losses for five tax years.

An additional 3.8% Medicare tax is imposed on certain net investment income (including ordinary dividends and capital gain distributions received from the Fund and net gains from repurchases or other taxable dispositions of Shares) of U.S. individuals, estates, and trusts to the extent that such person's "modified adjusted gross income" (in the case of an individual) or "adjusted gross income" (in the case of an estate or trust) exceeds certain threshold amounts. U.S. persons that are individuals, estates, or trusts are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of this tax to their income and gains in respect of their investment in the Fund.

The Fund (or if a U.S. Shareholder holds Shares through an intermediary, such intermediary) will send to each of its U.S. Shareholders, as promptly as possible after the end of each calendar year, a notice detailing, on a per Share and per distribution basis, the amounts includible in such U.S. Shareholder's taxable income for such year as ordinary income and as long-term capital gain. In addition, the federal tax status of each year's distributions generally will be reported to the IRS, including the amount of distributions, if any, eligible for the preferential maximum rate generally applicable to long-term capital gains. Distributions paid by the Fund generally will not be eligible for the corporate dividends received deduction or the preferential tax rate applicable to Qualifying Dividends because the Fund's income generally will not consist of dividends. Distributions may also be subject to additional state, local and foreign taxes depending on a U.S. Shareholder's particular situation.

Under U.S. Treasury regulations, if a Shareholder recognizes losses with respect to Shares of: (a) \$2 million or more for an individual Shareholder in any single tax year or \$4 million or more in any combination of tax years; or (b) \$10 million or more for a corporate Shareholder in any single tax year or \$20 million or more in any combination of tax years, the Shareholder must file with the IRS a disclosure statement on IRS Form 8886. Direct Shareholders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance, shareholders of a RIC are not excepted. Future guidance may extend the current exception from this reporting requirement to shareholders of most or all RICs. The fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer's treatment of the loss is proper. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors to determine the applicability of these regulations in light of their individual circumstances.

Reporting of adjusted cost basis information is required for covered securities, which generally include shares of a RIC acquired after January 1, 2012, to the IRS and to taxpayers. Shareholders should contact their financial intermediaries with respect to reporting of cost basis and available elections for their accounts.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Information returns will be filed with the IRS in connection with payments on Shares and the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of Shares. A Shareholder will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments if it fails to provide the payor with its correct taxpayer identification number (generally, in the case of a U.S. resident Shareholder, on an IRS Form W-9), make required certifications, or otherwise fails to establish an exemption from backup withholding. Corporate Shareholders and certain other Shareholders generally are exempt from backup withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld as backup withholding may be credited against the applicable Shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Shareholders

Whether an investment in the Fund is appropriate for a non-U.S. Shareholder (as defined below) will depend upon that investor's particular circumstances. An investment in the Fund by a non-U.S. Shareholder may have adverse tax consequences. Non-U.S. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors before investing in Shares.

The U.S. federal income taxation of a Shareholder that is a nonresident alien individual, a foreign trust or estate, or a foreign corporation, as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes (a "non-U.S. Shareholder"), depends on whether the income that the Shareholder derives from the Fund is "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by the Shareholder.

If the income that a non-U.S. Shareholder derives from the Fund is not "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by such non-U.S. Shareholder, distributions of "investment company taxable income" (including any deemed distributions with respect to a repurchase offer) will generally be subject to a U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30% (or a lower rate provided under an applicable treaty). Alternatively, if the income that a non-U.S. Shareholder derives from the Fund is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the non-U.S. Shareholder, the Fund will not be required to withhold U.S. federal tax if the non-U.S. Shareholder complies with applicable certification and disclosure requirements, although such income will be subject to U.S. federal income tax in the manner described below and at the rates applicable to U.S. residents. Backup withholding will not, however, be applied to payments that have been subject to this 30% withholding tax applicable to non-U.S. Shareholders.

A non-U.S. Shareholder whose income from the Fund is not "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business will generally be exempt from U.S. federal income tax on capital gains distributions, any amounts retained by the Fund that are designated as undistributed capital gains and any gains realized upon the sale or exchange of Shares. If, however, such a non-U.S. Shareholder is a nonresident alien individual and is physically present in the United States for 183 days or more during the tax year and meets certain other requirements such capital gains distributions, undistributed capital gains and gains from the sale or exchange of Shares will be subject to a 30% U.S. tax.

Furthermore, properly designated distributions by the Fund and received by non-U.S. Shareholders are generally exempt from U.S. federal withholding tax when they (a) are paid by the Fund in respect of the Fund's "qualified net interest income" (i.e., the Fund's U.S. source interest income, subject to certain exceptions, reduced by expenses that are allocable to such income), or (b) are paid by the Fund in connection with the Fund's "qualified short-term capital gains" (generally, the excess of the Fund's net short-term capital gains over the Fund's long-term capital losses for such tax year). However, depending on the circumstances, the Fund may designate all, some or none of the Fund's potentially eligible distributions as derived from such qualified net interest income or from such qualified short-term capital gains, and a portion of such distributions (e.g., derived from interest from non-U.S. sources or any foreign currency gains) would be ineligible for this potential exemption from withholding. Moreover, in the case of Shares held through an intermediary, the intermediary may have withheld amounts even if the Fund reported all or a portion of a distribution as exempt from U.S. federal withholding tax. To qualify for this exemption from withholding, a non-U.S. Shareholder must comply with applicable certification requirements relating to its non-U.S. tax residency status (including, in general, furnishing an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E, IRS Form W-8ECI, IRS Form W-8IMY or IRS Form W-8EXP, or an acceptable substitute or successor form). Thus, an investment in the Shares by a non-U.S. Shareholder may have adverse tax consequences as compared to a direct investment in the assets in which the Fund will invest.

If the income from the Fund is "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by a non-U.S. Shareholder, any distributions of "investment company taxable income," capital gains distributions, amounts retained by the Fund that are designated as undistributed capital gains and any gains realized upon the sale or exchange of Shares will be subject to U.S. income tax, on a net income basis, in the same manner, and at the graduated rates applicable to, U.S. persons. If such a non-U.S. Shareholder is a corporation, it may also be subject to the U.S. branch profits tax.

A non-U.S. Shareholder other than a corporation may be subject to backup withholding on net capital gains distributions that are otherwise exempt from withholding tax or on distributions that would otherwise be taxable at a reduced treaty rate if such Shareholder does not certify its non-U.S. status under penalties of perjury or otherwise establish an exemption.

If the Fund distributes net capital gains in the form of deemed rather than actual distributions, a non-U.S. Shareholder will be entitled to a U.S. federal income tax credit or tax refund equal to the Shareholder's allocable share of the tax the Fund pays on the capital gains deemed to have been distributed. To obtain the refund, the non-U.S. Shareholder must obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number and file a federal income tax return even if the non-U.S. Shareholder would not otherwise be required to obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number or file a federal income tax return.

Under the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act provisions of the Code, withholding of U.S. tax (at a 30% rate) is required on payments of taxable dividends made to certain non-U.S. entities that fail to comply (or be deemed compliant) with extensive reporting and withholding requirements in the Code designed to inform the U.S. Department of the Treasury of U.S.-owned foreign investment accounts. Shareholders may be requested to provide additional information to the Fund to enable the Fund to determine whether withholding is required.

The tax consequences to a non-U.S. Shareholder entitled to claim the benefits of an applicable tax treaty may differ from those described herein. Non-U.S. Shareholders are advised to consult their tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in the Fund, including the potential application of the U.S. estate tax.

Other Taxes

Shareholders may be subject to state, local, and non-U.S. taxes applicable to their investment in the Fund. In those states or localities, entity-level tax treatment and the treatment of distributions made to Shareholders under those jurisdictions' tax laws may differ from the treatment under the Code. Accordingly, an investment in Shares may have tax consequences for Shareholders that are different from those of a direct investment in the Fund's portfolio investments. Shareholders are advised to consult their tax advisors with respect to the particular tax consequences to them of an investment in the Fund.

PURCHASING SHARES

Investors may purchase shares directly from the Fund in accordance with the instructions below. Investors will be assessed fees for returned checks and stop payment orders at prevailing rates charged by the Transfer Agent, the Fund's transfer agent. Investors may buy and sell shares of the Fund through financial intermediaries and their agents that have made arrangements with the Fund and are authorized to buy and sell shares of the Fund (collectively, "Financial Intermediaries"). Orders will be priced at the Fund's NAV next computed after it is received by a Financial Intermediary. A Financial Intermediary may hold shares in an omnibus account in the Financial Intermediary's name or the Financial Intermediary may maintain individual ownership records. The Fund may pay the Financial Intermediary for maintaining individual ownership records as well as providing other shareholder services. Financial Intermediaries may charge fees for the services they provide in connection with processing your transaction order or maintaining an investor's account with them. Investors should check with their Financial Intermediary to determine if it is subject to these arrangements. Financial Intermediaries are responsible for placing orders correctly and promptly with the Fund and for forwarding payment promptly. Orders placed with a Financial Intermediary before the close of regular trading (generally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on a day that the New York Stock Exchange is open for business will be priced at the Fund's NAV next computed after it is received by the Financial Intermediary.

In compliance with the USA Patriot Act of 2001, the Transfer Agent will verify certain information on each subscription agreement. As requested on the subscription agreement, investors must supply full name, date of birth, social security number and residential street address. Mailing addresses containing only a P.O. Box will not be accepted. Investors may call Investor Relations at (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic) for additional assistance when completing a subscription agreement.

If the Transfer Agent does not have a reasonable belief of the identity of a customer, the account will be rejected or the customer will not be allowed to perform a transaction on the account until such information is received. The Transfer Agent also may reserve the right to close the account within five business days if clarifying information/documentation is not received.

By Mail

To make an initial purchase by mail, complete a subscription agreement and mail the application, together with a check made payable to Axonic Alternative Income Fund to:

Axonic Alternative Income Fund c/o SS&C GIDS, Inc. P.O. Box 219576 Kansas City, MO 64121-9576 Telephone: (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic) Attn: Investor Relations

All checks must be in U.S. dollars drawn on a domestic bank. The Fund will not accept payment in cash or money orders. The Fund also does not accept cashier's checks in amounts of less than \$10,000. To prevent check fraud, the Fund will neither accept third-party checks, Treasury checks, credit card checks, traveler's checks or starter checks for the purchase of shares, nor post-dated checks, post-dated on-line bill pay checks, or any conditional purchase order or payment.

It is the policy of the Fund not to accept subscription agreements under certain circumstances or in amounts considered disadvantageous to shareholders. The Fund reserves the right to reject any subscription agreement.

By Wire — Initial Investment

To make an initial investment in the Fund, the Transfer Agent must receive a completed subscription agreement before an investor wires funds. Investors may mail or overnight deliver a subscription agreement to the Transfer Agent. Upon receipt of the completed subscription agreement, the Transfer Agent will establish an account. The account number assigned will be required as part of the instruction that should be provided to an investor's bank to send the wire. An investor's bank must include both the name of the Fund, the account number, and the investor's name so that monies can be correctly applied. If you wish to wire money to make an investment in the Fund, please call the Fund at 1-833-429-6642 for wiring instructions and to notify the Fund that a wire transfer is coming. Any commercial bank can transfer same-day funds via wire. The Fund will normally accept wired funds for investment on the day received, if they are received by the Fund's designated bank before the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange. Your bank may charge you a fee for wiring same-day funds. The bank should transmit funds by wire to:

ABA #: (number provided by calling toll-free number above)
Credit: SS&C GIDS, Inc.
Account #: (number provided by calling toll-free number above)

Further Credit: Axonic Alternative Income Fund (shareholder registration) (shareholder account number)

By Wire — Subsequent Investments

Wired funds must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time to be eligible for same day pricing. The Fund, and its agents, including the Transfer Agent and Custodian, are not responsible for the consequences of delays resulting from the banking or Federal Reserve wire system, or from incomplete wiring instructions.

Investment Minimum

The minimum initial investment for Shares of the Fund is \$50,000 and subsequent investments therein may be made in any amount. The Adviser may, in its sole discretion, waive these minimums for accounts participating in an automatic investment program and in certain other circumstances. The Fund may waive or lower investment minimums for investors who invest in the Fund through an asset-based fee program made available through a financial intermediary. If your investment is aggregated into an omnibus account established by an investment adviser, broker or other financial intermediary, the account minimums apply to the omnibus account, not to your individual investment. The financial intermediary may also impose minimum requirements that are different from those set forth in this Prospectus. If you choose to purchase shares from or effect repurchase requests directly with the Fund, you will not incur charges on such purchases and repurchases. However, if you purchase shares or effect repurchase requests through a broker-dealer or other intermediary, you may be charged a fee by that intermediary.

Other Policies

No Share Certificates. The issuance of Shares is recorded electronically on the books of the Fund. You will receive a confirmation of, or account statement reflecting, each new transaction in your account, which will also show the total number of Shares of the Fund you own. You can rely on these statements in lieu of certificates. The Fund does not issue certificates representing Shares of the Fund.

Customer Identification Program

To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person that opens a new account, and to determine whether such person's name appears on government lists of known or suspected terrorists and terrorist organizations. As a result, the Fund must obtain the following information for each person that opens a new account:

- Name:
- Date of birth (for individuals);
- Residential or business street address (although post office boxes are still permitted for mailing); and
- Social Security number, taxpayer identification number, or other identifying information.

You may also be asked for a copy of your driver's license, passport or other identifying document in order to verify your identity. In addition, it may be necessary to verify your identity by cross-referencing your identification information with a consumer report or other electronic database. Additional information may be required to open accounts for corporations and other entities. If you are opening the account in the name of a legal entity (e.g., partnership, limited liability company, business trust, corporation, etc.), you must also supply the identity of the beneficial owners.

Federal law prohibits the Fund and other financial institutions from opening a new account on behalf of a natural person unless they receive the minimum identifying information listed above. After an account is opened, the Fund may restrict your ability to purchase additional Shares until your identity is verified. The Fund may close your account or take other appropriate action if it is unable to verify your identity within a reasonable time. The Fund and its agents will not be responsible for any loss in an investor's account resulting from the investor's delay in providing all required identifying information or from closing an account and repurchasing an investor's Shares when an investor's identity is not verified.

In addition, the Fund may be required to "freeze" your account if there appears to be suspicious activity or if account information matches information on a government list of known terrorists or other suspicious persons.

Fund Closings

The Fund may close at any time to new investments and, during such closings, only the reinvestment of dividends by existing Shareholders will be permitted. The Fund may re-open to new investment and subsequently close again to new investment at any time at the discretion of the Adviser. Any such opening and closing of the Fund will be disclosed to investors via a supplement to this Prospectus.

Liquidation or Reorganization

To the extent authorized by law, the Fund reserves the right to discontinue offering Shares at any time, to merge or reorganize itself or a class of Shares, or to cease operations and liquidate at any time. A liquidation may have adverse tax consequences to Shareholders. If the Fund were to liquidate, Shareholders would receive a liquidating distribution in cash or in-kind equal to their proportionate interest in the Fund. A liquidating distribution would generally be a taxable event to Shareholders, resulting in a gain or loss for tax purposes, depending upon a Shareholder's basis in his or her Shares of the Fund. A Shareholder would not be entitled to any refund or reimbursement of expenses borne, directly or indirectly, by the Shareholder (such as sales loads, account fees, or fund expenses), and a Shareholder may receive an amount in liquidation less than his or her original investment.

DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund intends to distribute to its Shareholders as dividends all or substantially all of its net investment income and any realized net capital gains. Distributions from the Fund's net investment income are accrued daily and typically paid monthly. However, there can be no assurances that the Fund will achieve any level of distribution to its Shareholders. The dividend rate may be modified by the Board from time to time.

To the extent that any portion of the Fund's monthly distributions are considered a return of capital to Shareholders, such portion would not be considered dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and would represent a return of the amounts that such Shareholders invested. Although such return of capital distributions are not currently taxable to Shareholders, such distributions will have the effect of lowering a Shareholder's tax basis in such Shares, and could result in a higher tax liability when the Shares are sold, even if they have not increased in value, or in fact, have lost value. The Fund's final distribution for each tax year is expected to include any remaining investment company taxable income and net tax-exempt income undistributed during the tax year, as well as any undistributed net capital gain realized during the tax year. If the total distributions made in any tax year exceed investment company taxable income, net tax-exempt income and net capital gain, such excess distributed amount would be treated as ordinary dividend income to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits and as return of capital thereafter. This distribution policy, may, under certain circumstances, have adverse consequences to the Fund and its Shareholders because it may result in a return of capital resulting in less of a Shareholder's assets being invested in the Fund and, over time, increase the Fund's expense ratio. The distribution policy also may cause the Fund to sell securities at a time it would not otherwise do so to manage the distribution of income and gain.

Each year, a statement on Form 1099-DIV identifying the sources of the distributions (*i.e.*, paid from ordinary income, paid from net capital gains on the sale of securities, and/or a return of capital, which is a nontaxable distribution) will be furnished to Shareholders subject to IRS reporting. Fund ordinary distributions may exceed the Fund's earnings, especially during the period before the Fund has substantially invested the proceeds from this offering. To the extent that the Fund pays distributions to Shareholders using proceeds it receives from Fund distributions, such distributions generally would constitute a return of investor capital and generally will lower an investor's tax basis in his or her Shares. A return of capital generally is a return of an investor's investment rather than a return of earnings or gains derived from the Fund's investment activities. There can be no assurance that the Fund will be able to pay distributions at a specific rate or at all.

As discussed in the "Tax Aspects" section, to qualify for and maintain RIC tax treatment, the Fund is required to distribute on a timely basis with respect to each tax year dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes of an amount at least equal to the sum of 90% of "investment company taxable income" and net tax-exempt interest income, determined without regard to any deduction for dividends paid, for such tax year. To avoid certain excise taxes imposed on RICs, the Fund is required to distribute in respect of each calendar year dividends of an amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of ordinary income (taking into account certain deferrals and elections) for the calendar year, (2) 98.2% of capital gain net income (adjusted for certain ordinary losses) generally for the one-year period ending on October 31 of the calendar year and (3) any ordinary income and capital gain net income for previous calendar years that were not distributed during such calendar years and on which the Fund paid no U.S. federal income tax. The Fund can offer no assurance that it will achieve results that will permit the payment of any cash distributions. If the Fund issues senior securities, the Fund will be prohibited from making distributions if doing so causes it to fail to maintain the asset coverage ratios stipulated by the 1940 Act or if distributions are limited by the terms of any of the Fund's borrowings. Any such limitations would adversely impact the Fund's ability to make distributions to Shareholders.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Dividends and capital gains distributions are automatically reinvested, unless otherwise noted. Reinvested dividends increase the Fund's total assets on which a management fee is payable to the Adviser. You may notify the Transfer Agent in writing to:

- Choose to receive dividends or distributions (or both) in cash: or
- Change the way you currently receive distributions

Shares may be distributed in lieu of cash. The number of Shares that will be distributed in lieu of cash is determined by dividing the dollar amount of the distribution to be reinvested by the NAV as of the close of business on the day of the distribution.

Your taxable income is the same regardless of which option you choose. For further information about dividend reinvestment, contact the Transfer Agent by telephone at (833) 429-6642 (833-4Axonic).

FISCAL YEAR; REPORTS

For accounting purposes, the Fund's fiscal year and tax year end is October 31. As soon as practicable after the end of each calendar year, a statement on Form 1099-DIV identifying the sources of the distributions paid by the Fund to Shareholders for tax purposes will be furnished to Shareholders subject to IRS reporting. In addition, the Fund will prepare and transmit to Shareholders an unaudited semi-annual and an audited annual report within 60 days after the close of the period for which the report is being made, or as otherwise required by the 1940 Act.

INQUIRIES

Inquiries concerning the Fund and the Shares should be directed to:

Axonic Alternative Income Fund c/o SS&C GIDS, Inc. 430 W 7th Street, Suite 219576 Kansas City, MO 64105-1407

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

INVESTMENT POLICIES AND RISKS	1
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	18
MANAGEMENT	
REPURCHASE OF SHARES	
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	
PROXY VOTING POLICY AND PROXY VOTING RECORD	28
TAXATION	
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES	
OTHER SERVICE PROVIDERS	36
OTHER MATTERS	37
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	38

Investors should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus. No dealer, salesperson or other individual has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations that are not contained in this Prospectus. If any such information or statements are given or made, investors should not rely upon such information or representations. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell any securities other than those to which this Prospectus relates, or an offer to sell to, or a solicitation of an offer to buy from, any person in any jurisdiction where such an offer or solicitation would be unlawful. This Prospectus speaks as of the date set forth below. Investors should not assume that the delivery of this Prospectus or that any sale made pursuant to this Prospectus implies that the information contained in this Prospectus will remain fully accurate and correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Prospectus.

AXONIC ALTERNATIVE INCOME FUND SHARES OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

PROSPECTUS

February 28, 2023



